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Revenue 4t A

Gross profit £

Operating profit &2 & 7%

Profit before taxation %A1 7 H

Profit for the year FRF|iE

Profit for the year attributable to: AT A LEEERFE
— Equity shareholders of the Company — N2 RIEZ IR
- Non-controlling interests —3F4 Rk %5

Earnings per share #RZF

- Basic (RMB) —EA (AR¥T)

- Diluted (RMB) —#5% (AR¥7T)

Adjusted net profit (a non-IFRS measure)

RRRFFE CGH(ERUBREER) 58)

Adjusted net earnings per share (a non-IFRS measure)
RARSRFER GH(ERRBHREER) EE)

- Basic (RMB) —EA (AR¥T)

- Diluted (RMB) —#:8 (AR¥ 1)

Financial Performance Highlights

MBRRBE

For the fiscal year ended June 30,

HZ6A30H LB HEE

Year-over-Year
2022 2023 change (%)
20225 2023
(RMB in thousands,

except percentages and per share data)

(AR®TFT-

B LR EREERD)
10,085,649 11,473,208 13.8%
3,069,761 4,443,052 44.7%
882,027 2,223,011 152.0%
906,813 2,333,614 157.3%
639,743 1,781,829 178.5%
638,170 1,768,926 177.2%
1,573 12,903 720.3%
0.53 1.42 167.9%
0.52 1.41 171.2%
722,578 1,844,711 155.3%
0.60 1.47 145.0%
0.59 1.46 147.5%

Non-IFRS Financial Measures

In evaluating the business, MINISO considers and uses adjusted
net profit and adjusted basic and diluted net earnings per share
as supplemental measures to review and assess its operating
performance. The presentation of these non-IFRS financial
measures is not intended to be considered in isolation or as a
substitute for the financial information prepared and presented
in accordance with IFRS. MINISO defines adjusted net profit as
profit for the period excluding equity-settled share-based payment
expenses. MINISO computes adjusted basic and diluted net
earnings per share by dividing adjusted net profit attributable to
the equity shareholders of the Company by the number of ordinary
shares used in the basic and diluted earnings per share calculation
on an IFRS basis.

(BRI IR E2ER) B IER

REHEEBE - ZRlERE B EREARFNE
MEABRGREARBEFRNELEE LFEE
REFRENRIER - 27 FKERMBREE
A)) BTSRRI IR 5 A BB N B KR E (B
M HmEER) FREZINNMHER - BAIER
HERARFNEER R/ TEREABEEENRD X
MRAXHBATNE - BElERANRBIERBRE
BRSBTS AR (BIBR B 75 5 22 ) BT
HEBREANESRN AN T BRBREFHLR
EERERLEERRN -
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Financial Performance Highlights

MBRABE

MINISO presents these non-IFRS financial measures because they
are used by the management to evaluate its operating performance
and formulate business plans. These non-IFRS financial measures
enable the management to assess its operating results without
considering the impacts of the aforementioned non-cash and other
adjustment items that MINISO does not consider to be indicative
of its operating performance in the future. Accordingly, MINISO
believes that the use of these non-IFRS financial measures provides
useful information to investors and others in understanding
and evaluating its operating results in the same manner as the
management and the Board.

These non-IFRS financial measures are not defined under IFRS
and are not presented in accordance with IFRS. These non-IFRS
financial measures have limitations as analytical tools. One of the
key limitations of using these non-IFRS financial measures is that
they do not reflect all items of income and expense that affect
MINISO’s operations. Further, these non-IFRS financial measures
may differ from the non-IFRS information used by other companies,
including peer companies, and therefore their comparability may be
limited.

These non-IFRS financial measures should not be considered in
isolation or construed as alternatives to profit, basic and diluted
earnings per share, as applicable, or any other measures of
performance or as indicators of MINISO’s operating performance.
Investors are encouraged to review MINISQO’s historical non-IFRS
financial measures in light of the most directly comparable IFRS
measures, as shown below. The non-IFRS financial measures
presented here may not be comparable to similarly titled measures
presented by other companies. Other companies may calculate
similarly titled measures differently, limiting the usefulness of such
measures when analyzing MINISO’s data comparatively. MINISO
encourages you to review its financial information in its entirety and
not rely on a single financial measure.

ﬂ MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023
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The following table reconciles our adjusted net profit, a non-IFRS
measure, for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022 and 2023 to
the most directly comparable financial measure calculated and
presented in accordance with IFRS, which is profit for the year:

Financial Performance Highlights

MBRRBE

TRBERMEZE20229 202346 A30H I-EF B F
SRR FE GRS R 28 5iZ) 5
RIECBBR SRS ER) A E R 2N EEZ AL
RIS 4EIZ (BN AR ) i1 THIER

For the fiscal year ended June 30,

BZ6H30H LB EE
2022 2023
20224 20234
(RMB in thousands)
(AR¥T )
Profit for the year & R F/;E 639,743 1,781,829
Add back: Ji[5] -
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses
iR A E IR TR X 82,835 62,882
Adjusted net profit (a non-IFRS measure)
RAEFFE (R MR EER) 55) 722,578 1,844,711
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Business Review and Outlook

EFEEKRREE

BUSINESS REVIEW FOR THE REPORTING
PERIOD

We are a global value retailer offering a variety of trendy lifestyle
products featuring IP design. Within ten years since we opened our
first store in China in 2013, we have successfully incubated two
brands — MINISO and TOP TOY. We have built our flagship brand
“MINISO” as a globally recognized retail brand and established
a store network worldwide. Our flagship brand “MINISO” offers
a frequently-refreshed assortment of lifestyle products covering
diverse consumer needs, and consumers are attracted to our
products’ trendiness, creativeness, high quality and affordability.

During the Reporting Period, the total number of MINISO stores in
China and overseas markets increased from 5,199 as of June 30,
2022 to 5,791 as of June 30, 2023. The number of TOP TOY stores
increased from 97 as of June 30, 2022 to 118 as of June 30, 2023.
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the aggregate GMV of the
Group reached approximately RMB21.4 billion.

Brands and Products

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, we launched an average
of around 530 SKUs in “MINISO” channels per month, and we
offered consumers a wide selection of around 9,700 core SKUs, the
vast majority of which are under the “MINISO” brand. Our MINISO
product offering spans across 11 major categories, including
home decor, small electronics, textile, accessories, beauty tools,
toys, cosmetics, personal care, snacks, fragrance and perfumes,
stationery and gifts.

Under the TOP TOY brand, we offered around 7,000 SKUs as of
June 30, 2023 across 8 major categories, including blind boxes,
toy bricks, model figures, model kits, collectible dolls, Ichiban Kuji,
sculptures, and other popular toys.

As of June 30, 2023, we have established co-branding relationships

with 80 IP licensors. We also co-developed new IP with talented
independent artists into popular IP products.

ﬂ MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023
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Business Review and Outlook

EFEEKRREE

Store Network P9 JE 48 4%

As of June 30, 2023, we served consumers primarily through a HZE2023F6A30H  BfIEE@iB45,800K %3
network of around 5,800 MINISO stores, including over 3,600 BIERPIERRAEEERERS  HhEhEA
MINISO stores in China and approximately 2,200 MINISO stores in RiB3,600 X ZAEMME - TE8INEHI2,200K &
overseas. The following table shows the number of MINISO stores BIEMPE - TRIIREZ2HAE - PEFMEH
in China and overseas as of the dates presented: MEZEIERMEEE -

As of June 30,
BZ6H30H

2022
20224

Number of MINISO stores ZEIE RFIEEHE

China & 3,226 3,604
Directly operated stores B ‘& /& 14 15
Stores operated under MINISO Retail Partner model %814 % AP & 3,195 3,569
Stores operated under distributor model X329 )5 17 20

Overseas /&4 1,973 2,187
Directly operated stores H & /& 133 176
Stores operated under MINISO Retail Partner model %814 % A& 208 252
Stores operated under distributor model X325 1,632 1,759

Total &5 5,199 5,791

We have also expanded our TOP TOY store network in China. As of RAMDEAETENTOP TOYFIERLE - B E
June 30, 2023, we had a total of 118 TOP TOY stores, all of which 202346 A30H © HIHEBE118KRTOP TOYPIJE -
were located in China. S EPRIAARE o

As of June 30,
BZ6H30H

2022
20224

Number of TOP TOY stores TOP TOYFI/E& &

Directly operated stores B ‘& /& 7 9
Stores operated under MINISO Retail Partner model %814 % AP9/E 90 109
Total &5 97 118

20287 [EHE o RAIER ﬂ



Business Review and Outlook

EFEEKRREE

EFEMEEE

HZE2023F6 9300  BR15KZAIEREZE - 20
RZEMERRIEFIEMIKTOP TOYELESN - B
I7E R B B H 4 2 BB A TOP TOYFPIJE & B &B7E
ZRIGBABRATIEE -

Store Operations in China

As of June 30, 2023, apart from 15 directly operated MINISO
stores, 20 distributor MINISO stores and 9 directly operated TOP
TOY stores, all of our other MINISO and TOP TOY stores in China
were operated under the MINISO Retail Partner model.

The following table shows the aggregate numbers of MINISO stores TRINTAFREEPEEZEEBRPEEE
in China for the periods indicated:

For the fiscal year ended June 30,
HZ6A30HLLMEREE

2022 2023
20224F 20234

Directly operated stores E& /&

Number of stores at the beginning of the period Hi#]FI/E & & 5 14
Number of new stores opened during the period iR H FIEHE 13 7
Number of closed stores during the period” EA N EEEARIFI R EBIE " 4 6
Net increase in number of stores during the period H1/ 5 £ & £ %10 9 1
Number of stores at the end of the period ZikFI/E & & 14 15
Stores operated under MINISO Retail Partner model Z &4 & AF/E
Number of stores at the beginning of the period B9 /5 & & 2,919 3,195
Number of new stores opened during the period iR ¥R FIERE 477 546
Number of closed stores during the period” Hi A EAEARIFIEEBIE M 201 172
Net increase in number of stores during the period 15 £ & £ %10 276 374
Number of stores at the end of the period HikFI/E & E 3,195 3,569
Stores operated under distributor model (X235
Number of stores at the beginning of the period B9 /5 & & 15 17
Number of new stores opened during the period iR ¥R FIERE 3 3
Number of closed stores during the period” EA N EEEARIPI R BIE " 1 -
Net increase in number of stores during the period 1/ P& £ & £ %10 2 3
Number of stores at the end of the period HikFI/E & E 17 20

Note:

W

(1)  The closure of MINISO stores was due to various reasons, such (1) ZeERMEESERRBE - WPIERLRE -
PUETE RGN - PUEFTERSNHREEE(L - K
WP EEERTIRBEAIERATRERHNEME
& (anEA ) ErIrE -

as expiration of store leases, increases in store rental, changes
in the layout of shopping malls where the stores were located,
unprofitableness of certain stores, and closure by MINISO Retail
Partners or distributors for other considerations, as applicable.

MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023



Our ability to penetrate into various tiers of cities is evidenced by
our proven track record of successfully penetrating into various
lower-tier cities in China despite our previous experience operating
in mostly high-tier Chinese cities. The following table shows the
aggregate numbers of MINISO stores in China by city-tiers as of the
dates indicated:

Business Review and Outlook

EFEEKRREE

%’E%ﬁﬁﬁzmﬁ’#&%?ﬁﬁﬁ% EPE— R

ERBRMBENZEDZRET - RAKE
iﬁﬁPnylﬂiiiﬁmE’Jﬁiﬂfiﬁ%:ﬂﬁ@%‘“% ™
RINVREEMR AR ERE DT EEEE
mPIE R

As of June 30,
HZ6H30H

2022

Number of MINISO stores in China FEIH B &I ERFIEHE

20224

First-tier cities —#&, 466 474
Second-tier cities Z&R 1,377 1,496
Third- or lower-tier cities = 483 A T 1,383 1,634
Total &5t 3,226 3,604

We plan to focus on establishing and reinforcing the recognition
of the TOP TOY brand and expanding our TOP TOY store network
in first- and second-tier cities in China in the near future while also
expanding into lower-tier cities. For expansion of our MINISO store
network in China, our efforts will be focused on penetration into
lower-tier cities as we have established a strong presence in more
developed cities.

HAIEHBIE AR K R FT RS JI5E TOP TOY
BB E - WESE— —FEHEAEII
TOP TOYFI/E#4% » RIS AEARM M AR - AR
PIEEEM T APIE ERIIBEIAL - iR R H M
ERENREIERPERS  BRAIBERNZES
(AR o

20287 [EHE o RAIER ﬂ



Business Review and Outlook
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The MINISO Retail Partner model represents a mutually beneficial
relationship between us and the MINISO Retail Partners, where
we achieve rapid store network expansion with consistent brand
image and consumer experience in an asset-light manner, and our
MINISO Retail Partners attain attractive investment opportunities.
Our MINISO Retail Partners are also motivated to maintain a loyal
relationship with us. The following table shows the number of our
MINISO Retail Partners in China for the periods indicated:

Number of MINISO Retail Partners at the beginning of the period™®
HYREIERABED

Number of new MINISO Retail Partners during the period®
HINITE BRI B ABMER

Number of terminated MINISO Retail Partners during the period®
HRNRIEN BRI ABES

Net increase in number of MINISO Retail Partners during the period®

HAREIE R ABERFIE M
Number of MINISO Retail Partners at the end of the period™
HRBEIGRABED

HEIABABARKTRMERAABAZHENE
BEABE  BAAREESABRRENPIESR
MIEE - RE—BHREERIMEEERR - MA
BIEBARNEST ARSI NNREKS - RINH
BIEBALBBNEARMRTEHOSERE - T
RIVREMRFIREETENREI S BARE

For the fiscal year ended June 30,
B Z6H30H LK EE

2022 2023
20224 2023

821 921
186 230

86 111
100 119
921 1,040

Notes:

(1) Number of MINISO Retail Partners at a given date is calculated based
on the number of individuals and entities with effective contractual
relationships with us at that date.

(2)  We added 186 and 230 new MINISO Retail Partners for the fiscal
years ended June 30, 2022 and 2023, respectively. The increase in
the number of new MINISO Retail Partners for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2023 was mainly due to our store expansion strategy into
more lower-tier cities in China, which demands us to cooperate with
more long-tail MINISO Retail Partners with local resources for store
expansion purposes.

(8)  The number of terminated MINISO Retail Partners increased to 111
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 from 86 in the previous fiscal
year, primarily due to an increase in the number of terminated long-
tail MINISO Retail Partners.

As of June 30, 2023, there were 1,022 MINISO Retail Partners
invested in MINISO stores in China, and 550 of them had invested
for over three years. We only had one distributor for the MINISO
brand in Tibet, China during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023.
As of the date of this annual report, there has been no conversion
of our collaboration partners in China from a MINISO Retail Partner
to a distributor, or vice versa.

Our TOP TOY stores are operated under the MINISO Retail Partner
Model as well. Among the MINISO Retail Partners shown in the
table above, we had 9 and 18 MINISO Retail Partners operating
TOP TOY stores as of June 30, 2022 and 2023, respectively.

MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023
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Store Operations in Overseas Markets

We have adopted flexible store operation models, including direct
operation, MINISO Retail Partner model and the distributor model
as we expand our global footprints, depending on the growth
potential, local regulation and other factors in the markets. In
consideration of the evolving local regulatory requirements, market
conditions and their operational needs, our overseas franchisees
may sometimes convert from a MINISO Retail Partner to a
distributor, or vice versa.

As of June 30, 2023, in overseas markets, there were around
180 stores directly operated by us and over 2,000 MINISO Retail
Partner stores and stores operated under the distributor model. As
of the date of this annual report, to our knowledge, except for one
distributor that is controlled by Mr. Ye, our chairman of the Board
and chief executive officer, and another distributor which has a
minority shareholding in one of our subsidiaries, all of our overseas
MINISO Retail Partners and distributors are independent third
parties. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the respective
transaction amount with these two distributors accounted for
insignificant percentages of our total revenue. The following table
shows the aggregate numbers of MINISO stores in overseas
markets for the periods indicated:

Directly operated stores E% &
Number of stores at the beginning of the period 2i#1f9/E & &
Number of new stores opened during the period HRFA S HIFFIE S E
Number of closed stores during the period" Ei N EAEAHIPI R ELE "
Net increase in number of stores during the period 1Pk £ & £ %1 0
Number of stores at the end of the period iR /E &=

Stores operated under MINISO Retail Partner model Z&I&E AFIJE
Number of stores at the beginning of the period 2i#1F9 /5 & &
Number of new stores opened during the period HRFA % HIFFIE S E
Number of closed stores during the period™ B EEBIHIFI EEED
Net increase in number of stores during the period 1Pk £ & £ %1 0
Number of stores at the end of the period KI5 &=

Stores operated under distributor model X EFi &
Number of stores at the beginning of the period £i#1F9 /5 & &
Number of new stores opened during the period HRIFA % HIHFIE S E
Number of closed stores during the period™ B EEBIHIFI EEED
Net increase in number of stores during the period 1Pk £ & £ %10
Number of stores at the end of the period iR /E &=
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ERIHIENFEES
HMERRZHRNPIEBEORE - ARET IS MG
K& - BEMOARMEMRAER - KRBT —FRINEE
MFEEZES - BREEE - BRIEBARAMK
BRN - EEIEHAEECNETENR - MHK
HREENLERK - RAEIMBEREREK
HEIGRAEERRER  RZTFA -

HE2023F6 A30H @ EEINTIE - BMERD
180REEE REIABAMERKREMERIB
2,000K - HEAFHBEH  BRAFN B—F
HEESIERERATEELEERNRER X
FRERMN—ZKH B RRHES LB ENRIE
BN - BRI B HEINERIE R AMRIEES A
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For the fiscal year ended June 30,

BZ6H30H LM BEE

2022 2023
20224F 20234

127 133
26 76

20 33

6 43

133 176
195 208
18 69

5 25

13 44
208 252
1,488 1,632
239 314
95 187
144 127
1,632 1,759

Note:

(1)  The closure of MINISO stores was due to various reasons, such
as expiration of store leases, increases in store rental, changes
in the layout of shopping malls where the stores were located,
unprofitableness of certain stores, and closure by MINISO Retail
Partners or distributors for other considerations, as applicable.

1 BeERFMERZEREBR - WPUEEORES -
FIURTEEIE N0 - PIEFERISHM BB AR - X
LPYEEARFI R A A A B ALRIZREHNEME
& (Ans@E ) Brara s -
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Business Review and Outlook

EFEEKRREE

In the majority of overseas markets, we expand our store network R GINTSG - BB AHABEEEZHER
by collaborating with local distributors with abundant local MEELBRHNEHRIBYEIE - EARKPINPEHE
resources and retail experiences. The following table shows the i o TRIVRARFIREABERMEEINTISHRIER
number of our distributors in overseas markets for the periods HE

indicated:

For the fiscal year ended June 30,

HE6H30HIEMEEE

2022 2023

20224 2023F

Number of distributors at the beginning of the period™ #i ¥ IE G & E® 170 200
Number of new distributors during the period® ENFTIE R K IBpEEE 42 42
Number of terminated distributors during the period® EiAAR (R IEEEER 12 13
Net increase in number of distributors during the period iR I i £ & B F 18 0 30 29
Number of distributors at the end of the period® Ei R IE 5 & E ™ 200 229

Notes: BT

(1)  Number of distributors at a given date is calculated based on (1) AETHBENRIEMEEDREEZBBERMF
the number of individuals and entities with effective contractual EAEMERBROBEANMBEEHETE -
relationships with us at that date.

(2)  Change of contracting entities by the same distributor is not taken (2 FEFEmMSIKIENREEEER  TERAR—
2 GEh

into account in the calculation of numbers of new or terminated REBEEECRBRHIBENR -
distributors.

As of June 30, 2022 and 2023, we had 31 and 61 MINISO Retail B E2022%F % 202356 A30H * LM EINTESD
Partners in overseas markets, respectively. The increase in the RIEEAIIRBIMIRBIEHA - BEIEBRAZEER
number of MINISO Retail Partners for the fiscal year ended June BZ2023F6 A30H IFMBFEE AN - 2R
30, 2023 was primarily due to the increase in the number of MINISO AR EE NI ENZEIE AN -

Retail Partners in Vietnam and Indonesia.
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Other Key Operating Data

The following tables set forth certain of our key operating data of
MINISO stores in China and overseas markets, respectively:

Business Review and Outlook

EFEEKRREE

HitEERELE
TRFINRHRAR KD B F B Mg 5 H
HEVEMPIE RS T RASE L B8R -

For the fiscal year ended June 30,
BZ6H30H LMBFE
2022 2023

20224 20234
(RMB in millions)

MINISO stores in China FEIR B EIEmFIE

(AR¥BEET)

Total GMV® Z2GMV () 10,400 10,671
Annualized average revenue per MINISO store® T 5 % BB & P95 FHFEL WA @ 2.2 2.1
Number of transactions (in millions) X 2B & (H &) 285.1 283.8
Sales volume of SKUs (in millions) SKU$4E (B &) 857.8 814.5
Average spending per transaction (RMB) FHEEE (ARETT) 36.5 37.6
Average selling price (RMB) FHI&E (AR T) 12.1 13.1

Notes:
(1) Includes GMV generated through MINISO 020 platforms.

(2)  Annualized average revenue per MINISO store is calculated by (a)
revenue of MINISO brand in China dividing by (b) the average number
of MINISO stores in China at the beginning and the end of the
Reporting Period.

(1) BEBBEZEIERO20FEELERNGMV -
(@ BREEERMEFHFEIATIE@)SENE RS

Fe 7 m B 9 MR A B DA (b) FE 3R 5 B A R 4 e B R 42 Bl
BN FEPYEBER TS
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Business Review and Outlook

EFEEKRREE

For the fiscal year ended June 30,
BZ6A30HLMBEE
2022 2023

20224 20234
(RMB in millions)
(AR¥BERT)

MINISO stores in overseas markets B/ B EIERFE

Total GMV #GMV 6,414 9,072
Asian countries excluding China Z5;1EIZ (R EIKR 1) 2,435 3,664
Americas =M 2,717 4,204
Europe BUM 562 650
Others EAf 700 554

Annualized average revenue per MINISO store" &5 £ 88 & FIE FHE(L U A O 1.4 1.8
Asian countries excluding China Z5;1EIZR (R BB SM) 1.1 1.6
Americas i 2.3 3.0
Europe B/ 1.3 0.8
Others EAth 0.5 0.6

Note: BfE -

(1) Annualized average revenue per MINISO store is calculated as (1) BRBAERFIUEFHFIIATIR@)ZEERS

(a) revenue of MINISO brand in overseas markets divided by (b) MR B INTT 5 B A BR PA (b) 3R &5 AR EA ) K B R 44
the average number of MINISO stores in overseas markets at the BlERPNEINTISH THEPESEFT ES T -

beginning and the end of the Reporting Period.
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The following table sets forth the GMV of MINISO brand in China
through online channels for the periods indicated:

MINISO brand in China F BN ZEIE R R
Total GMV through online channels® & iB4%_F 2R EESHLEGMV)

Business Review and Outlook

EFEEKRREE

TERSNRTREBZEIERREEFBRBBE -
RIEEFSHGMV:

For the fiscal year ended June 30,
BZE6H30HLMBEFEE
2022 2023
2023F

20224
(RMB in millions)
(AR¥BEERT)

687 670

Note:

(1) Excludes GMV through 020 platforms which is accounted for in GMV
through offline channels.

Our TOP TOY brand started operating in December 2020 in China.
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, our TOP TOY brand
achieved a total GMV of RMB774 million through multi-channels.
The following table sets forth certain of our key operating data of
TOP TOY stores:

TOP TOY stores TOP TOYF4/E

GEX

(1) TEEERBO20FAELEMGMV - BT BB
TEREEARGMV -

HFIBITOP TOY R iEF 2020412 A 7E B I 141E
2o HZE2023F6 A30H IFFHFE - HMHNTOP
TOYRERBZRETRBGMVARKETIT4EE
JT ° N&REFITOP TOYFI/E A T RSB & 8

For the fiscal year ended June 30,
BZ6H30H LHREE
2022 2023
20234

20224
(RMB in millions)
(AR®BEET)

Total GMV £GMV 519 606
Annualized average revenue per TOP TOY store® &K TOP TOY /& FIF (L URAD 5.3 5.0
Number of transactions (in millions) X 3% & (H &) 4.1 4.9
Sales volume of SKUs (in millions) SKUSEE (A &) 7.6 9.5
Average spending per transaction (RMB) FHHEEE (AR TT) 126.2 123.7
Average selling price (RMB) FH&E (AR®IT) 68.6 63.9

Note:

(1) Annualized average revenue per TOP TOY store is calculated as (a)
revenue of TOP TOY brand divided by (b) the average number of TOP
TOY stores at the beginning and the end of the Reporting Period.

fia -
(1) SRTOP TOYFIE FHE( LU A Ty (a) TOP TOY &

FEUZABR A (0) ¥ 5 B M #9) B IR TOP TOY Hy+F 15
FIUEEEETEISH -
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Business Review and Outlook

EFEEKRREE

The following table sets forth the average number of stores
operated by MINISO Retail Partners and distributors as of the dates
indicated:

MINISO Retail Partners ZEI&¥ A

Average number of stores operated 4& & P95 FH g E O
Distributors X2/

Average number of stores operated® & & P95 F1H 2@

TRENEBEMRARREERARRIEFLEM
JEHFIOHE -

As of June 30,
HZ6H30H

2022 2023
20224 20234

3.6 3.6

8.5 8.0

Notes:

(1) Average number of stores operated by MINISO Retail Partners is
calculated as dividing the average number of stores operated under
the MINISO Retail Partner model at the beginning and the end of the
Reporting Period by the average of number of MINISO Retail Partners
at the beginning and the end of the Reporting Period.

2 Average number of stores operated by distributors is calculated as
dividing the average number of stores operated under the distributor
model at the beginning and the end of the Reporting Period by the
average number of distributors at the beginning and the end of the
Reporting Period.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Operational Update

According to the Company’s preliminary estimates, its major
operations achieved the following updates:

July 2023: GMV of MINISO’s offline stores in China increased
by over 25% year over year, driven by around 14% increase in
the average GMV per MINISO store. GMV of MINISO’s overseas
business increased by around 50% year over year.

August 2023: GMV of MINISO’s offline stores in China increased
by around 45% year over year, driven by around 25% increase
in the average GMV per MINISO store and around 15% increase
in the average store count. GMV of MINISO’s overseas business
increased by more than 45% year over year.
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Adoption of Dividend Policy

On July 27, 2023, the Board approved and adopted a dividend
policy of the Company (the “Dividend Policy”), which aims to
provide foreseeable returns to the Shareholders. The Dividend
Policy targets an annual dividend of no less than 50% of its annual
adjusted net profit, a non-IFRS financial measure, which is defined
as profit for the period excluding equity-settled share-based
payment expenses. The Board will take into account the Company’s
actual and expected operations and profitability conditions, capital
requirements and surplus, overall financial position, contractual
restrictions and other factors that the Board may deem relevant
in evaluating the decision and the exact amount of dividends for
distribution.

Dividend Declaration

On August 22, 2023, the Board approved the distribution of a final
cash dividend in the amount of US$0.412 per ADS or US$0.103
per Share, which has been paid on or around September 19, 2023
to the holders of ADSs and Shares of record as of the close of
business on September 7, 2023, New York Time and Beijing/Hong
Kong Time, respectively. The ex-dividend date was September
6, 2023. The aggregate amount of cash dividend paid was
approximately US$128.8 million, which was approximately 50%
of the Company’s adjusted net profit for fiscal year 2023 and was
funded by additional paid-in capital settled by a cash distribution.

2023 Share Repurchase Program

On September 15, 2023, the Board authorized and approved a
new share repurchase program under which the Company may
repurchase up to USD200 million in value of its outstanding Shares
and/or ADSs over a 12-month period starting from September 15,
2023.

Business Review and Outlook

EFEEKRREE
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Business Review and Outlook

EFEEKRREE

BUSINESS OUTLOOK, STRATEGIC UPDATE
AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

In spite of the uncertainties brought by the macro environment,
looking forward to fiscal year 2024, we will remain focused on our
long-term strategic goals: delivering on our globalization strategy,
bolstering the strength of our product offerings and optimizing
our store network. Going forward, we expect to further grow our
business by pursuing the following strategies.

Engaged in global competition, we will take cost advantages and
product differentiation as key points. While sticking to our value-
for-money proposition, we will continue to produce high-quality
IP products featuring IP design to make lifestyle products more
fashionable and trendy.

At the same time, we will actively implement the “Super Store”
strategy to build a strong brand image in consumers’ minds. We
are also targeting “Big Beauty”, “Big Toys” and “Big IPs” as super
categories, and further exploring the room for improving average

GMV per store.

In China, we will expand and upgrade our store network by
capitalizing on the opportunities in lower-tier cities and taking on
more new MINISO Retail Partners to further penetrate more cities in
China that we have already covered.

For overseas markets, we will further expand our store network
by adopting a different operating model for each market, and will
continue to expand our presence in strategic markets such as
North America, Asia and Europe.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWEDH

For the fiscal year ended June 30,

BZ6A30H LV RFE
2022 2023
20224 20234
(RMB in thousands)
(AR¥T )
Revenue YA 10,085,649 11,473,208
Cost of sales $HE KA (7,015,888) (7,030,156)
Gross profit £ 3,069,761 4,443,052
Other income E AUz A 25,931 17,935
Selling and distribution expenses % & 7 #5f &2 (1,442,339) (1,716,093)
General and administrative expenses —#& & 1T FI 52 (816,225) (633,613)
Other net income HAth}F4s A 87,308 114,106
(Credit loss)/reversal of credit loss on trade and other receivables
B o MEMBKFIE(EEEBE) FEBERD (28,924) 1,072
Impairment loss on non-current assets FE77 81 & & 5 (B F5 18 (13,485) (3,448)
Operating profit &2 & F;E 882,027 2,223,011
Finance income B 75U A 66,344 145,225
Finance costs B/ 2 (33,396) (34,622)
Net finance income B 75 U8 A 558 32,948 110,603
Share of loss of an equity-accounted investee, net of tax
DG AR EABRMEIRE A RIREE - B FE (8,162) -
Profit before taxation i 5 F;&E 906,813 2,333,614
Income tax expense P15 X (267,070) (551,785)
Profit for the year 4 X 639,743 1,781,829
Profit for the year attributable to: LA T A TFEMAFRFE :
— Equity shareholders of the Company — 2 A RIS AE R 638,170 1,768,926
— Non-controlling interests — JF{2 A% %5 1,573 12,903
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWEDH

Revenue

Our total revenue increased by 13.8% from RMB10,085.6 million
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 to RMB11,473.2 million for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, mainly attributable to (i) an
increase of 44.6% in revenue from overseas markets, and (ii) an
increase of 2.8% in revenue from China.

Cost of Sales

Our cost of sales was RMB7,030.2 million for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2023, compared to RMB7,015.9 million in fiscal year 2022.

Gross Profit and Gross Margin

Gross profit increased by 44.7% from RMB3,069.8 million for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 to RMB4,443.1 million for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, and gross margin increased from
30.4% to 38.7% during the same period. The increase in gross
profit and gross margin was mainly driven by (i) a higher revenue
contribution from the Company’s overseas markets of 33.3%,
compared to 26.2% in fiscal year 2022, (ii) higher gross margin in
China contributed by newly launched products in relation to our
execution of strategic brand upgrade of MINISO, and the cost-
saving measures that the Company adopted to reduce the costs of
certain products, and (iii) higher gross margin of TOP TOY due to a
shift in product mix towards more profitable products.

Other Income

Our other income decreased by 30.8% from RMB25.9 million for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 to RMB17.9 million for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, primarily due to the decrease in
government grants.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses increased by 19.0% from
RMB1,442.3 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 to
RMB1,716.1 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023.
Excluding share-based compensation expenses, our selling and
distribution expenses increased from RMB1,390.3 million to
RMB1,671.3 million during the same period, which was primarily
due to (i) increased personnel-related expenses, (ii) increased
licensing expenses in relation to our growing IP library and
enriched offerings of IP products, and (jii) increased promotion and
advertising expenses, mainly in connection with our execution of
strategic brand upgrade of MINISO in China.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

General and Administrative Expenses

Our general and administrative expenses decreased by 22.4%
from RMB816.2 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 to
RMBG633.6 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. Excluding
equity-settled share-based payment expenses, our general and
administrative expenses decreased by 21.6% from RMB785.4
million to RMB615.6 million during the same period, which was
primarily due to (i) decreased personnel-related expenses in relation
to our cost control measures among our corporate crew, and (ii)
decreased depreciation and amortization expenses due to the
capitalization of the depreciation of land use right in construction
cost of our headquarters building.

Other Net Income

Our other net income increased by 30.7% from RMB87.3 million
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 to RMB114.1 million for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, primarily due to a net foreign
exchange gain of RMB109.1 million in fiscal year 2023, compared
to RMB14.0 million in fiscal year 2022, partially offset by a decrease
in investment income from wealth management products as a result
of reduced principal of such products.

Impairment Loss on Non-current Assets

Our impairment loss on non-current assets was RMB13.5 million
and RMB3.4 million for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022 and
2023, respectively. We recorded impairment loss on non-current
assets of directly operated stores.

Operating Profit

As a result of the foregoing, we recorded operating profit of
RMB2,223.0 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023,
representing an increase of 152.0% from RMB882.0 million for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.

Net Finance Income

Our net finance income increased by 235.7% from RMB32.9 million
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 to RMB110.6 million for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, mainly due to an increase in
interest income as a result of increased principal in bank deposits.
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—RRITHEX

BMH—R RITHAAEE202246 H30H 1t
BN EENARKESI62BB TR 224%EHE
20236 AS0B LM HFEMARKE33.6B 8
TC o BR AU A MFH AT - RERMO—K
DB ARK785.458BITHL21.6%EAR
#615.6 AE L TEARHAQAFIRIMEEE T
AEHEEEHABHBERASRE - Ri)BAAR
IR ARAE IR AR A B T i T B E AL E R
rERBEHRATRD -

HFUA

T EMFUW A RE E202296 A30H [EIT A
EMARBS7.3EELEMNS0.7% EH F2023F6
A30B I BFEEMARBIM41EE L T2H
R2023 B FEMFELKNZAAREI10918E
JC 2022 FRAIBARE14.088 T - H5
ERWEVERASRDEHNIENERTEERE
B D BT o

FRBEEREREE
HZE2022F 20236 A30H IFBFABEFE - FfIHY
FERBEEREBES I ABAREISSHEELEA
RESABET - RMEEEENIERBEETIRT
VERI=R =B

KEFHE

R RE - #E2023F6 A30H FBIHEE -
B EHNEEFHAAREK2223.08E T &
F2022F6 A30H LB FEMARKESS2.0H S
TCIENN152.0% °

B RS UR R SR

BRI FERAFEREE 202296 A30H LEBIE
FEMAREKI2.98ETIEN235.7% E & £2023
F6AS0BUEVHFEMARKI106BETL =2
AR IRTTIE A S IEINE R F S YA N -

20235 HE « BAER



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWEDH

Share of Loss of an Equity-accounted Investee, Net of Tax

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, we did not record any
share of loss of an equity-accounted investee, net of tax. For the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, our share of loss of an equity-
accounted investee, net of tax was RMB8.2 million, which was
mainly due to our investment into and share of 20% of loss of a
company which was established to acquire the land use right of a
parcel of land in Guangzhou for the purpose of establishing a new
headquarters building for our Group in August 2020. In October
2021, we acquired the remaining 80% equity interest in this
company and we currently own 100% equity interests of the then
equity-accounted investee.

Income Tax Expense

We recorded income tax expense of RMB551.8 million for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2023, compared to RMB267.1 million for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, we recorded a profit for the year
of RMB1,781.8 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023,
compared to a profit for the year of RMB639.7 million for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2022.

Current Ratio

Our current ratio increased from 2.1 as of June 30, 2022 to 2.5 as
of June 30, 2023, primarily due to an increase in total current assets
of RMB1,831.4 million mainly as a result of increased cash and
cash equivalents and term deposits.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OTHER INFORMATION ABOUT OUR
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Liquidity and Source of Funding

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, we funded our
cash requirements principally through cash generated from our
operations. As of June 30, 2023, our cash, cash equivalents,
restricted cash, term deposits, and other investments recorded in
current assets increased by 25.3% from RMB5,828.3 million as of
June 30, 2022, to RMB7,303.3 million. The increase was primarily
attributable to (i) the net cash generated from operating activities,
and (ii) the proceeds from our Hong Kong Public Offering and
exercise of the over-allotment option in fiscal year 2023.

Significant Investments

We did not make or hold any significant investments during the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2023.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals

We did not have any material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries, consolidated affiliated entities or associated
companies during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023.

Pledge of Assets
As of June 30, 2023, none of our Group’s assets was pledged.

Cash Management Policy

We believe we can make better use of our cash by making
appropriate investments in short-term investment products, which
generate income without interfering with our business operation
or capital expenditures. Our investment decisions with respect to
financial products are made on a case-by-case basis and after due
and careful consideration of a number of factors, including, but not
limited to, the market conditions, the economic developments, the
anticipated investment conditions, the investment cost, the duration
of the investment and the expected benefit and potential loss of the
investment. We have established a set of internal control measures
which allow us to achieve reasonable returns on our investment
while mitigating our exposure to high investment risks. These
policies and measures were formulated by our senior management.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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In order to make full use of idle funds, improve the utilization rate of
surplus funds, and increase our income, under the premise of not
affecting our normal business activities, subject to approval from
our chief financial officer, we may purchase a certain amount of
wealth management products from financial institutions. According
to our internal policies, the manager of our treasury department
should make proposals to invest in wealth management products
to our chief financial officer and such proposals must be reviewed
and approved by our chief financial officer. In assessing a proposal
to invest in wealth management products, a number of criteria must
be met, including but not limited to the following:

° the purchase of wealth management products is limited to
low-risk products such as term deposits, principal-guaranteed
and interest-paying products, treasury notes issued by banks,
and wealth management products with risk level below R2.
The purchase of high-risk financial instruments such as
securities and futures is strictly prohibited.

° the expected return of the purchased wealth management
products should be not lower than bank’s deposit interest rate
for term deposits of the same period, the product structure
should be relatively simple, and the purchases should be
made from financial institutions with large operation scale,
overall strength and good credit standing.

° the treasury department is responsible for setting up a
detailed ledger for wealth management products, the manager
of the treasury department manages the financial products,
and tracks the progress and safety of wealth management
products. In the event of an abnormal situation, the manager
of the treasury department should report the situation to the
chief financial officer in a timely manner so that we can take
effective measures immediately to reduce potential losses.

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Assets

As of June 30, 2023, we did not have any detailed future plans for
material investments or capital assets.

Gearing Ratio

As of June 30, 2023, our gearing ratio was 0.1%, calculated as
loans and borrowings divided by total equity as of the end of the
year and multiplied by 100%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Foreign Exchange Risk

Our financial reporting currency is RMB and changes in foreign
exchange rates can significantly affect our reported results and
consolidated trends. In addition, our results of operations, including
margins, are affected by the fluctuation in foreign exchange rates.
Our international operations generate revenues primarily in U.S.
dollars. Generally, a weakening of RMB against U.S. dollar has a
positive effect on our results of operations, while a strengthening of
RMB against U.S. dollar has the opposite effect. We have not used
any derivative financial instruments to hedge exposure to such risk.
To the extent that we need to convert U.S. dollars into RMB for our
operations, appreciation of RMB against U.S. dollar would have an
adverse effect on RMB amount we receive from the conversion.
Conversely, if we decide to convert RMB into U.S. dollars for the
purpose of making payments for dividends on our Shares or ADSs
or for other business purposes, appreciation of U.S. dollar against
RMB would have a negative effect on U.S. dollar amounts available
to us.

Contingent Liabilities

Commitment of tax payments

In connection with the acquisition of land use right and the
construction of the headquarters building in Guangzhou, we
entered into a letter of intent on November 26, 2020 with the local
government of the district where our new headquarters building
is located and committed to pay an aggregate amount of tax
levies of no less than RMB965.0 million to the local government in
Guangzhou for a five-year period starting from January 1, 2021. If
we fail to meet the committed amount for any of the five calendar
years, we will have to compensate for the shortfall.

In April 2022, Miniso (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd., (‘MINISO Guangzhou”)
provided a performance guarantee of RMB175.0 million issued
by a commercial bank to this local government in respect of the
commitment of tax payments for the calendar year of 2022, which
was valid from April 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023. We have met the
commitment for the calendar year of 2022 and therefore MINISO
Guangzhou is not required to make any compensation to the local
government under the above performance guarantee. As of March
31, 2023, the above performance guarantee has expired.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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In March 2023, MINISO Guangzhou provided a performance
guarantee of RMB190.0 million issued by a commercial bank to this
local government in respect of the commitment of tax payments
for the calendar year of 2023, which was valid from April 1, 2023
to March 31, 2024. The Directors have assessed that, based on
the projection of and actual relevant taxes and surcharges paid
and payable during the calendar year of 2023, we are expected
to meet the commitment for the calendar year of 2023 and it
thus is not probable that MINISO Guangzhou needs to make
such compensation to the local government under the above
performance guarantee. No provision has therefore been made in
respect of this matter as of June 30, 2023.

Lawsuit relating to illicit competition

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, Shenzhen Purcotton
Technology Co., Ltd. initiated a legal proceeding against certain
PRC subsidiaries of the Group, one of the Group’s suppliers and
a store operated by one of the Group’s retail partners relating to
an illicit competition dispute. The total amount claimed against the
PRC subsidiaries was approximately RMB30.0 million. No provision
was made in respect of this claim as of June 30, 2022 as the
Directors believed the probability of losing the case was low based
on the assessment of the Group’s litigation counsel at that time.

As of June 30, 2023, a provision amounting to RMB30.0 million
was made based on the first instance judgment made by the court
despite that the Group had filed an application of appeal to the
court.

Securities class action

In August 2022, a putative federal securities class action was filed
against the Company and certain of its officers and Directors,
alleging that the Company made misleading misstatements or
omissions regarding its business operations and financials in
violation of the Securities Act of 1933 and the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934. The action is captioned /n re MINISO Group Holding
Limited Securities Litigation, 1:22-cv-09864 (S.D.N.Y.). In
September 2023, the parties completed briefing on defendants’
motion to dismiss the action, and a decision is currently pending.
This action otherwise remains in its preliminary stage, and we are
unable to predict with certainty the outcome of the action or reliably
estimate the potential losses, if any.

Capital Commitment

As of June 30, 2023, our capital commitment was RMB982.6
million, which was attributable to the construction of the
headquarters building.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Employees and Remuneration Policy

We had a total of 3,696 full-time employees as of June 30, 2023,
including 2,003 in China and 1,693 in certain overseas countries.
The following table sets forth the number of our employees
categorized by function as of June 30, 2023:
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Function Number of Employees
BiRE EEAH
Product Development and Supply Chain Management 7= 7 8 5 £ i §ig 5 38 779
General and Administrative —f% & 1T 436
Operations 1% 1,933
Sales and Marketing 5% & & $4 114
Technology it 177
Business Development %753 & 128
Logistics #/7% 129
Total &5t 3,696

Our total remuneration cost incurred for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2023 was RMB819.6 million, as compared to RMB864.7 million
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.

The number of employees employed by the Company varies from
time to time depending on needs and employees are remunerated
based on industry practice. The remuneration policy and package
of the Group’s employees are periodically reviewed. Apart from
pension funds and in-house training programmes, discretionary
bonuses, share awards and share options from the Company’s
share incentive plan may be awarded to employees according to
the assessment of individual performance.
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Directors’ Report
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The Board is pleased to present this Directors’ report together with
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2023.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Reporting Period and up
to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. YE Guofu (&) (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. LI Minxin (Z=8U1Z) (resigned with effect from May 16, 2023)

Mr. ZHANG Saiyin (5R&EE) (resigned with effect from January 31,
2023)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Ms. XU Lili (%3:22%2)

Mr. ZHU Yonghua (K #E2)

Mr. WANG Yongping (k)

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 44 to 49 of
this annual report.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on January
7, 2020, as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The Company completed
its initial public offering on the NYSE on October 15, 2020 and the
Company’s ADSs have been listed on the NYSE since then. The
Company’s Shares were subsequently listed on the Main Board of
the HKEX on July 13, 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal businesses of the Company’s subsidiaries are the
retail and wholesale of design-led lifestyle and pop toy products
across the PRC, other parts of Asia, America, Europe and certain
other countries. Analysis of the principal activities of the Group
and segment results based on geographical locations during
the Reporting Period are set out in Note 1 and Note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review of the Group, as required by Schedule 5 to the
Companies Ordinance, including a fair review of the Company’s
business, a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Company, particulars of important events affecting the
Company that have occurred since the end of the financial year, an
indication of likely future developments in the Group’s business, an
analysis of the Group’s financial performance and the Group’s key
relationships with its stakeholders who have a significant impact on
the Group and on which the Group’s success depends, is set out
in the “Business review and outlook” and “Management discussion
and analysis” on pages 8 to 29 of this annual report. These
discussions form part of this Directors’ report. Events affecting the
Company that have occurred since the end of the financial year
is set out in “Recent developments after the Reporting Period” in
“Business review and outlook”.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Our business involves certain risks as set out in the section headed
“Risk factors” in the Prospectus and the Form 20-F for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2023 filed with the SEC. The following list is
a summary of certain principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group, some of which are beyond its control.

Risks related to our business and industry

Risks and uncertainties related to our business and industry
include, but are not limited to, the following:

° Our success depends upon the continued strength of our
brands. If we are unable to maintain and enhance our brands,
our business and operating results may be adversely affected;

o The growth and profitability of our business depend on the
level of consumer demand and discretionary spending. A
severe or prolonged economic downturn in China or around
the world could materially and adversely affect consumer
discretionary spending and therefore adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of operations;

° Our success is dependent on the continued popularity of our
products, our continued innovation and successful launches
of new products, and our anticipation of and timely responses
to changes in consumer preferences;
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If we are unable to offer our products at prices that are highly
appealing to consumers or maintain competitive prices, our
business and results of operations would be materially and
adversely affected;

If we fail to offer high-quality products to consumers, our
business, reputation, results of operations and financial
condition will be materially and adversely affected;

Expanding product offerings may expose us to new
challenges and more risks;

If we are unable to attract purchases from new and existing
consumers, our business, financial condition and results of
operations may be materially and adversely affected;

We primarily rely on our retail partners and distributors to
expand our store network. If we are unable to expand our
store network successfully, our business, results of operations
would be adversely affected;

If we, our MINISO Retail Partners or local distributors fail to
successfully operate MINISO stores, our business and results
of operations would be adversely affected;

Our international operations are subject to a variety of costs
and legal, regulatory, political and economic risks;

If our MINISO Retail Partners or local distributors do not
satisfactorily fulfill their responsibilities and commitments,
our brand image, results of operations could be materially
harmed;

If we fail to maintain the relationship with our MINISO Retail
Partners or our local distributors or fail to attract new MINISO
Retail Partners or local distributors to join our store network,
our business, results of operations and financial condition
could be materially and adversely affected;

Our operations have been and may continue to be affected by
COVID-19 pandemic; and

lllegal actions or misconduct of our MINISO Retail Partners,
local distributors, sub-contractors or sub-distributors, third-
party suppliers or other service providers, or any failure by
them to provide satisfactory products or services could
materially and adversely affect our business, reputation,
financial condition and results of operations.
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Risks related to doing business in China

Risks and uncertainties related to doing business in China include,
but are not limited to, the following:

The PCAOB had historically been unable to inspect our
auditor in relation to their audit work performed for our
financial statements and the inability of the PCAOB to
conduct inspections of our auditor in the past has deprived
our investors of the benefits of such inspections;

The ADSs may be prohibited from trading in the United
States under the HFCAA in the future if the PCAOB is unable
to inspect or investigate completely auditors located in
China. The delisting of the ADSs, or the threat of their being
delisted, may materially and adversely affect the value of your
investment;

The PRC government’s oversight and regulation over our
business operations could result in a material adverse change
in our operations and the value of our Shares or the ADSs;

Changes in China’s economic, political or social conditions or
government policies could have a material and adverse effect
on our business and results of operations;

Uncertainties in the interpretation and enforcement of PRC
laws and regulations could limit the legal protections available
to you and us; and

Litigation and negative publicity surrounding China-based
companies listed in the U.S. may result in increased regulatory
scrutiny of us and negatively impact the trading price of
the ADSs and could have a material adverse effect upon
our business, including our results of operations, financial
condition, cash flows and prospects.
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Risks related to the ADSs and our Shares

Risks and uncertainties related to the ADSs and the Shares include,
but are not limited to, the following:

o The trading price of the ADSs and the Shares has been
volatile, which could result in substantial losses to investors;

° The concentration of our Share ownership among executive
officers, Directors, and principal Shareholders and their
affiliated entities will likely limit investors’ ability to influence
corporate matters and could discourage others from pursuing
any change of control transaction that holders of our Shares
and the ADSs may view as beneficial; and

° Techniques employed by short sellers may drive down the
market price of our Shares or the ADSs.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

We are committed to fulfilling social responsibility, promoting
employee benefits and development, protecting the environment,
giving back to community and achieving sustainable growth. Details
of such will be set out in our ESG Report published on the same
date as this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus and as may be disclosed
in the ESG Report, we have complied with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the operations of the
Group during the Reporting Period.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Reporting Period, save as disclosed in this annual
report, no related party transaction disclosed in Note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements falls under the definition of
“connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for which disclosure is required.
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IP Licensing, Sales and Distribution Framework Agreement

Reference is made to the Prospectus in relation to the continuing
connected transactions of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. On June 27, 2022, Miniso Hong Kong Limited
(“MINISO HK?”), for itself and on behalf of other members of the
Group, entered into a framework agreement (the “IP Licensing,
Sales and Distribution Framework Agreement”) with MINISO
Lifestyle Nigeria Limited (“MINISO Nigeria”) to grant to MINISO
Nigeria (i) exclusive licenses for the use of certain intellectual
property rights in Nigeria owned by MINISO HK, including but not
limited to trademarks, particular package and decoration, patents,
technical know-how and operation standard (the “Licensed
IP Rights”) that are owned by us charged by a one-off license
fee based on the term of the licensing arrangement; and (ii) an
exclusive right to establish MINISO stores in Nigeria as a distributor
of the Group, with effect from the Listing Date.

MINISO Nigeria will use the Licensed IP Rights within the scope
specified in the IP Licensing, Sales and Distribution Framework
Agreement. In addition, under the agreement, MINISO HK will sell
and distribute to MINISO Nigeria the products under the brand of
MINISO, including products which comprise intellectual property
licensed by external IP licensors collaborating with the brand of
MINISO.

The IP Licensing, Sales and Distribution Framework Agreement has
a term of three years commencing on the Listing Date and ending
on June 30, 2025 (both days inclusive).

Mr. Ye is the chairman of the Board, an executive Director, the chief
executive officer and a Controlling Shareholder of the Company
and therefore a connected person (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company under the Listing Rules.

As MINISO Nigeria is controlled by YGF MC Limited which is
wholly-owned by Mr. Ye, MINISO Nigeria is an associate of Mr. Ye
and therefore also a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under
the IP Licensing, Sales and Distribution Framework Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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The price of the products shall be fair and reasonable and
determined with reference to the cost of production of the relevant
products, plus a profit margin of a range between 30% to 40%
determined through arm’s length negotiation with reference to
the comparable profit margin of other overseas distributors of
the Company and the prevailing profit margin in the market for
comparable products.

The license fee is a one-off fixed fee of up to RMB6.0 million. It is
determined based on various factors, including but not limited to
location of the stores, local economic conditions and the number of
stores owned by the relevant distributors. The license fees may be
waived for distributors who operate a large number of stores and/or
with whom the Company has had a long-term relationship.

The actual transaction amount under the IP Licensing, Sales and
Distribution Framework Agreement for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2023 was approximately RMB18.0 million™®),

Notes:

(1)  As originally disclosed in the Prospectus, the highest of the applicable
percentage ratios in respect of this transaction was expected to
be, on an annual basis, less than 0.1%, pursuant to Listing Rule
14A.76(1). Therefore, the transactions under the IP Licensing, Sales
and Distribution Framework Agreement constituted de minimis
transactions which were fully exempt from the annual reporting,
annual review, announcement and independent Shareholders’
approval requirements under the Listing Rules, and no annual cap for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 has been disclosed.

(2)  As disclosed in the Company’s annual results announcement
dated September 15, 2023, the actual transaction amount and the
corresponding highest applicable percentage ratio (as defined in
the Listing Rules) has exceeded the de minimis threshold of 0.1%
pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules, but is less than 5%.
Accordingly, it should be subject to the reporting, announcement
and annual review requirements, but exempt from independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76(2) of
the Listing Rules. Please refer to the aforementioned announcement
for further details.
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The revised annual caps of the transaction amount in respect of the
IP Licensing, Sales and Distribution Framework Agreement for the
remaining two fiscal years ending June 30, 2025 are set out in the
table below:
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For the fiscal year ending June 30,
BZ6A30HLMBEE
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20244 2025
(RMB in million)
(AR®BETRT)

Annual caps in respect of the IP Licensing, Sales and
Distribution Framework Agreement
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36.0 50.0

Confirmation from Independent Non-executive Directors
Our independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
aforementioned continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that such continuing connected transactions have been entered
into:

(@ inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and
(c) according to the agreement governing them on terms that are

fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as
a whole.
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Confirmations from the Auditor

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised), Assurance
Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised),
Audiitor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. As no annual cap for the continuing
connected transactions for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023
has been disclosed by the Group, the auditor has expressed a
disclaimer of conclusion in respect of Listing Rule 14A.56(4) due
to its inability to express a conclusion as to whether anything has
come to its attention that causes it to believe that the aggregate
amount of those transactions has exceeded an annual cap. The
auditor has issued unmodified conclusions in respect of those
transactions in accordance with Listing Rules 14A.56(1), (2) and (3):

(@ nothing has come to its attention that causes the auditor to
believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions
have not been approved by the Board;

(b) for transactions involving the provision of goods or services
by the Group, nothing has come to its attention that causes
the auditor to believe that the transactions were not, in all
material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Company; and

(¢) nothing has come to its attention that causes the auditor
to believe that the transactions were not entered into, in all
material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions.

A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the HKEX.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors confirm that the Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements prescribed in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the continuing
connected transactions entered into by the Group during the
Reporting Period.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND MAJOR
SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Period, less than 30% of our total revenue
was generated from our five largest customers combined and less
than 30% of our total purchases was made from the five largest
suppliers combined.

None of the Directors, their respective close associates, or any
Shareholder (which to the best of the Directors’ knowledge owns
more than 5% of the number of issued Shares) had any interest in
any of our five largest customers or suppliers during the Reporting
Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the laws of
the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new
Shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing Shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION OF HOLDERS
OF LISTED SECURITIES

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of our
Company’s securities.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in Note 1 to
the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Reporting Period are set out in Note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

During the Reporting Period, none of the Company’s properties are
held for development and/or sale or for investment purposes.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARES ISSUED

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 are set out in Note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements and the section headed “Other
information — Purchase, sale, cancellation or redemption of the
Company’s listed securities” in this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as of the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed percentage of
public float under the Listing Rules.

DONATIONS

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the Group made
charitable donations of RMB2.0 million.

DEBENTURE ISSUED

Our Group did not issue any debentures during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2023.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “2020 Share Incentive
Plan” in this annual report, no equity-linked agreement was entered
into by the Group, or existed during the fiscal year ended June 30,
2023.

DIVIDEND

The Board approved a special cash dividend in the amount of
US$0.172 per ADS or US$0.043 per Share on August 17, 2022,
which has been paid to the holders of the ADSs and the Shares on
or around September 9, 2022.

On August 22, 2023, the Board approved a final cash dividend in
the amount of US$0.412 per ADS or US$0.103 per Share, which
has been paid on or around September 19, 2023 to the holders
of ADS and Shares of record as of the close of business on
September 7, 2023, New York Time and Beijing/Hong Kong Time,
respectively.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to Article 163 of the Articles of Association and subject
to the applicable laws and regulations, every Director shall be
indemnified and secured harmless against all actions, proceedings,
costs, charges, expenses, losses, damages or liabilities which they
or any of them incurred or sustained, other than by reason of such
Director’s own dishonesty, wilful default or fraud, in or about the
conduct of our Company’s business or affairs (including as a result
of any mistake of judgment) or in the execution or discharge of his
duties, powers, authorities or discretions. A permitted indemnity
provision (as defined in section 469 of the Companies Ordinance)
for the benefit of the Directors had been in force for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2023.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 96
to 97 and in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

As of June 30, 2023, the Company had distributable reserve of
RMB8,798.9 million.

LOANS AND BORROWINGS

As of June 30, 2023, the loans and borrowings of the Group was
RMB7.2 million.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Our executive Director entered into a service contract with our
Company on June 26, 2022. The term of appointment shall be for
an initial term of three years from the Listing Date or until the third
annual general meeting of our Company after the Listing Date,
whichever is sooner (subject to retirement as and when required
under the Articles of Association). Either party may terminate the
contract by giving not less than 30 days’ written notice.

Each of our independent non-executive Directors entered into an
amended and restated Director agreement with our Company on
June 26, 2022. The term of appointment shall be for an initial term
of three years from the Listing Date or until the third annual general
meeting of our Company after the Listing Date, whichever is sooner
(subject to retirement as and when required under the Articles of
Association). Either party may terminate the agreement by giving
not less than 30 days’ written notice, or such shorter period as the
parties may agree upon.
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None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company has or is proposed to
have a service contract with any member of our Group other than
contracts expiring or determinable by the employer within one
year without the payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

None of the Directors or any entity connected with the Directors had
a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to which the Company,
its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party subsisting during the Reporting Period.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND THE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

In compliance with the Corporate Governance Code, the Company
has established the Compensation Committee to formulate
remuneration policies.

The remuneration is determined and recommended based on
each Director’s and senior management personnel’s qualification,
position and seniority. As for the independent non-executive
Directors, their remuneration is determined by the Board upon
recommendation from the Compensation Committee.

The Directors and the senior management personnel are eligible
participants of 2020 Share Incentive Plan, details of which are set
out in the annual report and Note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors, senior management
and the five highest paid individuals are set out in Notes 31, 34 and
35 to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the Directors waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
and there were no emoluments paid by the Group to any of the
Directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of significance
or contract of significance for the provision of services has been
entered into among the Company or any of its subsidiaries and
the Controlling Shareholders or any of their subsidiaries during the
Reporting Period.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the Reporting Period.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
audited by KPMG, who will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. There
was no change in our Company’s independent external auditor
during the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the
Reporting Period was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or its holdings companies a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate; and none of the Directors, or any of their spouse or
children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for equity
or debt securities of the Company or any other body corporate, or
had exercised any such right.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
DIRECTORS’ COMPETING BUSINESS

Each of our Controlling Shareholders and Directors confirms that
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, he or she did not have
any interest in a business which materially competes or is likely
to compete, directly or indirectly, with our business, and requires
disclosure under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

By order of the Board
Mr. YE Guofu
Executive Director and Chairman

Hong Kong
October 19, 2023
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Directors and Senior Management

EENRSREERE

DIRECTORS

Executive Director

Mr. YE Guofu (¥E &), aged 45, has served as a director since
January 2020 and was re-designated as an executive Director with
effect from the Listing Date. Mr. Ye is our founder and has served
as the chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of our
Company since February 2020. Mr. Ye is responsible for the overall
strategy, business development and management of our Group.

Mr. Ye founded MINISO Corporation, the predecessor of our
Group, in August 2009 and has since then served as the chief
executive officer of MINISO Corporation until August 2018. After
MINISO Guangzhou, our PRC holding entity before we established
our offshore holding structure, was established in October 2017,
Mr. Ye has since then been serving as a director and the general
manager of MINISO Guangzhou. Mr. Ye accumulated immense
mastery in trendy fashion during the period of Chinese economic
transformation and seized the opportunity to improve the social
quality consumption patterns, bringing a new business model in
China.

Mr. Ye received his junior college diploma in economic
management from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law in
China in July 2001.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. XU Lili (k% 2%£), aged 42, has served as our independent
director since October 2020 and was re-designated as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from the Listing
Date.

Ms. Xu has served as an independent director of Yalla Group
Limited (NYSE: YALA), a social networking and entertainment
platform company listed on the NYSE, since February 2021. In
addition, Ms. Xu has served as the chief financial officer of ClouDr
Group Limited (HKEX: 9955), a chronic condition management
solution provider in China, since October 2020. Prior to that, Ms.
Xu served as the chief financial officer of Tongdao Liepin Group
(HKEX: 6100), a company engaging in the provision of a variety
of talent acquisition services to individual, businesses and head
hunters listed on the Main Board of the HKEX, from March 2014
to September 2020 and an executive director from March 2018
to September 2020. Prior to that, Ms. Xu held various positions
at General Electric Company (NYSE: GE), a high-tech industrial
company listed on the NYSE, including as the chief financial officer
of GE Power Generation Services China, from January 2005 to
March 2014.
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Directors and Senior Management

Ms. Xu received a bachelor’s degree in international business
from Nanjing University in China in June 2003 and a master of
science degree in local economic development from the London
School of Economics and Political Science in the United Kingdom
in November 2004. Ms. Xu is a public accountant certified by the
Board of Accountancy of Washington State of the United States
since June 2012.

Mr. ZHU Yonghua (%k# %), aged 42, has served as our
independent director since October 2020 and was re-designated as
an independent non-executive Director with effect from the Listing
Date.

Mr. Zhu has been the founding partner of Long-Z (formerly Meituan
DragonBall Capital), a venture capital fund, since January 2017 in
charge of the overall investment of Long-Z and a vice president of
Meituan (HKEX: 3690) (formerly Meituan Dianping). Mr. Zhu served
as an executive director of the department of investment in modern
agriculture and food at Legend Holdings Corporation (HKEX: 3396),
a leading industrial investment and operations company in China
listed on the Main Board of the HKEX, from November 2014 to
December 2016. Mr. Zhu worked at Tiantu Capital, an investment
management company, from July 2007 to October 2014 including
as a partner from December 2013 to October 2014.

Mr. Zhu received a master’s degree in finance from Newcastle
University in the United Kingdom in December 2005.

Mr. WANG Yongping (£ k), aged 54, has served as our
independent director since November 2021 and was re-designated
as an independent non-executive Director with effect from the
Listing Date.

Mr. Wang has served as the president of China Commercial Real
Estate Association since August 2016 and as a vice chairman of
the Commerce Economy Association of China since April 2018.
Mr. Wang has also served as an independent director of Easyhome
New Retail Group Co., Ltd. (SZSE: 0785), a China-based company
engaging in investment, development, merchandize distributorship,
marketing and service of the home building material industry and
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, since December 2019,
and an independent non-executive director of SCE Intelligent
Commercial Management Holdings Limited (HKEX: 0606), a China-
based investment holding company that mainly provides integrated
property management services listed on the Main Board of the
HKEX, since June 2021, and an independent director of Winner
Technology Co., Ltd. (SZSE:300609) (“Winner Technology”), a
China-based company principally engaged in offline consumer
behavior data analysis, and listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, since May 2023. From April 2017 to May 2020, he
served as an independent director of Winner Technology.

EERSREERE

L1 2003456 AR GHEERKZERHHK S
T2 - WH2004F11 AESEEMBBUAKES
et 77 & B B RIB BB L 2T - 1R L 820126
AERAEEERBEMNSHAZESOEMEF AN -

RIFFERLE - 425% 0 B2020F10 AHREEBLE
£ WHETARRERTABLIERITES -

KRAEEB2017F1ARKARBIEEE S Long-Z
(FIEEAREKRER)NEIIREZ A - AELong-Z8)
BRI E W T (B2 FT - 3690) (AIT8IEHZh
SR BIAEEL o RAEEN20145F11 AE20164F12 A
EIBBIERRHER AR (—RIRBERZATER T
WP BIEREEE MBE AR - BERAT 1 3396)1
REERRRBEBEPRITES - KEER2007F7
RAZE2014F10 A EBRIEEE R A REERE - H
20134512 AE2014F10 AEESEA -

RIEEMR20055F12 AEF

T -

REA-RHTRAAS S RIEA

FRFHRE 5455 0 82021 F 11 AEETRFINIE
VEE WH FTARRERTABTIENITES -

THEBE2016F8 ARET R BB HMER S m X
EIFZEeeRk  HH2018F4 ARETHHE
rmEenleR o §2019F 12 A » FRATE
TEAZRNZTEEERMGABRAR (—RIEFIIFE
HFERGLET ERBEMITEMNRE - FE
mmiiE - MBHEEMRBHFREAGE - RXRFT:
0785)HV B £ - WEH202146 AREETHEEE
BERBIZERER QG (— KRB MER_ETAF
BEREER AT - FEREBERAMETIERY @ B
XFf 1 0606) KB IEMITE S - H2023F5 Aie -
ThREETEABEBRODERAR ([EARE]D
(—REFRNELEZZH LT TERERTAPIT
BEEBESTHFRBE AR - ERAT :300609) 757
BE . B2017F4AE2020F5 8 @ (b LHEEER
BERBYES -

20287 [EHE o RAIER ﬂ



Directors and Senior Management

EENRSREERE

Mr. Wang was an independent director of Shanghai Youyouto
Investment Development Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Youyouto”), a
limited liability company established in the PRC principally engaged
in the operation of children’s indoor amusement park, from March
2016 to March 2019, where he was primarily responsible for
providing independent advice on its operations and management.
Shanghai Youyouto was declared bankrupt on December 22, 2020
and is currently in the process of liquidation. Mr. Wang confirmed
that he was not involved in the management and operation of
the business of Shanghai Youyouto. During his directorship with
Shanghai Youyouto, Mr. Wang attended the meetings of Shanghai
Youyouto as its independent director whenever notified and had
reviewed meeting proposals and resolutions provided to him in
relation to the composition of the board of directors, appointment
of new directors and amendment of Shanghai Youyouto’s articles
of association. Mr. Wang confirmed that he had not breached his
fiduciary duties and duties of due diligence during his directorship
with Shanghai Youyouto. Mr. Wang further confirmed that to the
best of his knowledge and belief, as of the Latest Practicable Date,
no claims had been made against him and he was not aware of any
threatened or potential claims made against him and there are no
outstanding claims and/or liabilities as a result of the liquidation of
Shanghai Youyouto.

Before joining our Group, Mr. Wang held various senior
management positions in several national commercial real estate
institutions. Mr. Wang served as a director at Beijing Sperry Real
Estate Brokerage Co., Ltd. from March 2014 to February 2020. He
also served as an executive general manager mainly responsible for
its daily management at Zhongshang Lianmeng (Beijing) Real Estate
Consulting Co., Ltd. from April 2011 to December 2020. Mr. Wang
served as an executive vice secretary-general, vice chairman and
secretary-general at China Federation of Urban Commercial Outlets
Construction Administration from November 2003 to July 2010. He
served as a director at Zhongshang Lianmeng (Beijing) Commercial
Investment Co., Ltd. from September 2011 to July 2017. Mr. Wang
also served as an executive editor-in-chief and editor-in-chief at
Journal of Commercial Economics from May 2002 to September
2018 and as a reporter and a chief reporter, mainly responsible for
business news gathering and editing at China Business Herald from
September 1990 to April 2002.

Mr. Wang received his bachelor’s degree in economics from

Hangzhou College of Commerce (now known as Zhejiang
Gongshang University) in China in July 1990.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Our senior management team comprises Mr. YE Guofu, an
executive Director, Mr. LI Minxin, Ms. DOU Na, Ms. YANG Yunyun
and Mr. ZHANG Jingjing.

Mr. YE Guofu (¥E] E) See “Executive Director” for the biography
of Mr. YE Guofu.

Mr. LI Minxin (Z8(E), aged 51, has served as an executive vice
president of our Company since February 2020. Mr. Li served as
our executive Director from February 2020 to May 2023. Mr. Li is
responsible for legal and business development of our Group.

Mr. Li served as an executive vice president in charge of business
development at MINISO Corporation, the predecessor of our Group,
from February 2010 to August 2018. After MINISO Guangzhou was
established in October 2017, Mr. Li has served as an executive
vice president of MINISO Guangzhou in charge of business
development from August 2018 and served as a director of MINISO
Guangzhou from December 2018 to March 2020. Before that, Mr.
Li operated his own franchisee business in the apparel industry and
accumulated substantial industry experience.

Ms. DOU Na (¥ ), aged 38, has served as an executive vice
president of our Company since February 2020. Ms. Dou is
responsible for product design and development of our Group.

Ms. Dou served as an executive vice president of MINISO
Corporation from September 2009 to August 2018 in charge of
product design and development. After MINISO Guangzhou was
established, Ms. Dou has served as an executive vice president
of MINISO Guangzhou in charge of product development since
August 2018 and served as a director of MINISO Guangzhou from
December 2018 to March 2020.

Ms. Dou received her specialist degree in clinical medicine from
Wuhan University in China in July 2004 and her bachelor’s degree
in product design from Jiangnan University in China in July 2021.
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EENRSREERE

Ms. YANG Yunyun (% EE), aged 46, has served as a vice
president of our Company since February 2020. Ms. Yang is
responsible for the risk management and internal controls of our
operations.

Ms. Yang has been serving as a director of MINISO Corporation
since August 2009 and served as an executive vice president of the
risk management center of MINISO Corporation from September
2009 to August 2018. After MINISO Guangzhou was established,
Ms. Yang has served as an executive vice president of MINISO
Guangzhou in charge of risk management since August 2018 and
served as a director of MINISO Guangzhou from December 2018 to
March 2020.

Ms. Yang completed a specialist online course on mental health
education at Beijing Normal University in July 2020.

Mr. ZHANG Jingjing (3R¥ ), aged 36, has served as the chief
financial officer and vice president of our Company since January
2023.

Prior to his promotion as the chief financial officer, Mr. Zhang
served as the vice president of capital markets of our Company
from September 2022, in charge of our Company’s capital markets
matters, including investor relations, strategic investment and
acquisitions, as well as corporate strategy and treasury. Mr. Zhang
joined us in January 2021 as the director of capital markets.

Mr. Zhang has 12 years of experience in capital markets. He started
his career in auditing at PricewaterhouseCoopers, after which
he served in various roles mainly in capital markets in the U.S.,
Hong Kong and China A share markets, including Qutoutiao Inc.
(NASDAQ: QTT) and Weibo Corp. (NASDAQ: WB).

Mr. Zhang received his dual bachelor degrees in World History and
Business Administration from Nankai University in June 2011 and
is currently an FMBA candidate of the executive program at China
Europe International Business School. Mr. Zhang is a Chartered
Financial Analyst and a non-practicing member of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Our joint company secretaries are Mr. ZHANG Jingjing and Ms.
WONG Hoi Ting.

Mr. ZHANG Jingjing (5R¥ ) See “Senior Management” for the
biography of Mr. ZHANG Jingjing.

Ms. WONG Hoi Ting (Z8l1F) has been appointed as a joint
company secretary with effect from the Listing Date. Ms. Wong
is an assistant manager of the listing services department of TMF
Hong Kong Limited, responsible for providing corporate secretarial
and compliance services to listed companies. She has over nine
years of experience in the corporate secretarial field. Ms. Wong
is an associate of both The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute and The Chartered Governance Institute in the United
Kingdom. Ms. Wong holds a bachelor of social sciences from
Lingnan University in Hong Kong in October 2009 and a master of
science in professional accounting and corporate governance from
City University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in July 2014.

CHANGES TO DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there were no changes in
information of Directors that are required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 13.51(B)(1) of the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

We have received from each independent non-executive Director
an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules, and our Board considers each of them
independent.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report of
the Company for the period from the Listing Date to June 30, 2023.

The Shares of the Company were listed on the HKEX on the Listing
Date, only since which time the relevant Listing Rules have been
applicable to the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to upholding and implementing the highest
standards of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders and enhance its value and accountability.

Upon the Listing in July 2022, the Company has adopted the code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code. Save
as disclosed in this annual report, the Company has complied
with all the applicable code provisions as set out under Part 2 of
the Corporate Governance Code during the Relevant Period. The
Group will continue to review and monitor its corporate governance
practices to ensure compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group’s strategic decisions and monitors business
and performance. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for day-to-day management and operation of
the Group to the senior management of the Group. To oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs, the Board has
established three Board committees, including the Audit
Committee, the Compensation Committee and the Nominating
and Corporate Governance Committee (together, the “Board
Committees”). The Board has delegated to the Board Committees
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out their duties in good
faith, in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the
interests of the Company and Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance for the

Directors during the Relevant Period and will review the coverage of
the insurance annually.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised one
executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors.

During the Relevant Period and up to the Latest Practicable
Date, the composition of the Board is comprised of the following
Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. YE Guofu (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. LI Minxin (resigned with effect from May 16, 2023)
Mr. ZHANG Saiyin (resigned with effect from January 31, 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. XU Lili
Mr. ZHU Yonghua
Mr. WANG Yongping

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 44 to 49 in
this annual report.

The Board has met the requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive directors with at least one of them
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has also complied with Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, which relates to the appointment of independent non-
executive directors representing at least one-third of the Board.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed
his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and the Company considers each of them to be independent.

None of the Directors has any personal relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship)
with any other Directors or any chief executive.

All Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and expertise to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited to
serve on the Audit Committee, the Compensation Committee, and
the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee.

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

EEgAXK
RAFHRALY BEFGh—BATEER=ABY
SFHITEFMA -

HEMPEREERRERATAY  EFEHANUT
EFAX

HITES

ERERE (FEFKEEHTE)
TS S (B202345 516 HEEHT)
SREE A (F20234 1 H31 HALEHE)

BMFHTES
Rt
REEERLE
FoxFeE

EERREHENAERFAMTI0E [EERSRERE
[ |—&p o

BB EMRAD) £3.10(1) %3.102) 156 #
EAELZRBIIENTER (R EL— ABHE
BENEEERNSTRRENKERREND)N
T o

ARr e EMRA) E3A0AREBREG
EEEeRBABES =D Z B IFRTESRN
HIE °

BEIFMTERDRIBECETRA) F£3.135FER
HB I MENMARBRRREFGRBILAL

BEEERINEMEETHNEANEIETRARRE
AEARR(BREME - 25 KEIEMER
FARAR) °

EREZ(BRBUINTES)REFETRE
MBENERER  MEMER  FEARER
BRERE - BUIFRTETCEBEMARSERE
g FHEREEURRANREEERZEE -

20287 [EHE o RAIER ﬂ



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

As regards the code provision under the Corporate Governance
Code requiring directors to disclose the number and nature
of offices held in public companies or organizations and other
significant commitments as well as their identity and the time
involved to the issuer, the Directors have agreed to disclose their
commitments to the Company in a timely manner.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All newly appointed Directors will be provided with necessary
induction training and information to ensure that they have a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as
well as their responsibilities under relevant statues, laws, rules
and regulations. The Company also arranges regular seminars to
provide all Directors with updates on the latest development and
changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory
requirements from time to time. The Directors are also provided
with regular updates on the Company’s performance, position and
prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge their duties.

The Company encourages all Directors to participate in professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The joint company secretaries of the Company update and provide
the Directors with written training materials in relation to their roles,
functions and duties from time to time.

Based on the information provided by the Directors, a summary of
training received by the Directors during the Relevant Period is set
out below:

Name of Director

EENS

Mr. YE Guofu

ERELE

Mr. LI Minxin (resigned with effect from May 16, 2023)
FEUS & (B2023%F5 5 16 HEFFHE)

Mr. ZHANG Saiyin (resigned with effect from January 31, 2023)
SREE A (F2023%F 1531 HEFHE)

Ms. XU Lili

RERB L

Mr. ZHU Yonghua

REERE

Mr. WANG Yongping
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Nature of trainings attended

Fr2 sl g E

A,B,Cand D
A-B-CkD
A,B,Cand D
A-B-CkD
A,B,Cand D
A-B-CkD
A,B,Cand D
A-B-CkD
A, B,Cand D
A-B-CkD
A,B,Cand D
A-B-CkD
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Notes:

A: attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums and/or
briefings

B: making speeches at seminars and/or conferences and/or forums

C: participating in training provided by law firms and that relating to the
business of the Company

D: reading materials on various topics, including corporate governance
matters, directors’ duties and responsibilities, Listing Rules and other
relevant laws

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision C.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code
recommends, but does not require, that the roles of chairman of the
Board and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual.

The Company deviates from this code provision as we do not
have a separate chairman and chief executive officer and Mr. Ye
currently performs these two roles of the Company. Mr. Ye is our
founder and has extensive experience in our business operations
and management. The Board believes that vesting the roles of
both chairperson and chief executive officer in the same person
has the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership within our Group
and enables more effective and efficient overall strategic planning
for our Group. The Board considers that the balance of power and
authority for the present arrangement will not be impaired and
this structure will enable our Company to make and implement
decisions promptly and effectively. The Board will continue to
review and consider splitting the roles of chairman of the Board
and the chief executive officer of our Company if and when it is
appropriate taking into account the circumstances of the Group as
a whole.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

The executive Director entered into a service contract with our
Company on June 26, 2022. The term of appointment is for an initial
term of three years from the Listing Date or until the third annual
general meeting of our Company after the Listing Date, whichever
is sooner (subject to retirement as and when required under the
Articles of Association). Either party may terminate the agreement
by giving not less than 30 days’ written notice.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors entered into an
amended and restated director agreement with our Company on
June 26, 2022. The term of appointment is for an initial term of
three years from the Listing Date or until the third annual general
meeting of our Company after the Listing Date, whichever is sooner
(subject to retirement as and when required under the Articles of
Association). Either party may terminate the agreement by giving
not less than 30 days’ written notice, or such shorter period as the
parties may agree upon.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company has or is proposed to
have a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the employer within one year without
the payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The Articles of Association provide that the Company may by
ordinary resolution appoint any person to be a Director or remove
any Director (including a managing Director or other executive
Director) before the expiration of his or her term of office. In
addition, the Board may, by the affirmative vote of a simple
majority of the remaining Directors present and voting at a Board
meeting, appoint any person as a Director to fill a casual vacancy
on the Board or as an addition to the existing Board. Any Director
so appointed shall hold office only until the first annual general
meeting of the Company after his or her appointment and shall
then be eligible for re-election at that meeting. An appointment of
a Director may be on terms that the Director shall automatically
retire from office (unless he or she has sooner vacated office) at the
next or a subsequent annual general meeting or upon any specified
event or after any specified period in a written agreement between
the Company and the Director, if any; but no such term shall be
implied in the absence of express provision. Each Director whose
term of office expired shall be eligible for re-election at a meeting of
the Shareholders or re-appointment by the Board.
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The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association.
The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is
responsible for reviewing the Board composition, and for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
of Directors and succession plans for the Directors.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Company adopts the practice of holding Board meetings
regularly, at least four times a year, and at approximately quarterly
intervals. Notices of not less than fourteen days are given for all
regular Board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity
to attend and include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting.

For other Board meetings and Board Committee meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given by the Company. The agenda
and accompanying meeting papers are provided to the Directors
or Board Committee members at least three days before the Board
meetings or Board Committee meetings to ensure that the Directors
have sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately
prepared for the Board meetings or Board Committee meetings.
When Directors or Board Committee members are unable to attend
a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and
given an opportunity to make their views known to the chairman
prior to the meeting. Minutes of meetings are kept by the joint
company secretaries with copies circulated to all Directors for
information and records.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail on the matters considered by the Board
and the Board Committees and the decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board
meeting and Board Committee meeting are sent to the Directors
for comments within a reasonable time after the date on which the
meeting is held. The minutes of the Board meetings are open for
inspection by all Directors.
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During the Relevant Period, eight Board meetings and an annual
general meeting were held. Details of the Directors’ attendance in
Board meetings, Board Committee meetings and general meeting
are set out below:

RAEBERE R 7 ) \EEeezh—ARER
FRE BEELRFETLSR EEXECLE

BRRAGMFITEINMT -

Number of meeting(s) attended/Number of meeting(s) held

HEESEAEBTEERE
Nominating
and
Corporate
Governance
Audit Compensation = Committee Annual
Committee Committee meeting general
Board meetings meeting EARLHE meeting
Name of Director meetings EitZEE FMEEE EARZEE BR=R
EEpA B8R 2= g2 g2 BEXRE
Mr. YE Guofu 7/8 N/A 11 1/1 11
BEREEE
Mr. LI Minxin (resigned with effect from
May 16, 2023) 4/7 N/A N/A N/A 11
RIS E (520235 516 H#EEFHE)
Mr. ZHANG Saiyin (resigned with effect
from January 31, 2023) 6/6 N/A N/A N/A 11
REZ KL (F20237F 1731 HEFHT)
Ms. XU Lili 8/8 6/6 11 11 11
$>}\ 2K ki
Mr. ZHU Yonghua 8/8 6/6 i7al i7al 11
REESLSE
Mr. WANG Yongping 8/8 6/6 11 i7al 11
FoxFFRA
Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board “THESee9%I EEeFENEEATER

also holds meetings with the independent non-executive Directors
without the presence of other Directors each year.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Management Trading of Securities
Policy (the “Code”), with terms no less exacting that the Model
Code, as its own securities dealing code to regulate all dealings by
Directors and relevant employees of securities in the Company and
other matters covered by the Code.
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On November 15, 2022, the HKEX granted a waiver to the Company
from strict compliance with Rules A.1, A.3(a) and B.8 of the Model
Code in relation to the proposed Rule 10b5-1 trading plan entered
into by Mr. Ye.

Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and each of the
Directors has confirmed that he/she has complied with the Code
after the Listing and up to the date of this annual report.

RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION BY
THE BOARD

The Board is the primary decision-making body of the Company
and is responsible for overseeing the Group’s businesses,
strategic decisions and performance and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. The Board makes decisions objectively in
the interests of the Company. All Directors, including independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board
for its efficient and effective functioning.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Group are delegated to the senior management. The Board
regularly reviews the functions and responsibilities delegated. The
senior management needs to obtain approval from the Board prior
to entering into any significant transactions.

The Board reserves the right to make decisions on all substantial
affairs of the Company, including: to approve and oversee all policy
and matters, overall strategy and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those that
may involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment
of Directors and other major financial and operational issues.

The Company has adopted a policy to ensure independent views
and inputs are available to the Board. The Directors may, at the
Company’s expense, seek independent professional advice, views
and input as considered necessary to fulfil their responsibilities
and in exercising independent judgement when making decisions
in performing their duties according to such policy. The Board will
review the implementation and effectiveness of such mechanism on
an annual basis.

The Directors are also encouraged to independently consult with
the senior management of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board confirmed that corporate governance is a collective
responsibility of the Directors and their corporate governance
functions include:

(@ to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
in complying with legal and regulatory requirements;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the
Company;

(c) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and the
Directors;

(d) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance, and to make recommendations and
report related issues to the Board;

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report; and

()  to review and monitor the Company’s compliance with the
Company’s reporting policies.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee in compliance
with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance
Code.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. XU Lili, Mr. ZHU Yonghua and Mr. WANG
Yongping. Ms. XU Lili, being the chairwoman of the Audit
Committee, is appropriately qualified as required under Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules.
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee are:

(@)

(b)

©

to monitor the integrity of our financial statements and our
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements as they
relate to our financial statements and accounting matters;

to review the adequacy of our internal control over financial
reporting; and

to review all related party transactions for potential conflict of
interest situations and approve all such transactions.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available
on the websites of HKEX and the Company.

The Audit Committee convened six meetings during the Relevant
Period to:

review the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, and the audit report
prepared by the external auditor on accounting matters and
major findings during the audit process;

review the interim results of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the six months ended December 31, 2022;

review the quarterly results of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the three months ended September 30, 2022
and March 31, 2023 respectively;

review the financial reporting systems, internal control,
risk management systems and procedures, and the re-
appointment of external auditors; and

discuss matters with respect to the accounting policies and
practices adopted by the Company with senior management
of the Company.
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Compensation Committee

The Company has established the Compensation Committee in
compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate
Governance Code.

The Compensation Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Ms. XU Lili, Mr. ZHU Yonghua and Mr.
WANG Yongping and an executive Director, namely Mr. Ye. Mr.
ZHU Yonghua is the chairman of the Compensation Committee.

The primary duties of the Compensation Committee are:

(@) to review and make recommendations to the Board with
respect to Directors’ compensation;

(b) to evaluate the performance of our chief executive officer and
chief financial officer and review and make recommendations
to the Board regarding the terms of their compensation; and

() to review and approve the compensation of our other
executive officers and senior management.

The written terms of reference of the Compensation Committee are
available on the websites of the HKEX and the Company.

The Compensation Committee convened one meeting during the
Relevant Period to:

o review the remuneration policy and package for the Directors
and senior management of the Company and make

recommendation to the Board;

° assess the performance of executive Directors and senior
management of the Company; and

° review and approve matters relating to the share incentive
plan adopted by the Company, including the grant of RSUs.
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Remuneration of Senior Management

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the remuneration by band
of members of the senior management of the Company (whose
biographies are set out on pages 47 to 48 of this annual report) is
set out below:

Remuneration band
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Number of senior management

i &

Nil to HK$2,000,000

BREEREAR

£ 22,000,000/ 7T 2
HK$2,000,000 to HK$4,000,000
2,000,000;% 7% 4,000,000 7T 3
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee RERGCEEREZEES
The Company has established the Nominating and Corporate ~ AR AIEERCEMRA)) £327AKNI(EEE AT

Governance Committee in compliance with Rule 3.27A of the
Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code.

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. XU Lili,
Mr. ZHU Yonghua and Mr. WANG Yongping and an executive
Director, namely Mr. Ye. Mr. WANG Yongping is the chairman of
the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee.

The primary duties of the Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee are:

(@ in respect of its nomination functions, to develop and
recommend to the Board criteria for Board and Board
Committee membership, recommend to the Board the
persons to be nominated for election as Directors and to each
of the Board Committees, and develop and recommend to
the Board a set of corporate governance guidelines; and

(b) in respect of its corporate governance functions, to ensure
that our Company is operated and managed for the benefit
of all Shareholders and to ensure our Company’s compliance
with the Listing Rules and safeguards relating to the weighted
voting rights structures (if applicable) of our Company.

The written terms of reference of the Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee are available on the websites of the HKEX
and the Company.
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The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee convened
one meeting during the Relevant Period to:

° review the structure, size and composition of the Board;

° assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

° review the board diversity policy of the Company;

° consider the re-appointment of the retired Directors and
discuss matters relating to procedure of nomination of
Director candidate by Directors’ evaluation and succession
plan;

° review and implement the Company’s policy and practices on
corporate governance; and

° review and monitor the Company’s compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code and the relevant disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report.

Nomination Policy

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee would consider
the candidate’s relevant criteria that are necessary to complement
the corporate strategy and achieve diversity of the Board, where
appropriate, before making recommendation to the Board.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity
of the Board. Our Company recognizes and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at the
Board level, including gender diversity, as an essential element in
maintaining our Company’s competitive advantage and enhancing
its ability to attract, retain and motivate employees from the
widest possible pool of available talent. In particular, our Company
currently has one female Director, alongside three male Directors
and will continue to work towards enhancing the gender diversity
of the Board. Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, in reviewing
and assessing suitable candidates to serve as a Director, the
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will consider a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge, and industry and regional experience.
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Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nominating and
Corporate Governance Committee will discuss periodically and
when necessary, agree on the measurable objectives for achieving
diversity, including gender diversity, on the Board and recommend
them to the Board for adoption.

As of the date of this annual report, the Company had a total of
four Directors, including one female Director. In terms of gender
diversity of the Board, the Company targets to maintain at least
the current level of female representation in its Board and will
continue to seek opportunities to increase the proportion of female
members of the Board over time as and when suitable candidates
are identified. There is a diverse mix of educational background
and professional experience among the Board members. The
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee has reviewed
the Board Diversity Policy and considers that appropriate balance
has been stricken among the Board members in terms of skills,
experience and perspectives.

The Company values gender diversity and will continue to take
steps to promote gender diversity at all levels, in particular the
Board and senior management levels. In addition, the Company
is committed to providing career development for its staff with an
aim to promote them to senior management. The Company will
also take into account gender diversity in staff recruitment at mid to
senior levels so as to develop a pipeline of potential successors to
the Board.

The gender ratios in the Company’s workforce as at June 30, 2023
are as follows:
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Female Male

geg: B
Number As % of total Number As % of total
A HEENE D A HEENE D
Directors =% 1 25.0% 3 75.0%
Overall employees" 2888 T O 1,225 61.2% 778 38.8%
— Senior management® — S EIEE@ 2 40.0% 3 60.0%

The Company considers the current gender ratio in the workforce
to be appropriate and will continue to ensure that recruitment and
selection practices at all levels are appropriately structured so that
a diverse range of candidates are considered and gender diversity
across the workforce is maintained.

Notes:
(1)  Due to the protection of employee privacy (including gender) in some
overseas countries and regions, the number disclosed here only

includes the employees and senior management in China.

(2)  Details of the senior management are set out in the section headed
“SENIOR MANAGEMENT” on pages 47 to 48 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2023 to truly and fairly reflect the situation of the Group and the
results and cash flows of the Group.

The senior management of the Company provides such explanation
and information to the Board so as to enable the Board to make an
informed assessment of the financial statements of the Company,
which are put to the Board for approval.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the auditor regarding its reporting responsibilities
on the consolidated financial statements of the Company is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 86 to 91 of this
annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks (including the environmental, social and
governance risks) it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Company establishes
and maintains appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems. The Board oversees risk management
functions directly and also through the Audit Committee and the
senior management.

The senior management is responsible for the overall
implementation of risk management and internal control plans
and policies determined by the Board and managing the risks in
connection with all of the Company’s business operations. The
senior management identifies, assesses and takes measures
against any significant risks that the Company is facing, and
reviews the risk assessment report on a regular basis and reports
to the Board on a regular basis.
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The Board did not identify any significant unresolved areas of
concern during the Relevant Period.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management
and monitoring and overseeing the risk management and internal
control systems through the internal audit department, and
reporting and making recommendations to the Board where
appropriate.

With effect from the Listing, the senior management has confirmed
and will report to the Board and the Audit Committee on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
for each financial year.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the
management report and the internal audit findings by the internal
audit department, will review the effectiveness of the Company’s
and its subsidiaries’ risk management and internal control systems,
including the financial, operational and compliance controls, for
each financial year, and will consider whether such systems are
effective and adequate.

The annual review will also cover the financial reporting and
internal audit function and staff qualifications, experiences and
relevant resources. The Board, supported by the Audit Committee
and senior management, reviewed the management reports and
the internal audit reports. For the Relevant Period, the Board
considered the risk management and internal control systems of
the Company effective and adequate.

The Board is responsible for the handling and dissemination of
inside information. In order to ensure the market and stakeholders
are timely and fully informed about the material developments in the
Company’s business, the Board has adopted the inside information
disclosure policy regarding the procedures of proper information
disclosure. As such, the inside information will not be passed on to
any external party.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The approximate remuneration of the auditor for its audit and non-
audit services provided to the Company for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2023 is as follows:

B BB BN &

BRI 202346 A30 B LB BN FEE AIA R T
T MIEEA RIS 2 A&y T

Services rendered Amount
R &8
(RMB’000)

(AR¥T )

Audit fees® FETERO 14,700
Tax fees® Fi 18 & FH@ 1,130
All other fees® FTE HthBR® 264
Total &5t 16,094

Notes: MI5E -

(1) “Audit fees” represent the aggregate fees billed for the year listed
above for professional services rendered by our principal accounting
firm for the audit of our annual financial statements or services that
are normally provided by the auditor in connection with statutory and
regulatory filings or engagements.

2 “Tax fees” represent the aggregate fees billed for the year listed
above for professional services rendered by our principal accounting
firm for tax compliance and tax advice.

3) “All other fees” represent the aggregate fees for services rendered by

our principal accounting firm other than services reported under “Audit
fees” and “Tax fees”.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. ZHANG Jingjing (“Mr. Zhang”), our chief financial officer and
vice president, was appointed as our joint company secretary
with effect on the Listing Date. In order to uphold good corporate
governance and ensure compliance with the Listing Rules and
applicable Hong Kong laws, the Company has also appointed
Ms. WONG Hoi Ting (“Ms. Wong”) of TMF Hong Kong Limited
(a company secretarial services provider), to act as another joint
company secretary and to provide assistance to Mr. Zhang for
performing his duties as a company secretary of the Company. Ms.
Wong'’s primary contact person at the Company is Mr. Zhang.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, each of Mr. Zhang
and Ms. Wong has undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has discretion on whether to distribute dividends,
subject to certain requirements of Cayman Islands law. In addition,
our Shareholders may by ordinary resolution declare a dividend,
but no dividend may exceed the amount recommended by the
Board. In either case, all dividends are subject to certain restrictions
under Cayman Islands law, namely that our Company may only pay
dividends out of profits or share premium account, and provided
always that in no circumstances may a dividend be paid if this
would result in our Company being unable to pay its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business. Even if we decide to pay
dividends, the form, frequency and amount will depend upon our
future operations and earnings, capital requirements and surplus,
general financial condition, contractual restrictions and other
factors that the Board may deem relevant.
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We are a holding company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. We
may rely on dividends from our subsidiaries in China and overseas
for our cash requirements, including any payment of dividends
to our Shareholders. PRC and other regulations may restrict the
ability of our subsidiaries to pay dividends to us. In particular, PRC
laws require that dividends be paid by PRC companies only out
of the profit for the year calculated according to PRC accounting
principles. PRC laws also require a PRC company to set aside
at least 10% of its after-tax profits, if any, to fund its statutory
reserves, which are not available for distribution as cash dividends.
Pursuant to the PRC Company Law, each of our PRC subsidiaries
may pay dividend from the after-tax profit after (i) it sets aside
as general reserves at least 10% of its after-tax profit until the
cumulative amount of its reserves reaches 50% of its registered
capital, and (ii) any losses of such PRC subsidiary from prior fiscal
years have been offset. Dividend distribution to our Shareholders
is recognized as a liability in the period in which the dividends are
approved by our Shareholders or the Board, where appropriate.

If we pay any dividends on our Shares, with respect to holders
of the ADSs, our depositary, as the registered holder of Shares,
will pay such amounts to the ADS holders to the same extent as
holders of our Shares, in proportion to the Shares underlying the
ADSs held by such ADS holders, subject to the terms of the deposit
agreement, including the fees and expenses payable thereunder.

As the Company attaches great importance to provide reasonable
return to investors, the Board has approved and adopted the
Dividend Policy on July 27, 2023, which aims to provide foreseeable
returns to the Shareholders. The Dividend Policy is effective from
July 27, 2023.

Pursuant to the Dividend Policy, subject to compliance with
applicable laws and regulations and the Articles of Association, in
principle, the Company is targeting an annual dividend no less than
50% of its annual adjusted net profit, a non-IFRS financial measure,
which is defined as profit for the period excluding equity settled
share-based payment expenses.

The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Company in respect of its future dividends and/
or in no way obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any
time or from time to time. There can be no assurance that dividends
will be paid in any particular amount for any given year.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business, performance
and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of
timely and non-selective disclosure of corporate information which
enables Shareholders and investors to make properly informed
investment decisions.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides an
opportunity for Shareholders to communicate directly with the
Directors. The chairman of the Board and the chairmen of the
Board Committees will attend the annual general meetings to
answer the Shareholders’ questions. The auditor of the Company
will also attend the annual general meetings to answer questions
about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the
auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
Shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing a
two-way relationship and communication between the Company
and Shareholders and maintains a website at https://ir.miniso.com,
where up-to-date information on the Company’s business
operations and developments, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are available for public
access.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the Company has
reviewed and considered the implementation of the Shareholders’
communication policy to be effective as the information of the
Company has been disseminated in a timely and effective manner.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings for
substantially separate issues, including the election of Directors.
Poll voting has been adopted for decision-making at Shareholders’
meetings. Details of poll voting procedures are included in the
circular dispatched to Shareholders. The circular also includes
relevant details of proposed resolutions and/or biographies of the
Directors standing for election. The results of the voting are posted
on the websites of the Company and the HKEX in a timely manner
after each general meeting of the Shareholders.
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CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING AND PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at the
Company’s general meetings according to Articles of Association.
Extraordinary general meetings of the Company may be convened
on the written requisition of any one or more members holding,
as at the date of deposit of the requisition, in aggregate Shares
representing not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company which carry the right to vote at general meetings of the
Company. The requisition must state the objects of the meeting and
the resolutions to be added to the meeting agenda, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office
of the Company, and may consist of several documents in like form
each signed by one or more requisitionists. If the Directors do not
within twenty-one (21) calendar days from the date of the deposit
of the requisition duly proceed to convene a general meeting
to be held within a further twenty-one (21) calendar days, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company which carry the right to vote
at general meetings, may themselves convene a general meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of three calendar months after the expiration of the said twenty-one
(21) calendar days.

As regards proposing a person to stand for election as a Director,
relevant procedures are available on the Company’s website.

ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not
normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following for the attention of the joint company
secretaries:

Address: 8/F, M Plaza, No. 109, Pazhou Avenue, Haizhu District,

Guangzhou 510000, Guangdong Province, China
Email: ir@miniso.com
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For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. The information of the Shareholders may be disclosed as
required by law.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company adopted the Amended and Restated Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Company on July 11, 2022, which
took effect from the Listing Date. During the Relevant Period, there
was no change in the Amended and Restated Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of
the Company or Any of Its Associated Corporations

As at June 30, 2023, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO, which were
required (a) to be notified to the Company and the HKEX pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) to be recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO; or (c) as otherwise notified to the Company and the HKEX
pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

Interest in the Shares

EEiRE

EERESTHAERA QA HEMEEE
ER R - EEER G R EERPHEERLR

2023F6 A30H - EERARRREITHRAER
AARSHEMEEAE (TEA(EFRBEKD) &5
XVER) KRR - AR MEEE R R A (@)IRIE
(7& f’f}&ﬂﬁfﬂﬂﬁw%XV%%?&%S’MBL%DZJS’A
AN ERE AR (BRERIE(ESFRPE
1&01) & 11%?%82”‘{’&&%&%%%%%E@ﬁéﬁn&m
2 k(o) R AR WEHM 5 REEED) &
32 FEME LD MHER AR  (c)RIFZLE
SFRPBAARA 7&%“}5&&’3%\ MAEEINAT

R R

Number of

Shares underlying
outstanding options/
restricted shares/
restricted share

units granted

Approximate %

RITHEHERME  of shareholding
Numberof ERHZREIKHB in our Company
Capacity/Nature of interest Shares PR &I R AT BN RARA TR RE
55 ERtE REGEE HEARGEE BAED R
Mr. Ye Interest in controlled corporations/founder of 789,541,061@ (L) - 62.5%
a discretionary trust/beneficiary of a trust/
interest of spouse
BaEa TEBEE BEEERIABRZEA
EE%&A
Ms. XU Lili Beneficial interest - 20,0009 (L) 0.002%
TREBRBR A+ Eanta
Mr. ZHU Yonghua Beneficial interest - 62,5001 (L) 0.005%
REERE Bagn
Notes: B s

(1) The calculation is based on the total number of 1,263,689,685 Shares
in issue as at June 30, 2023. The letter “L” stands for long position.

) Represents () 328,290,482 Shares held by Mini Investment Limited;
(i) 203,401,382 Shares held by YGF MC Limited; and (iii) 257,849,197
Shares held by YYY MC Limited. For further details of Mr. Ye’s
interest in our Company, please see the section headed “Substantial
Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying
Shares” on the next page.

3) Represents Ms. Xu’s entitlement to receive up to 20,000 Shares
pursuant to the exercise of options granted to her under the 2020
Share Incentive Plan.

4) Represents Mr. Zhu’s entitlement to receive up to 62,500 Shares
pursuant to the vesting of RSUs granted to him under the 2020 Share

— Incentive Plan.
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Save as disclosed above, as at June 30, 2023, so far as is known
to any Director or the chief executive of the Company, none of the
Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required to be notified to the
Company and the HKEX pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO; (b) were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required,
pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the
HKEX.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares and Underlying Shares

As at June 30, 2023, the following persons (other than the Directors
and chief executive of the Company whose interests have been
disclosed in this annual report), had an interest or short position in
the Shares and underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company and the HKEX pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO or as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:
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Approximate

% of
shareholding
in our
Number of Company!"
Capacity/Nature of interest Shares R RQ B RRE
B Rt ROEHE HHEABESE
YYY MC Limited® Beneficial interest 257,849,197(L) 20.4%
YYY MC Limited® BaER
YYY Development Limited® Interest in controlled corporation 257,849,197(L) 20.4%
YYY Development Limited® R EE R
YGF MC Limited® Beneficial interest 203,401,382(L) 16.1%
YGF MC Limited® BaER
Mini Investment Limited® Beneficial interest 328,290,482(L) 26.0%
Mini Investment Limited® EmEm
YGF Development Limited® Interest in controlled corporation 328,290,482(L) 26.0%
YGF Development Limited® R AR
Mr. Ye®@e“o) Interest in controlled corporations/founder of a 789,541,061(L) 62.5%
discretionary trust/beneficiary of a trust/interest
of spouse
SRR R LR BIBEERIA EEREA S
Ao fE i e
Ms. Yang®®@®) Interest in controlled corporations/founder of 789,541,061(L) 62.5%

a discretionary trust/beneficiary of a trust/

interest of spouse
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Notes:

Q)

The calculation is based on the total number of 1,263,689,685 Shares
in issue as at June 30, 2023. The letter “L” stands for long position.

YYY MC Limited is wholly-owned by YYY Development Limited,
a limited liability company incorporated under the laws of BVI. All
shares of YYY Development Limited are held by TMF (Cayman)
Ltd. on behalf of YYY Trust, with TMF (Cayman) Ltd. as the trustee,
and Ms. Yang and her family members as beneficiaries. Ms. Yang
is both the settlor and protector of YYY Trust and is deemed to be
the controlling person of the YYY Trust. Under the SFO, Ms. Yang
is deemed to be interested in all the interests in our Company held
by YYY MC Limited. A loan arrangement has been entered with an
authorised institution as defined in the Banking Ordinance (the “Loan
Arrangement”), pursuant to which the 257,849,197 Shares held by
YYY MC Limited are subject to share pledge to another authorised
institution as defined in the Banking Ordinance as security agent (the
“Security Agent”).

YGF MC Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Ye. Pursuant to the Loan
Arrangement, 133,889,560 Shares held by YGF MC Limited are
subject to share pledge to the Security Agent; 60,615,822 Shares and
8,896,000 Shares (in the form of ADSs) held by YGF MC Limited are
placed in escrow and are subject to negative pledge covenants and
restrictions on disposal.

Mini Investment Limited is wholly-owned by YGF Development
Limited, a limited liability company incorporated under the laws
of BVI. All shares of YGF Development Limited are held by TMF
(Cayman) Ltd. on behalf of YGF Trust, with TMF (Cayman) Ltd. as
the trustee, and Mr. Ye and his family members as beneficiaries. Mr.
Ye is both the settlor and the protector of YGF Trust and is deemed
to be the controlling person of the YGF Trust. Under the SFO, Mr.
Ye is deemed to be interested in all the interests in our Company
held by Mini Investment Limited. Pursuant to the Loan Arrangement,
328,290,482 Shares held by Mini Investment Limited, are placed in
escrow and are subject to negative pledge covenants and restrictions
on disposal.

Mr. Ye and Ms. Yang are spouses, and are therefore deemed to be
interested in the equity interests held by each other.
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Save as disclosed above, as at June 30, 2023, no person, other
than the Directors whose interests are set out in the section headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company or any
of its Associated Corporations” had an interest or short position in
the Shares and underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company and the HKEX pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were required to be recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO.

2020 SHARE INCENTIVE PLAN

The 2020 Share Incentive Plan was first adopted by the Board
in September 2020 and was further amended in June 2022, the
amendments of which took effect upon the Listing. Since the
Listing, the 2020 Share Incentive Plan was subject to Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules. The Company relies on the transitional
arrangements provided for under the new Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules which became effective on January 1, 2023.

The principal terms of the 2020 Share Incentive Plan, as amended,
are as described below.

Purpose

The purposes of the 2020 Share Incentive Plan are to attract
and retain qualified personnel, provide incentives to employees,
consultants and directors of our Group, and promote the success
of our business.

Eligible Participants

Eligible participants include employees, consultants, and directors
of our Group (the “Participants”). The plan administrator may,
from time to time, select from among all Participants to whom
awards in the form of share options (the “Options”), a right to
purchase restricted Shares (the “Restricted Shares”) or a right to
purchase RSUs (collectively, the “Awards”), will be granted and will
determine the nature and amount of each Awards.

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum aggregate number of Shares that may be issued is
147,301,128 Shares (the “Scheme Mandate”) of which only up to
71,485,122 Shares may be issued pursuant to Awards granted in
the form of Options.
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As of July 1, 2022, Awards representing 5,349,548 Shares were
available for grant under the 2020 Share Incentive Plan. During the
Reporting Period, RSUs representing a total of 6,561,596 underlying
Shares were granted to eligible Participants pursuant to the 2020
Share Incentive Plan. As of June 30, 2023, Awards representing
6,968,140 Shares were available for grant under the 2020 Share
Incentive Plan.

As of July 1, 2022, 54,715,080 new Shares were available for issue
under the Scheme Mandate. During the Reporting Period, no new
Shares were issued pursuant to the 2020 Share Incentive Plan. As
of June 30, 2023 and the Latest Practicable Date, 48,527,444 new
Shares (representing approximately 3.9% of the weighted average
number of Shares of the Company as of the Latest Practicable
Date) were available for issue under the Scheme Mandate.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all Options that may be granted in aggregate does not exceed 10%
of the total number of Shares in issue and is subject to an annual
limit of 3% of the total number of Shares in issue in any financial
year.

Remaining life and option period

The 2020 Share Incentive Plan commenced in September 2020 and
shall continue in effect for a term of ten years with a remaining life
of seven years, unless sooner terminated under the terms of the
2020 Share Incentive Plan.

The plan administrator shall determine the time or times at which
an option may be exercised in whole or in part, including exercise
prior to vesting; provided that the term of any option granted under
the 2020 Share Incentive Plan shall not exceed ten years. The plan
administrator shall also determine any conditions, if any, that must
be satisfied before all or part of an option may be exercised. There
is no minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised.

Vesting period

In general, the plan administrator determines the vesting schedule,
which is specified in the relevant award agreement.
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Limit for each Participant

Unless approved by the Shareholders in general meeting, the total
number of Shares issued and to be issued upon the exercise of
Options granted and to be granted under the 2020 Share Incentive
Plan and any other plan of our Company to an eligible Participant
within any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the Shares
issued and outstanding at the date of any grant.

Consideration and exercise price

The principal terms of the 2020 Share Incentive Plan does not
specify the amount payable on application or acceptance of the
Awards and the period within which payments or calls must or
may be made. The plan administrator determines the terms and
conditions of any award granted pursuant to the 2020 Share
Incentive Plan, including, but not limited to, the exercise price,
grant price, or purchase price. The plan administrator determines
the exercise price for each award, which is stated in the relevant
award agreement shall not be lower than the fair market value of
the Shares on the date of grant, which shall be the higher of: (i) the
closing sales price for such Shares or securities as quoted on the
principal exchange or system on which the Shares or securities
of our Company are listed (as determined by the Board or the
committee delegated with the authority to administer the plan) on
the date of grant, and (ii) average closing sales price as quoted on
the principal exchange or system on which the Shares or securities
of our Company are listed for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant.

Outstanding Options, Restricted Shares and RSUs granted

As of June 30, 2023, the number of underlying Shares pursuant to
the outstanding Options granted amounted to 5,701,396 Shares,
representing approximately 0.45% of the issued Shares. The
outstanding Options are held by 178 grantees. Up to a maximum of
48,527,444 Shares may be further issued upon the exercise of the
Options to be granted under the 2020 Share Incentive Plan. Of the
5,701,396 Options, 2,114,496 have vested and 3,586,900 remained
unvested as of June 30, 2023. All the Options under the 2020
Share Incentive Plan were granted between January 16, 2020 and
October 15, 2021 (both days inclusive). The exercise price of the
Options granted under the 2020 Share Incentive Plan is US$0.00
per Share or US$0.036 per Share.

Save for the Awards which were lapsed during the Reporting Period
as disclosed below, there was no Award which was cancelled
during the Reporting Period.
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The Company has not granted further Options under the 2020
Share Incentive Plan after the Listing Date. Details of the
movements of the Options granted under the 2020 Share Incentive
Plan during the Reporting Period are as follows:

ARAFR_ET B HEBERE2020F 0 2B 2
BT ERERE - RIRES - RIE2020F A0 AUE
AHEIRTEREZLESFBENT

Weighted
average
closing price
of Shares
immediately
Number of Numberof  before the
Options ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~Numberof ~ Options  dateof
outstanding  Options  Options ~ Options  Outstanding exercise
asof  granted  lapsed exercised asof  during the
dyl, duingthe duingthe durngthe  Juned),  Reporting
22  Reporting  Reporting  Reporting 02 Period
BENNE  Perod  Peiod  Period EENNE HRARHES
Exercise TRIR REED  ABER  MEES 6RNA  EEAR
Name or category of granee  Dateofgrant  Vesting period Exercise period price SR BbM BANN BAEN  BOEM AEmtnE
ERAREER ok o ks kR FREHE BREYR BREEE RRRME RREHE  TOUOE
Xulll October 15,2020~ 50% of the number of Shares shall ~~ Maximum exercisable ~ US$0.00 20,000 - - - 20,000 NA
become fully vested upon grantand ~ termisten yearsfrom -~ per Share
50% of the number of Shares shall ~ the date of grant
become fully vested after 1 year of
the date of grant
izt ANF0ABE  BOTENSNARRFAT2EER ERTRERHIRRT  00%78R
RAZROS0NERRTEE-5  AEHRATE
Zhu Yonghua October 15,2020 50% of the number of Shares shall ~ Maximum exercisable ~~ US$0.00 per 20,000 - - 20,000 - USH4g8
October 15,2021 become fully vested upon grantand ~ termistenyearsrom ~ Share 18,436 - - 18,436 - US4
50% of the number of Shares shall ~ the date of grant
become fully vested after 1 year of
the date of grant
i ANFI0AE  BOEBOSOWENRTET2ERR ARFASEHIEET  000ETER
WAENABE  BhEEHSARRTEE-E  ARERATE
ThEE
Five highest paid individuals during ~ January 16,2020 5 years Maximum exercisable —~ USS0.036per 1,351,000 - - 6000 1345000 US2%
the Reporting Period in agaregate)  and September fermistenyearsfom  Share
27,200 the date of grant
REEHIZEEEAL(RE)  AFIRGRR oF ERFABERRT  006ET
ANF9727R nkERATE 8k
Other grantees (in aggregate) January 16,200 5years Maximum exercisable ~—~ USS0.036 per 7,509,056 - 184000 1331660  43%63%  USS334
and September fermistenyearsfom  Share
27,200 the date of grant
EfAREA (55 ANEIA6ER 55 ERFREEHRRT  006ET
0597278 kERATE R
Total 8,916,492 - 1841000 1376096 5,701,396
&it
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The Company has not granted further Restricted Shares under A2 AIF £ HHi%% BERIE2020F I 10 2B =t &
the 2020 Share Incentive Plan after the Listing Date. Details of BT EAEZREIARG - RS - RIE2020F 8%
movements of Restricted Shares granted under the 2020 Share RN ET B TR R BIAR (D EEFHENT ¢
Incentive Plan during the Reporting Period are as follows:

Numberof  Number of
Numberof  Numberof  Restricted  Restrited  Numberof

Restricted Restricted Shares  Shares with Restricted
Shares Shares lapsed restrictions Shares
outstanding granted during the lted  outstanding
asof  duringthe Reporting during the as of
July 1,202 Reporting Period Reporting  June 30, 2028
BENE Period MRES Period  EE2RBE
Purchase TR1R%S HEES BAM HEES 6A%A
Name or category of grantee Date of grant Vesting period price EANERS  RENRRH RR BENSE  BTAMIR
AN Y] RTEH 1 B EEE k&8 it G ROEE  RHRGHE  RHRGEA
Zhang Saiyin® December 26,2019 100% of the Shares shall become  US$0.036 per - - - - -
fully vested upon grant Share
REE N19F12R68  A0%HRNERRFETERE  00%6378R
Five highest paid individuals during the ~ December 26,2019 100% of the Shares shall become ~ US$0.036 per 74900 - - 74900 -
Reporting Period (in aggregate) fully vested upon grant Share
REEBTERRFEAT(5R) MOEI2ABA  0%HRNERETETRRE  00%637ER
Other grantees (in aggregate) December 26,2019 100% of the Shares shall become  US$0.036 per 2,465,520 - 43,752 2,421,768 -
fully vested upon grant Share
EfEA (B3 M9F12R60  A0%HRNERRFETEERE  0036378R
Total 2,540,420 - 43,752 2,496,668 -
s
Note: BEE -

1. OnJanuary 31, 2023, Mr. Zhang Saiyin resigned as the chief financial 1. R2023F1A31H8 REELAFEIARAERE

officer, executive vice president of the Company and executive MEE TRIBERBITESTURR A EER
Director as well as the authorised representative of the Company. * o EZRHIMHN2019F12 A26 B H - R
The Restricted Shares were granted on December 26, 2019 with 2019412 26 H 2202048 H26 H fi# 2t -

restrictions lifted on December 26, 2019 and August 26, 2020.
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The Company has not granted any RSUs under the 2020 Share
Incentive Plan which will be satisfied by issuance of new Shares
after the Listing date. Details of the movements of the RSUs
granted under the 2020 Share Incentive Plan which will be satisfied
by existing Shares during the Reporting Period are as follows:

Name or category of grantee  Date of grant

ERARATRA Sl ]

Zhu Yonghua Qctober 15, 2022
KEE A2F10 7158
Five highest paid individuals  December 6, 2022
during the Reporting Period  and March 20,
(in aggregate) 2023
MEEETASEEAL  ANERAGAR
(&%) ABE3 AT
Other grantees (in aggregate)  December 6, 2022
EfofRA(RH) AENAGR
December 6, 2022
2512768
December 20, 2022
A2E2A0E
March 20, 2023
PUPSERYEILR

Vesting period
FRY

80,936 Shares shall vest on the
date of grant and 62,500 Shares
shall vest on the first rading day
after the first anniversary of the
date of grant

80936 RRABHE T ARER
6500 TREE -
BERRAINEERS0EE

45 years

455

34 years
$4E
3years
3%
3years
3
3years

¥
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Purchase price

FEL

US50.00 per Share

000X ER

S80.036 per Share

00378

1S80.036 per Share
00363 TER
1S80.036 per Share
003657 5R
1S50.036 per Share
003%63TER
1S80.036 per Share
00363 TER

Closing
price
of Shares
immediately
before the
date of grant
RS
Performance target RFAH
FRAE G
N/A US$1.20
TER
One of the highest US§279&
paid individuals US84.37
has performance
fargets, please refer
fothe announcement
published by the
Company on March
21,2023 for detalls
E-25REALAR
L EE
DAR03E3R21A
i
N/A Us219
TER
N/A Uss279
gyl
NA US$2.65
R
NA US84.375
TR

Number

Fairvalue  of RSUs

of RSUs  outstanding

at the date as of
of grant  July 1, 2022

RRARG BEARE
EHRT TR1B8f

AR EAERN
MEE RAEMSA

US§1.20 -

US52.898 -
US84.45

US§289 -

US8289 -

Uss278 -

USs4.45 -

Number
of RSUs
granted
during the
Reporting
Period

it e
R
SRR
B8R

143436

5251800

485,000

302,400

11400

76,680

Number
of RSU
lapsed

during the
Reporting
Period
HEER
BAAH
ZRHR
Blgn

2,000

82,800

Number
ofRSUs  of RSUs
vested  outstanding
during the as of
Reporting  June 30,
Period 2023
MEE  BEaNE
BERN AR
SRHRG EANSRA
Bige RhEfsA
80,936 62,500
33400 5218400
154000 306,000
20000 289600
- 11,400
- 76,680

AR T B A T AR 52020 AR5 BT B
8T SRR B (WA BEATHAR 1 7 2 4
H) o RIEH - RIB2020F R M BIE T 0
SR AR5 B 7 (Y5 LATRAT RRAD T U A8 ) B
mT

A5

Weighted
average

Number closing price

of the Share
immediately
hefore the
date of
vesting
BRgE
BRAHA
ik
HHmE

USs1.2

Us§279

US§3.04

US6438

NA
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Weighted

average

Number ~ Number ~ Number  Number closing price
Closing Number ~ ofRSUs ~ ofRSU  ofRSUs  of RSUs of the Share
pice  Fairvale  ofRSUs granted [apsed vested ~ outstanding - immediately

ofShares  OfRSUs outstanding  duringthe  duringthe  during the asof  beforethe
immediately @t the date asof  Reporting  Reporting  Reporting  June 30, date of
beforethe  ofgrant July1, 2022 Period Period Period A28 vesting
dateofgrant  EBHRA HENRE RREH  REEE  ABER HZANE RONEE
RENEE BEWET TRIAET  REN  EXMM  CBEM 6ANAET BEREA

Name or category of grantee Date of grant Vesting period Purchaseprice  Performance target B7A ARG mANERH  SRMRE SRARE ERHRG AMERE  dmE

ARAEEAEH #3684 ol FEE S B WhsE  AAEE RAEREE  BRER  EfBR  BNEA RAEMER o4
June 21, 2023 3years US80.036 per Share~ N/A US§402  US$3.99 - 200880 - - 200,880 NA
A3E6A21H 3 0036£7 50} iR

Total - 6,561,506 107800 288336 6,165,460

4

Further details of the 2020 Share Incentive Plan (including the 20204F i BUEDET &l AV — T8 (B IE R AR
accounting standard and policy adopted for assessing the fair value D EEENE A BEMRMR G 5T E R R ) AR
of the share awards) are set out in Note 26 to the consolidated BB EN 126 ©

financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE, CANCELLATION OR BE - HE - FHRERAQATNES
REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED &5

SECURITIES

After the Listing and up to the date of this annual report, the TEEERFHRAE  ARAIREZMABNRE
Company repurchased a total of 166,000 Shares at an aggregate (HBRFrE AR A1) 1,694,572/ LG T H5

consideration (before all the relevant expenses) of HK$1,694,572 166,000 i 17 B A A A2 BT LA B (X (B (F0BR FTE AH 7S
on the HKEX and a total of 824,217 ADSs at an aggregate FiSZAT) 4,208,433 LB T H51824,217 R EE
consideration (before all the relevant expenses) of US$4,208,433 on FeEik - HERFHRAH - AU Ll XEER
the NYSE. As of the date of this annual report, all such repurchased Bfn R EBITFFEARIIE 58 o

Shares and ADSs have been cancelled.

Particulars of the repurchases made by the Company during the KRB EM BB EEARFH B ABRRELOER
period from the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report BT
are as follows:

HKEX 832 Fr

Price paid per Share Aggregate consideration

MR BROZTRER paid (before all the

Highest Lowest relevant expenses)

price price (HKS)

No. of Shares (HK$) (HK$) ENHERE

Trading Month repurchased B=E BIEE (HIRRFrE A RERE 2 AT)

X5 A4 BoROHE (B7) (&7T) (3&7T)

October 2022 166,000 10.38 9.98 1,694,572
20224F10 A

NYSE® £33 fr™

Price paid per Share Aggregate consideration

TERBROZFHESR paid (before all the

Highest Lowest relevant expenses)

price price (Us$)

No. of Shares (US$) (US$) EANRE

Trading Month repurchased BSE BRIEE (MBRATEAERARE X AT)

X HHB BERGA (%5T) (%5t) (%5T)

October 2022 2,921,668 1.3900 1.1150 3,662,897
202210 A

November 2022 375,200 1.4975 1.4025 545,536
202211 A
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Note:

(1) In addition, 9,090 ADSs representing a total of 36,360 Shares have
also been purchased on the NYSE at an average price of US$1.39
per Share during the period from the Listing Date and up to the date
of this annual report for the benefit of the Company’s ESOP platforms
pursuant to its currently effective share incentive plan.

The Board considers that the repurchases made by the Board
reflects the confidence of the Board and the management team
in the current and long-term business outlook and growth of the
Company. The Board considers that the repurchases made by the
Board is in the best interest of the Company and its Shareholders
as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold, or redeemed any of the Company’s
securities listed on the HKEX or on the NYSE during the period
from the Listing Date and up to the Latest Practicable Date.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL
OFFERING

On July 13, 2022, the Shares were listed on the Main Board of the
HKEX. The net proceeds from the Global Offering were HK$482.1
million. As of June 30, 2023, there has been no change in the
intended use of net proceeds as previously disclosed in the section
headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus.
The Company expects to fully utilize the residual amount of the net
proceeds in accordance with such intended purposes within 48
months from the Listing.
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Other Information

Hh & ¥

As of June 30, 2023, the Group had utilized the net proceeds as set B(Z£2023%F6 A30H - "&EECDBAMNMEHIEF
out in the table below: BN TR

Amount
of net
proceeds
utilized Amount
during the of net
fiscal year proceeds
ended unutilized
June 30, amount
2023 as of
REBZE June 30,
20234 2023
% of Amount 6H30H #ZE2023%F
total net ofnet IHEEE 6H30H
proceeds proceeds HIECEEH REVAHY
P8 RIE Frie™E R FTSRRIE P8 RE
RGO FHEESHE FHESE FHELHE
Purpose (HK$ million) (HK$ million) (HK$ million)
A& (BE8#ET) (BEE#&T) (BEE#BT)

Store network expansion and upgrade

P 5 AR SR A THAR 25% 120.5 120.5 -
Supply chain improvement and product development

HrEsE B L ME M 2 20% 96.4 96.4 -
Strengthen our technology capabilities

IR B APIR R IMTAE 20% 96.4 47.0 49.4
Invest in brand promotion and incubation

RENmMISHEEREE 20% 96.4 96.4 -

Capital expenditures, which may include, among others,
acquisitions of, or investments in, businesses or assets
that complement our business

BAR - AP At BREESRE BRPIEFLMNER

NEE 5% 24.2 24.2 -
Working capital and general corporate purposes
LEESN—RARIAR 10% 48.2 48.2 -
Total &5t 100% 482.1 432.7 49.4
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MATERIAL LITIGATION

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company was not
involved in any material litigation or arbitration during the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2023. The Directors are also not aware of any
material litigation or claims that are pending or threatened against
the Company during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023.

APPROVAL OF ANNUAL REPORT

The annual report and the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board on October 19, 2023.

Other Information

Hib & ®

B AR

REZE2023F6 A30H LBAFE - BrARFRATH
BEIN - ANRRWES A ERFREE - B
HE2023F6 A30H I FE - EFWTANFB
AR A EBBEX R E VIR ERFRRRE -

BEFERE

1202310 A19 B @R BB HZRBRBHRE
E#=2023%6 A30H LM BFE 2 FERSE Rz
AMBRE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR ET RS

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
MINISO Group Holding Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of MINISO
Group Holding Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) set out on pages 92 to 237, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at June 30, 2023, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
June 30, 2023 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”)
together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the consolidated financial statements in Cayman Islands, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgement,
was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. The matter was addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR RS

FREEITEE

RRETFERERERMNERAE - RREAH
HAEMBRRONEARAEEZNER - ZFHEHE
BABABRBGEMBEREA MDA R ETERE
B BT S ELEREHEBOER -

whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on this matter.

Assessment of write-down of inventories

FERERE

Refer to Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 124.

BB E R EMNT 18 RE 124 EHIETHECE

The Key Audit Matter
ARESE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BAMETNAREZEE

The Group had inventories of RMB1,451 million as of June
30, 2023.
K20236 A30H - BEEEHAFTEARK1451HET

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost or net
realizable value. Write-down of inventories is recorded
when estimated net realizable value is less than cost. In
determining write-down of inventories, the Group considers
factors such as inventory aging, forecasted product
demands, historical pricing trends and anticipated future
pricing strategies.

FEERKARAT L FENRESE AR - BRI 2RFE
BEREARAFEEREAR EREFSERER - E5Eg
ZEFERE  BAERTR  BECEBZAREHEEZ
EEFRBERE -

We identified the assessment of write-down of inventories
as a key audit matter because a high degree of
subjective auditor judgment was required in evaluating
the assumptions used to estimate the write-down of
inventories. These assumptions include forecasting future
product demand and estimating selling prices for future
promotional events.

BPEFEREN G AERESFE BRI LFERE
FTRRERE @ FERBMSENERHE - ZFHRRBER
KA RE PV TRHIARREMT R MG EE -

Our audit procedures to address this key audit matter
included the following:

HPIslL AR TRt FIRMNBHEF B

e We evaluated the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of certain internal controls over the
Group’s process in assessing the write-down of
inventories. These included controls related to the
Group’s estimation of forecasted future product
demand and the estimated selling prices in future
promotional events.

o HMFHE EBESREEIGFERERTIZAER A D
BRETFETAERL - B SSREYRREREET
B TR EAAR IR E fn i SR R st S B RSt B RE A0 FE i -

e We compared the prior period forecasted future
product demand to actual results to assess the
Group’s ability to accurately forecast.

o BMLLEBIEATEEIRRE mB KR EREE - T
B EREERTEAIRIEE S ©

e  We evaluated the Group’s forecasted future product
demand for a selection of inventory items by
considering historical sales trends and any known
changes that would impact future product demand.

s HMBEZERAEHEBE REMARTZERRERT
EHNENEY -t EEEETHFEHEBMEHRK

EmimH e
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR ET RS

Assessment of write-down of inventories

BB

Refer to Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 124.

BB E B BN 18R E 124 BB T BUE °

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BRETEE BN ET A REEZEE

We evaluated the Group’s assessment of the
estimated selling prices in future promotional events
for a selection of inventory items based on historical
pricing trends and the anticipated markdowns in
planned promotional events.
BUERBEHEBE NS HBEENTARARE
fh BEREEHETHEEREANAKERSS TGS
(EEIREE

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is

a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR RS
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

m MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chung Kai Ming.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong
October 19, 2023
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Consol idated Statement of Profit or Loss
BlEAERK
(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, except for per share data)

(UARBT 2 - BREREIEN)

For the year ended June 30,

HBZ6H30HLFE
2022 2023
20224 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AR¥T T
Revenue WA 5 10,085,649 11,473,208
Cost of sales $H& KA 7 (7,015,888) (7,030,156)
Gross profit £ 3,069,761 4,443,052
Other income E AU A 6 25,931 17,935
Selling and distribution expenses $5% & 7 #5f X 7 (1,442,339) (1,716,093)
General and administrative expenses — & & 1T B 52 7 (816,225) (633,613)
Other net income EL 54 A 8 87,308 114,106
(Credit loss)/reversal of credit loss on trade and other receivables
B 5 REMBKTIA (FEER) (FEBRERER (28,924) 1,072
Impairment loss on non-current assets FE78) & E R EE 12 (13,485) (3,448)
Operating profit & A& 882,027 2,223,011
Finance income B4 75U A 66,344 145,225
Finance costs B/ TR (33,396) (34,622)
Net finance income BA 7% A 558 9 32,948 110,603
Share of loss of an equity-accounted investee, net of tax
DIE AR E AR HIRE A RREE - BiRFHE (8,162) -
Profit before taxation %t 5i %8 906,813 2,333,614
Income tax expense P15 H Sz 10 (267,070) (551,785)
Profit for the year £ (58 639,743 1,781,829
Attributable to: JA T A L fE{h :
Equity shareholders of the Company 22 B4 5% 5 638,170 1,768,926
Non-controlling interests JE1Z % #E 2 1,573 12,903
Profit for the year £ R 639,743 1,781,829
Earnings per share SR Z 7|
Basic earnings per share (RMB) &% EAZF| (AREETT) 11 0.53 1.42
Diluted earnings per share (RMB) &% #58 &F| (AREET) 11 0.52 1.41

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements. Details of dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit of the year
are set out in Note 25(d).
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meEmRkEMEERER

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, except for per share data)

(UAAR¥ETF T2 - BREREEN)

For the year ended June 30,
HZ6H30HLEFE
2022 2023

20224 20234F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AR®T T

Profit for the year & A4 639,743 1,781,829

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
BEEAJREE T D 2B am YR -

Exchange differences on translation of financial statements of foreign operations

BMEBINEBIM B HRRNEN Z5 12 40,494 41,198
Other comprehensive income for the year &R & b 2 H K % 40,494 41,198
Total comprehensive income for the year £ A2 E W A58 680,237 1,823,027

Attributable to: SA T A £ fE{h :

Equity shareholders of the Company 72 & #E 25 A% 5 677,667 1,803,797
Non-controlling interests JF12A% #E 25 2,570 19,230
Total comprehensive income for the year F A2 H W 42 %E 680,237 1,823,027

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated BEMT ISt RAr G SR — & ©
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi)

(BARBEFT25)

As at June 30,
M6 H30H
2022 2023

20224 2023F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AR®T T

ASSETS ¥ &
Non-current assets FERENE &
Property, plant and equipment #7% - K= N & 1E 13 419,894 534,634
Right-of-use assets {§ & E 14 2,342,589 2,552,600
Intangible assets & & & 15 43,066 25277
Goodwill B2 19,388 21,069
Deferred tax assets {ELFiIHE &= 10(c) 154,333 161,617
Other investments H & & 17 - 73,870
Other receivables E fth & U 1A 19 28,274 74,641
Prepayments 8/ 78 16 201,682 -
Term deposits & 217 - 100,000
3,209,226 3,543,708
Current assets B &EE
Other investments Efhi&& 17 210,523 205,329
Inventories 175 18 1,188,095 1,450,519
Trade and other receivables & 5 K H i fE U 08 19 1,056,198 1,150,156
Cash and cash equivalents 3% MIR&EEY 20 5,348,492 6,489,213
Restricted cash &R 38 & 21 32,376 27,073
Term deposits & Hi1F 236,878 581,715
8,072,562 9,904,005
Total assets EE#AH 11,281,788 13,447,713
EQUITY #2
Share capital &4~ 25(a) 92 95
Additional paid-in capital & A& & 25(a) 7,982,824 7,254,871
Other reserves Efth & 25(b) 993,307 1,106,718
(Accumulated losses)/retained earnings (Z:1E18) Bz (1,944,581) 539,331
Equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ARD RIS R R (LS 7,031,642 8,901,015
Non-controlling interests FE3% R (4,242) 17,253
Total equity #5485 7,027,400 8,918,268
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e B SR R 3R

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi)

(AARBEFTZ25)

As at June 30,
K6 H30H
2022 2023

20224 2023F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AR®T T

LIABILITIES & 1{&
Non-current liabilities JE 7R B & (&

Contract liabilities & 48 & 5 51,658 46,754
Loans and borrowings B & & &5 6,503 7,215
Lease liabilities FHE & & 24 393,068 556,801
Deferred income #EEL =5 14,488 33,080

465,717 643,850

Current liabilities REIS &

Loans and borrowings B & & &5 445 -
Trade and other payables & 5 & E fth &~ 708 23 3,072,991 3,019,302
Contract liabilities & £ & & 5 361,522 292,887
Lease liabilities FHE & & 24 257,997 328,933
Deferred income #EFEU 25 6,295 6,778
Current taxation ENHATH 18 89,421 237,695

3,788,671 3,885,595
Total liabilities & 528 4,254,388 4,529,445
Total equity and liabilities ## & & E#%E 11,281,788 13,447,713

Approved and authorized for issue by the board of directors on AREE G 2023410 519 Btk R IRz -
October 19, 2023.

Ye Guofu Xu Lili BEE TRERER
Executive Director and Chairman Independent Director HWITEERER BYEE

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated BEFB e mAr e I S R A — 2B o

financial statements.

20287 EHE o RAIER Q



/

T2 [ [ 2 "S]USLUSIE]S [BIOUBUI POIEPIIOSUOD 9S8y} o Med [eibajul ue ale sejou BuiAuedwoooe ay |

o LR —CAREEHES L

> 1£000° L Y AT EEE « "000° L 9INY UBY} SS8| sem junowe ay]

00v'Le0'L  (eyeh) wole0L  (18S'vve’l) 80168 1676} 26509 (96.'¢9) UBLL b78786L % S50 5 06 H 9530024 2007 ‘06 dunp Je souejeg
- - - (091'72) 0977 - - = = = = (M(o)sz TH7, 2 54 8Mesal Lioinjess o uoneudosddy
96828 - 98828 - - - 96928 - - - - 90 Ll ETE ¥ suofoesUen pased-aleys papies b3
(091'28) - (09129) - - - - (091'28) - - - (Niase {484 soreys Jo aseyoindey
- - - - = = = 049 = (09 £ HERTEREERYNR)
Ue|d 9AUBOUI BJRYS WOJ} SaIRYS AJRUIDIO JO 8SeajaY

685 - 685 - - - - - - 685 ; (0)9z L) suondo Jo ssioiex
(6szo0e) - (6szo0e) - = = = = = (6szooe) - (plse ZAPIE D PaEjOsp PUBPIN
162089 05 199°119 0829 = 16v'6E = = = = = 3T ET 4 Jeal 8L} Joj WU BNSUBYRIAWIO9 [B)0]
6707 166 L6768 - - L6768 - = = = = LY EE ) lea au) 1o) aWooul NSUBYeIdd Jayi()
£v.'689 ! 0,889 01389 = = = = = = - E/]y 5 Jeal 8Ly Joj J0id
EETHHELTHISH 950000 R

2202 ‘0 aunp papua Jeak ay} Joj Ayinba ul sebueys)

7512599 (218'9) 9968590 (1628367 87979 (900'02) 181090 (0087 2L 096828 6 S0H LH LH 10004 4202 ' Anp 18 souejeg

Jdd [euonppy

2o

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
DA =|

(BARBEFT25)

fueduion ay} Jo Siapjoygeys Alinbs 0} BjgeINGUIY

45z 810N (elsz 10N

= Uigay X il ULgayY U4 g : . ‘ UL gAY

m 000.8INd 000.8Y 000,81 000, 000,81 000, 000.8INd
w s e T A W OuhE  gEgs .
&
B s SISoRUl [EI0L $8550] aNIasa) asesal aNIasa)l SalyS ansesal eldes [Elice0
V_Am m Buijonuoo palginwnay  Aioinels uoneisuel]  Juswifed finseai| Jabiapy d aleys

..m

@

o

[oN

]

MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023



8 %

'%A.

_u
o ql
ES

CHEERE S O 1R

o 1£000°} £ XY V4

2 [l b 24
NGRS

"SJUBLUSIE]S [BIOUBUI PBIEPI|OSUOD 9S8y} Jo Med [eibajul ue ale sejou BuiAuedwoooe ay |

"000° LEINY UBY) SSO| SEM JUnowe ay]

(AARBEFTZ25)

892'16

Al 6101068

Kee'6es

020'50}

29615

biy'el6

(050't8)

UELH

H8Y5TL

46

#500 B 02 H 95620244 €202 ‘0 dunr Je souejeg

66

~ == N /2
e

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi)

(e1)
8%

(hh2'2e)

08¢

(z82'0L¢)
120'80

917 (602'2)

- 28829

(1228

- 08¢

(z82'0¢)
120'0%

(216t

86806L

28879

We'Ie
(hh2'2e)
919

(602°2)

(kg'se)
(919)
08¢
(866°0¢2)

(z82'0z¢)
810'80

(B2

(Mg
%
(Na)sz
(Niels

(oz
(elaz

(p)sz
(i(e)s

PR K=
S)sese)Ul BuljoAu0a-Uou yym ArIpisqns & Jo uonisinboy
SYTRYEHE Sisaialu BujoAuod-uou Jo uopsinboy

75

T, 27E ¥ £ aniesel Aojnjels 0} uojieldosddy

@y zw@&?ﬂmu T3 1 SUOIJOBSUEI} PaSeq-aIeys Pafias Aynb3

(]EET Saleys 10 UOIE]lBoUED
)25 saleys J 8seyandey
HER TR EER O
Ueyd 9AUSOUI BJBYS WOJ SaIeys Aleulpio 0 sesipy
UELTLERE S AR
SJUN a1ByS PRIoLISa! 0 UoYaISANS PUE SUOGo Jo BSIIEX]
H/C4 1232 £ 59550 PRJelnUINage JO 180
SY[I(E 2 palejoep pusping

(PLLEmE ﬁ%@%w
BREHMENNERI LN SRUVEEES

$1S00 BOUBNSS] JAYI0 PUE SUOISSILILIOD
Bunumspun J0 18U ‘uoido JUSWIO|E-IBA0 8L O 8SI0I8X PUB
Buwayo aignd Buoy BuoH o} Burere) saieys Areuipio Jo 89ueNSS|

Leo'ezs'

062’6} 16208’}

926'89L'}

H'e

BHTNEE 14 Jeak o4 Joj 8LI00UI BNISUBYBIAWOD [BJ0]

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

8644
628'18L'

1269 H8'e
806} 926'89L1

926'39L'

H8'e

BETF i ok au) doy 8_8:_ ansuayeIduI0d aulQ

ﬁmmmgmﬁ HOCHOHEA00Z R
£202 ‘08 aunp papua Jeak ay} Joj Aynba uf sabueyy

00t'£20°.

LY
0008

guna

fynba
[eJoL

(ere'h) 9'10'L

LEgAY Uiy
0008WH  000.8NY

4 it

S)Salal [B10L
Buijosuod

(185'pp6'1)

LY
0008NY

shuluiea
paulejal
/(sass0]
pajejnuinaay)

80168

(M))sz Ry
(m)(aez s1oN
UigAY
000,8WY

aMI3sal
fioyneys
04d

1661

(n(alg 310N

LipaY
000.8IY

LT

aMasal
uone[sues|

265098

000, 8NY
RN
#EROHY
aMI9sal
Waw/ed
paseq-

(962'¢8)

(N{olszR
(1){alsz s10N
Ligdy
000.8INH
AT

Saleys
finseai]

Ak ARENA
fuedwio?) ayy Jo siapjoya.eys Kinba o} ajqeInquy

UGLH

() a)se R
()(@g 10N
LigY
000,8WY
L1

aMasal
JEET

128786

(e)ogRep
(e)z o10N
Ligdy
000.8WY
BUYE

26

(e)oem
(e)6g a10N
LLgHY
000,8WY
]

[endea
aleys

30N

S LH L5200 2202 ‘1 Aine 18 souejeg

20287 EHE o RAIER



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEBRERER

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi)

(BARBEFT25)

For the year ended June 30,
HZ6H30HLEE

2022

20224
RMB’000
ARET T

Cash flows from operating activities &% EEFT5EH LR

2023
2023 F
RMB’000
ARET

Cash generated from operations #& & FT15I8 & 22(a) 1,636,392 2,084,952
Income tax paid B FT15H: (230,130) (418,922)
Net cash from operating activities & & EB TSR L HEE 1,406,262 1,666,030
Cash flows from investing activities RE&E FE FTERER

Payment for purchases of property, plant, equipment and intangible assets

BEME - BERREARELEENNRK (290,108) (174,147)
Payment for acquisition of land use right U 8 + 3t {s FR#E (< 34 (944,099) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

BREME « BEREREARELEEMSTEA 351 5,224
Refund of prepayments & & A FIE - 200,000
Payments for purchases of other investments B & H {th 1% & &)1~ 7% (12,627,323) (7,880,763)
Proceeds from disposal of other investments iz & H{th 1% & Fr1S 78 12,525,477 7,808,395
Placement of term deposits 77 A E 17X (236,878) (761,371)
Release of term deposits H2ELUE HITF = 316,542
Interest income A2 A 66,344 145,225
Investment income from other investments E 3% & a93& & Y zs 63,801 42,921

Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired

WE—RHMEAE - MEMAERE 27 (683,483) 4,568
Net cash used in investing activities R & EE T AR & 48 (2,125,918) (293,406)

E MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEBRERER

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi)

(AARBEFTZ25)

For the year ended June 30,
HZ6H30HLEE
2022 2023

20224 20234F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AR®T T

Cash flows from financing activities Bi& EBI FTBR &R
Proceeds from Hong Kong public offering and exercise of the over-allotment
option, net of underwriting commissions and other issuance costs
BANFBE RBHEEREETERSHIE - R HES REAM TR - 469,683
Proceeds from capital injection from shareholders, subscription of
restricted shares, restricted share units and exercise of options

IREOEE - REBMREIMEARD - BREIVERR (7 B 1T BARE PR 1S RIE 589 382
Repayment of loans and borrowings €38 &7 & &7k 22(b) (5,295) (206)
Payment of capital element and interest element of lease liabilities

SRNHEBENER S MFEE D 22(b) (317,017) (346,008)
Payments of repurchase of shares [2§& %17 718 (82,160) (32,711)
Prepayments for repurchase of shares [B1 3% {7 78 1+ 718 (3,375) (3,693)
Interests paid E. {478 22(b) (1,000) -
Dividends paid & %5 25(d) (306,255) (370,787)
Payments of listing expenses relating to Hong Kong public offering

SNBBEAELAREEN EMAX (19,046) (42,616)
Net cash used in financing activities B & ZEI T AR & FE (733,559) (325,956)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

ReRkREEEY CRD) EIFE (1,453,215) 1,046,668
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

FHREREASEEY 6,771,653 5,348,492
Effect of movements in exchange rates on cash held

EXSEHHMERSNTE 30,054 94,053
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year F RIRERELEEY 20 5,348,492 6,489,213

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated BER s A e BT R ) — 35 ©
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

N

e SRR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

1

GENERAL INFORMATION AND LIST OF
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

1.1

GENERAL INFORMATION

MINISO Group Holding Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on January 7,
2020, as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law, Cap.22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
Company completed its initial public offering (“IPO”)
on October 15, 2020 and the Company’s American
Depositary Shares (“ADSs”) have been listed on the
New York Stock Exchange since then. Each ADS of
the Company represents four ordinary shares. The
Company’s ordinary shares have also been listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong
Kong Stock Exchange”) since July 13, 2022.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements
comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”). The Group is principally engaged in the
retail and wholesale of lifestyle and pop toy products
across the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and
other countries in Asia, America, and Europe, etc. The
Company does not conduct any substantive operations
of its own but conducts its primary business operations
through its subsidiaries.

m MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023
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—REMREEMBARRE

1.1

— &R

ZRIERERZBRERAF ([ARAF])
R2020F1 A7HRBERSHEAHIE
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EERGEERELETEROBZLFR S E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R AR MY AT

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

1 GENERAL INFORMATION AND LIST OF 1
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
1.2 LIST OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Set out below is a list of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries as at June 30, 2023:

—REMREEMBARRE (B)

1.2 XEMBARABE
TER&EH|ZAR D FR20234FE6 A0 H =
EBARRE :

Company name

DA BB

MINISO Universal Holding Limited BVI USD50,000/- 100% Investment holding
MINISO Universal Holding Limited HEHMAEE  50,000FT,/ - 100% 1&EER
MINISO Global Holding Limited BVI USD50,000/- 100% Investment holding
MINISO Global Holding Limited EBERRESE  50,000%7T, - 100% REER
MINISO Development Hong Kong Hong Kong HKD10,000/- 100% Investment holding
Limited and wholesale of
lifestyle products
MINISO Development Hong Kong B 10,0007,/ - 100% HREEREKELHE
Limited EmitE
MINISO Investment Hong Kong Hong Kong HKD80,100,000/ 100% Investment holding
Limited HKD80,100,000
ZRIBRREBRBRAT B0 80,100,000/ 7T,/ 100% REER
80,100,000/ 7T
MINISO Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HKD350,000,000/ 100%  Wholesale of lifestyle
HKD350,000,000 products
LRIEm (BE)BRAF BB 350,000,000/% 7T, 100% AEREEMBLE
350,000,0007% 7T
MINISO (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. (i)ii) PRC RMB146,862,372/ 100% Wholesale and retail
RMB139,693,019 of lifestyle products
ZRIEm (RM) AR E 27 F AR¥146,862,3727T, 100% AEREERBER
AE#139,693,0197T 8

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and business

ML, L
e sk

Group’s
effective
interest
(direct or
indirect)
FEEH
BERFI=
(B BE)

Registered/issued
and paid-up capital

B BITUR
BRI

2023 EHiE o FAIEM

Principal activities
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

1 GENERAL INFORMATION AND LIST OF 1 —RERMRFTEMBARRE (&)
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
1.2 LIST OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 1.2 FEMBARRE (B)
Group’s
Place of effective
incorporation/ interest
establishment  Registered/issued (direct or
Company name and business and paid-up capital indirect) Principal activities
FEEH
MR R B ETUAR BRRA=
ARER REBBE HEBRAE (E#EZEE)
MINISO (Hengqin) Enterprise PRC RMB10,000,000/- 100% Brand licensing
Management Co., Ltd. (ii)
HEIBM (BE)REEEAR A H AR #10,000,0007T,- 100%  mhHaT
MINISO International (Guangzhou) PRC RMB65,000,000/ 100% Wholesale of lifestyle
Co., Ltd. (i) RMB65,000,000 products
ZEIEmBRR (BMN) AR 2 F(i) F AK#65,000,0007T, 100% HAEREEMALE
AR#65,000,0007C
MINISO Youxuan Technology PRC RMB10,000,000/ 100%  Online sales of
(Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. (ii) RMBS5,000,000 lifestyle products
FEIBERR (BIMN) AR 2 F(i) I AK#10,000,0007T, 100% HAEREEMRLH
AR #5,000,0007T &
Pt. MINISO Lifestyle Trading Indonesia IDR53,289,350,000/ 67% Wholesale and retail
Indonesia IDR53,289,350,000 of lifestyle products
Pt. MINISO Lifestyle Trading Indonesia  ENE/EFign 53,289,350,000E0E/& 67% HEEREERHMER
53,289,350,000 /B & 3
MINISO Life Style Private Limited India INR669,540,570/ 100% Wholesale and retail
INR669,540,570 of lifestyle products
MINISO Life Style Private Limited ENE 669,540,570 E &L,/ 100% SEREERMER
669,540,570 EE Lt 28
USA MINISO Depot Inc. United States USD27,041,441/ 100%  Wholesale and retail
USD27,041,441 of lifestyle products
USA MINISO Depot Inc. el 27,041,4413571,/ 100% SEEREE@MER
27,041,44137C €

0”1 MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023



1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AN
I%IT\I:I

BAFS AR MY RE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

GENERAL INFORMATION AND LIST OF 1
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

1.2 LIST OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Company name

DEEB

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and business

AL, L
e e

Group’s
effective
interest
(direct or
indirect)
FEEH
BEFI=
(B BE)

Registered/issued
and paid-up capital

B BITUR
BRI

—RERREEMBARRE (&)

1.2 FEMBLRRE ()

Principal activities

MIHK Management Inc. Canada CAD100/CAD100 100% Wholesale and retail
of lifestyle products
MIHK Management Inc. nex 100407t/ 100 07T 100% AEREERMER
ZE
MINISO LIFESTYLE SINGAPORE Singapore SGD3,000/SGD3,000 100% Wholesale and retail
PRIVATE LIMITED of lifestyle products
MINISO LIFESTYLE SINGAPORE AR 3,000%7 M3 T, 100% HEREEMILER
PRIVATE LIMITED 3,000 il T €
MINISO VIETNAM LIMITED LIABILITY  Vietnam VND20,000,000,000/ 90% Wholesale and retail
COMPANY VND20,000,000,000 of lifestyle products
MINISO VIETNAM LIMITED LIABILITY  jifg 20,000,000,0005 /&, 0% HEREERBER
COMPANY 20,000,000,0005 /& eSS
TOP TOY (Guangdong) Cultural PRC RMB5,000,000/- 100% Wholesale and retail
Creativity Co., Ltd. (Formerly of pop toy products
known as TOP TOY (Guangdong)
Technology Co., Ltd.) (i)
MRRXRE (BR)XLRIEERAR  # AR #5,000,0007T, - 100% FIRItAEmAtEX
(ZA% : BERAHI (BFR)RHR €
BRAT)(i)
Mingyou Industrial Investment PRC RMB2,300,000,000/ 100% Development of
(Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. (i)(ii) RMB2,126,000,000 headquarters
building
ZBEZEE (BM)BER AR H AR #2,300,000,0007T, 100% BHBREFHE
AR#2,126,000,0007T
Notes: P -
()  These entities are wholly-owned foreign companies () ZEERHANPEIKZIONINEGEEAR
established in the PRC.
(i)  These entities are limited liability companies established (i) ZEERHOANPEIKINEREEAF

in the PRC.

2023 EiRE o BAER LK



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B TSR R M

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

Statement of compliance

The accompanying consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) as issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”),
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange.

Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group
are disclosed below. The Group has consistently applied
these accounting policies to all periods presented
in these consolidated financial statements, unless
otherwise stated.

The IASB has issued certain amendments to IFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group. Note 2(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to
the Group for the current accounting period reflected in
these financial statements.

Basis of preparation

The Group has adopted June 30 as its financial year end
date.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that other investments as explained in Note 2(m).

m MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023

2 EBEAETEE

(@)

BREH

BEPAR A M SR IR BR @ 5T AR
2 (BRI EIEEE ) RMH
(B B EER) ([(BERP B RELE
A1) ) RE B RHED]) B4 5E R E P
e - ZEH MR I E T (B BB PR
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AEBERANERNSTHRREENOT °
BRIERSBHRA  BRIAKERGE K
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R ©

B et EAEERCBME TRIERT
(B B REER])  ARAKRENE
A& 5T BAME B R A RSk A IR B BR AR
EREASEEHENBERNERNEREL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(©

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued the following amendments to
IFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group:

Amendments to IAS 16, Property, plant and
equipment: Proceeds before intended use

Amendments to IAS 37: Onerous contracts — Cost

of fulfilling a contract

Annual improvements to IFRS standards 2018-
2020

Amendments to IFRS 3: Reference to the
conceptual framework

None of these developments have had a material effect
on how the Group’s results and financial position for
the current or prior periods have been prepared or
presented. The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period as set out in Note 33.

Basis of consolidation

U

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(RIS - DARMT 25))
2 EBEAEFBEE(E)

© BBXREZE
RestEAEESC R A T(ERMY
BamERER) NERT - YR AEEHAR
SEHRERAERR

o (EBREFER)F165% (BT
) ME - BERRE - FHTE
R B Z FT1S IR

o (HEEEFER) F375% (EBF
) BRAR-BITEONMAA

o  2018FFE2020F (MR H R
AERI) 2 FIE

o (EBHBHREEA) FIK (61T
x) : HEAER R

ZEBLHAEERANZ2SE B
EME RS LM B T AW EE
HEAFE - NEBE W EEBMEI3AT
AR A & 5 HAR (R R A B2 ({3 2
Allgkaaie o

(d) HEEE
() MEIARFERER

B AR AXANEEIZFHERE -
MRAEERE2 B -BRER
i AJ B 5 A A W B m] 42 =] SR 3f R
BREHRERBEANENTEZ
FhH - RIAKEZEHIZERS - &
HEAREEEEHEARIE - AE
BEEMERN (RAREMEME
TRA) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B TSR R M

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

U

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

The financial statements of subsidiaries are
included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date on which control commences
until the date on which control ceases. Intra-
group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealized profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealized
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition
of a financial liability. Non-controlling interests are
measured initially at their proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets at the date
of acquisition.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as an allocation
of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company.

m MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d) Basis of consolidation (continued)

U

(i)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary, and any related non-controlling
interests and other components of equity. Any
resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.
Any interest retained in that former subsidiary is
measured at fair value when control is lost.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 2(h(ii)).

Interest in an equity-accounted investee
The Group’s interest in an equity-accounted
investee comprises interest in an associate.

An associate is an entity in which the Group or
Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(RIS - DARMT 25))
2 EBEAEFBEE(E)

) “HREEEE)
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BARSE RAREIE QR E R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B TSR R M

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

(ii)

Interest in an equity-accounted investee
(continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted
for under the equity method. Under the equity
method, the investment is initially recorded at
cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s
share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of
the investment (if any). The cost of the investment
includes purchase price, other costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of the investment,
and any direct investment into the associate
or joint venture that forms part of the Group’s
equity investment. Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the
Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and
any impairment loss relating to the investment
(see Note 2(h)(ii)). At each reporting date, the
Group assesses whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment is impaired. Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post- acquisition, post-tax results of
the investees and any impairment losses for the
year are recognized in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d) Basis of consolidation (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Interest in an equity-accounted investee
(continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate, the Group’s interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method,
together with any other long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate, after applying the ECL model to
such other long-term interests where applicable
(see Note 2(h)(i)).

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

() the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognized immediately in profit or loss as a gain
on a bargain purchase.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

110

(d)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

(i) Goodwill (continued)

(iv)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(see Note 2(h)(ii).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during
the year, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit
or loss on disposal.

Business combinations

Except for the business combinations under
common control as stated below, the Group
accounts of business combinations using the
acquisition method when the acquired set of
activities and assets meets the definition of a
business and control is transferred to the Group
(see Note 2(d)(i)). In determining whether a
particular set of activities and assets is a business,
the Group assess whether the set of assets and
activities acquired includes, at a minimum, an
input and substantive process and whether the
acquired set has the ability to produce outputs.

The Group has an option to apply a ‘concentration
test’ that permits a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is not a business. The optional concentration test
is met if substantially all of the fair value of the
gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single
identifiable asset of group of similar identifiable
assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BAREFHEZEGE)

(continued)
e R ()

(d) Basis of consolidation (continued) (d)

(iv) Business combinations (continued)

Business combinations involving entities under
common control

A business combination involving entities or
businesses under common control is a business
combination in which all of the combining entities
or businesses are ultimately controlled by the
same party or parties both before and after the
business combination, and that control is not
transitory.

The assets and liabilities assumed are measured
based on their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements of the ultimate
controlling party at the combination date.

The consolidated statements of profit or loss and
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
include the results of each of the combining
entities or businesses from the earliest date
presented or since the date when combining
entities or businesses first came under common
control, where this is a shorter period, regardless
of the date of the common control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated
financial statements are presented as if the
entities or businesses had been consolidated at
the earliest balance sheet date presented or when
they first came under common control, whichever
is later.

Differences between the total consideration paid
and the capital of the entities acquired under
common control are presented as merger reserve.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

112

(d)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

(v)

Asset acquisition

Groups of assets acquired and liabilities assumed
are assessed to determine if they are business
or asset acquisitions. On an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis, the Group chooses to apply
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is an asset rather
than business acquisition, when substantially all
of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is
concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group
of similar identifiable assets.

When a group of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed do not constitute a business, the overall
acquisition cost is allocated to the individual
identifiable assets and liabilities based on their
relative fair values at the date of acquisition. An
exception is when the sum of the individual fair
values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
differs from the overall acquisition cost. In such
case, any identifiable assets and liabilities that
are initially measured at an amount other than
cost in accordance with the Group’s policies are
measured accordingly, and the residual acquisition
cost is allocated to the remaining identifiable
assets and liabilities based on their relative fair
values at the date of acquisition.

When acquiring assets by obtaining a controlling
interest in a legal entity that does not constitute a
business as a step acquisition, the previously held
equity interest is included as part of the cost of the
acquisition and is not remeasured.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

e

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses (see Note 2(h)(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labor, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item and are recognized
in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives and is generally recognized
in profit or loss.

No depreciation is provided in respect of the
construction in progress.

The estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment are as follows:

Apartments
Leasehold improvements

30 years

Over the shorter of
lease term or the
estimated useful
lives of the assets

Office equipment 2 -5 years
Store operating equipment 2 -5 years
Motor vehicles 3 -5 years
Moulds 1-2years

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values,
if any, are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
if appropriate.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

114

(f

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortization (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and accumulated
impairment losses (see Note 2(h)(ii)).

Amortization is calculated write off the cost of intangible
assets with finite useful lives using straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives and is generally
recognized in profit or loss. Their estimated useful lives
of intangible assets are as follows:

Software 5 years

Amortization methods and useful lives are reviewed at
each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to direct the use
of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from that use.

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

@

Leased assets (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognizes
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for
short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less and leases of low-value assets which, for the
Group are primarily staff apartments with lease term
of less than 12 months. When the Group enters into a
lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalize the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with those leases
which are not capitalized are recognized as an expense
on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalized, the lease liability is
initially recognized at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortized cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or rate are not included in the measurement of
the lease liability and hence are charged to profit or loss
in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognized when a lease is
capitalized is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement
date, and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets also
includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset
or the site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
Note 2(h)(ii)). Depreciation is calculated to write off the
cost of items of right-of-use assets, using the straight-
line method over the unexpired lease term.

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

2 BEAETHEGE)

@

HEEE (&)

EREBAA (&)
EHERG R ARERAEREER
ENHEAE BTEEHERTER
12@ANEMEENEEZEEEM
g AREmM=HERTER12(EA
MEBR/REINE - EAKEH—HAK
BEBEILHEENR  REBRER
BUZAMELAEEHZHELETER
b - BAREAMEMEERBHBEE K
EHZERRFRGERRFEX

EHEEANLE  HEAGRKRHEEHR
ENEENRNREETIRER X
EREETRENFEESITINR - 40
REZEZEEZAE - BIRBEED
REERFEX - YIRERR - HERE
REBHEKAAER - FERAXKAER
MESEFTE o TKFEHE B XA ] &
HENRTEREHEAENTESD
REpEEELEN ST HEARETH

EHEENMBHANERREEDNS
WA E - RABRBEHERBENTR
TR LR FALE B 32 B 2 ST B E]
HEMK  UREEWEAVGER
R - FEEAMIERT - EREEERN
PRANIE BRI E M B ARR B E iR
EHRBEEREMAESANRAGE -
FREHRRE - BEEFHERESH
By - ERREERBEKARERGT
FERERE (F2RME2(h)(i) 5
Bk - TEMN BN ZREBEREMH
EREEENREMEEMANIER K
K o

2023F[EHE o ZAIER A



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AN
I%IT\IZI

BT R MY AT

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

116

@

Leased assets (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in
an index or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for
a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract (“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification. The only exceptions are rent
concessions that occurred as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic and met the conditions
set out in paragraph 46B of IFRS 16 Leases. In such
cases, the Group has taken advantage of the practical
expedient not to assess whether the rent concessions
are lease modifications, and recognized the change
in consideration as negative variable lease payments
in profit or loss in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the rent concessions occurred.

The Group presents right-of-use assets and presents
lease liabilities separately in the consolidated statements
of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets

U

Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognizes a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (ECLs) on financial assets
measured at amortized cost (including cash and
cash equivalents, restricted cash, term deposits,
trade and other receivables).

Other financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss, including other investments,
are not subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e.
the difference between the cash flows due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using
the following discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

o fixed-rate financial assets and trade and
other receivables: effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort. This
includes information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

118

U

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

° 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and

° lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items
to which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognizes a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk of the financial instrument since initial
recognition, in which case the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

U

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date
of initial recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Group considers that a default event occurs
when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realizing security
(if any is held); or (ii) the financial asset is 30 days
past due. The Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

o failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a financial instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

° an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

o existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have
a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability
to meet its obligation to the Group.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

120

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

U

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)
Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk is performed on either an individual basis or a
collective basis. When the assessment is performed
on a collective basis, the financial instruments are
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics,
such as past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the
ECL amount is recognized as an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognizes an
impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognized in accordance with
Note 2(t)(iv) is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on the
amortized cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less
loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

U

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income (continued)
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

° significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

° it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization;

° significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; or

o the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of
the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This
is generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows
to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognized as a reversal
of impairment in profit or loss in the period in
which the recovery occurs.
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(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

122

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, an impairment loss previously
recognized no longer exists or may have decreased:

° property, plant and equipment;

o right-of-use assets;

o intangible assets;
o goodwill;
o interest in an equity-accounted investee; and

° investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

° Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B TSR R M

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognized in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognized in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in
use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favorable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of
an asset.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognized in prior periods. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the periods in which the reversals are
recognized.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B TSR R M

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR45BIBLBASN -

HAR®BTTE5)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

Inventories

Inventories are finished goods which are held for sale,
including the products placed at franchisees’ stores,
and low value consumables to be consumed in the
ordinary course of business.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realizable value.

Cost of inventories is calculated using the weighted
average method.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognized as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognized.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realizable value is recognized as an expense in the
period the write-down occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognized
as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognized
as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Loss of inventories is recognized as an expense in
the period the loss occurs. For the products placed at
franchisees’ stores, the Group bears inventory loss up to
a pre-determined loss rate as agreed with franchisees.
The Group requires compensations from franchisees
for the inventory losses in excess of the pre-determined
loss rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

0)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognized when the customer
pays non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognizes the related revenue (see Note 2(t)). A
contract liability would also be recognized if the Group
has an unconditional right to receive non-refundable
consideration before the Group recognizes the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognized (see Note 2(k)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a
net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method (see Note

2(t)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognized when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognized
before the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract
asset.

Receivables are stated at amortized cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit losses
(see Note 2(h)(i))-

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECL in accordance with
the policy set out in Note 2(h)(i).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

126

(m)

Other investments

Other investments are classified as measured at fair
value through profit or loss (FVTPL). Changes in the fair
value of the investments are recognized in profit or loss.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortized cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of
new shares are recognized in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense is recognized in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs (see Note
2(v)).

Employee benefits

() Short term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognized
for the amount expected to be paid if the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation
to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the obligation can
be estimated reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(@) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

Contributions to defined contribution plans
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of
the PRC, the Group’s subsidiaries in mainland
China participate in a defined contribution of
basic pension insurance in the social insurance
system established and managed by government
organizations. The Group makes contributions
to basic pension insurance plans based on the
applicable benchmarks and rates stipulated
by the government. Basic pension insurance
contributions are recognized as part of the cost of
assets or charged to profit or loss as the related
services are rendered by the employees.

The Group also participates in a pension scheme
under the rules and regulations of the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance (the “MPF
Scheme”) for all employees in Hong Kong, which
is a defined contribution retirement scheme. The
contributions to the MPF Scheme are based on
minimum statutory contribution requirement of 5%
of eligible employees’ relevant aggregate income.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately. There are
no forfeited contributions for the MPF Scheme as the
contributions are fully vested to the employees upon
payment to the scheme. The assets of this pension
scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in independently administered funds.

The Group participates in various defined
contribution retirement benefit plans which are
available to all other overseas subsidiaries. A defined
contribution plan is a pension plan under which the
Group pays fixed contributions into a fund and the
Group has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to employee services in the current and prior
periods. The Group’s contributions to the defined
contribution plans are expensed as incurred.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

128

(@)

Employee benefits (continued)
(iii) Share-based payments

The Group operates certain equity-settled share-
based compensation plans, under which the
Group receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments of the Group.

The fair value of share awards granted to
employees is recognized as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in the share-based
payment reserve. The fair value is measured at grant
date, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the shares or share options were
granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled
to the shares or share options, the total estimated fair
value of the shares or share options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability
that the shares or share options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of shares
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognized
in prior years is charged/credited to the profit or
loss for the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share-based payment reserve. On vesting date,
the amount recognized as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of shares that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to equity). For shares
granted, the equity amount is transferred from
share-based payment reserve to share premium.

If new equity instruments are granted to the
employee and, on the date when those new equity
instruments are granted, the entity identifies the
new equity instruments granted as replacement
equity instruments for the cancelled equity
instruments, the entity shall account for the
granting of replacement equity instruments in the
same way as a modification of the original grant of
equity instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(@) Employee benefits (continued)

(iii) Share-based payments (continued)

(iv)

At the date the replacement awards are granted,
the entity accounts for any incremental fair value in
addition to the grant-date fair value of the original
award. The incremental fair value is the difference
between the fair value of the replacement award
and the net fair value of the cancelled award, both
measured at the date on which the replacement
award is issued. The net fair value is the fair value
of the cancelled award measured immediately
before the cancellation, less any payment made to
the employees on cancellation.

The Group recognizes the effects of modifications
that increase the total fair value of the share-based
payment arrangement or are otherwise beneficial
to the employee. If the Group modifies the terms
or conditions of the share awards granted without
reducing the number of equity instruments granted
in a manner that reduces the total fair value of
the share-based payment arrangement, or is
not otherwise beneficial to the employee, the
Group nevertheless continues to recognize as a
minimum the original grant date fair value of the
equity instruments granted (unless those equity
instruments are forfeited) as if that modification
had not occurred.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognized at the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when it recognizes
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

130

(r)

Income tax

Income tax for the period comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the period, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of each reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous periods. The amount of current tax payable is
the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid
or received that reflects uncertainty related to income
taxes, if any.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits. Deferred tax is not
recognized for:

° temporary differences arising from the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction
that is not a business combination and that affects
neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (or
deductible loss); and

° temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilized. Future taxable
profits are determined based on the reversal of relevant
taxable temporary differences. If the amount of taxable
temporary differences is insufficient to recognize a
deferred tax asset in full, the future taxable profits,
adjusted for reversals of existing temporary differences,
are considered, based on the business plans for
individual subsidiaries in the Group. Deferred tax assets
are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilized. Such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at
each reporting date and recognized to the extent that it
has become probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are
expected to be applied to temporary differences when
they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date, and reflects uncertainty
related to income taxes, if any. The measurement of
deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

132

(r)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if all of the following conditions are met:

° the taxable entity has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities;

o they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

o the same taxable entity; or

o different taxable entities, which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets
on a net basis, or to realize the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of
the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it
arises from the sale of products and the provision of
services.

Revenue is recognized when control over the product
or service is transferred to the customer, at the amount
of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled in exchange for the satisfaction
of a specific performance obligation, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any sales rebates and sales return.

The Group allocates the transaction price expected
to be received from franchisees or distributors to
different performance obligations based on their relative
standalone selling prices. In particular, the consideration
in arrangements with franchisees and distributors
includes sales-based amounts. Such sales-based
amounts are excluded from the transaction price until
the sales by franchisees have occurred and would be
allocated entirely to the franchise/distributor license fees
as they relate entirely to the Group’s promise to provide
franchisees/distributors access to the Group’s brand
name and trademarks.

The Group takes advantage of the practical expedient
in paragraph 63 of IFRS 15 and does not adjust the
consideration for the effects of any significant financing
component if the expected period of financing is 12
months or less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

() Revenue and other income (continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Sales of products
Retail sales in self-operated stores
Revenue from retail sales to customers in self-
operated stores is recognized at the point when
the end customer takes possession of and pays
for the products.

Product sales to franchisees

The Group has entered into a series of agreements
with certain franchisees, primarily in the PRC,
Indonesia and Vietnam, which mainly include
a license agreement and a sales agreement
(collectively “Franchise Agreements”), whereby the
franchisees are licensed to operate the franchised
stores and are authorized to sell, in their own retail
stores, the products that they have purchased
from the Group. Revenue from sales to these
franchisees is recognized at the point when they
obtain the legal title of the product and become
obliged to pay for the products, which is when the
franchisees sell the product to their customers in
the franchisees’ stores.

For product sales to franchisees, the Group has
determined that the franchisees are the customers
of the Group. The franchisees operate retail stores
at their own chosen locations under the framework
set out under the Franchise Agreements. At
inception of the franchise arrangement, franchisees
are required to place a deposit with the Group
which covers the estimated maximum value of
merchandise that their stores may hold throughout
the franchise period, and this amount is reviewed
upon renewal of the franchisee arrangement. The
deposit is refundable at the expiry of the Franchise
Agreement, provided that the franchisees have no
remaining merchandise unsold and have settled
other balances with the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

Revenue and other income (continued)

U

Sales of products (continued)

Product sales to franchisees (continued)

The franchisees employ and manage their
own staff to operate the stores and serve their
customers (i.e. end consumers who visit the
stores), and bear the costs associated with the
operation. The franchisees’ retail stores generally
carry a wide range of merchandise that they
exercise discretion to select from the Group’s
array of product categories.

The franchisees are responsible for the placement,
physical custody and condition of the merchandise
that they have selected after the deliveries are
accepted in stores. They also control the physical
access to merchandise in possession through their
operation of the retail stores. In general, the Group
does not have any obligation or practice to accept
any return of unsold products, except for rare
cases such as a latent defect subject to a product
recall or certain limited seasonal items that have
passed their sales season.

The franchisees have the right to price their
merchandise within a specified range of the
recommended retail price set by the Group. They
also have the ability to carry out discretionary
promotional campaigns for their stores or decide
whether to participate in a promotional campaign
launched by the Group. The franchisees can
offer more discounts on selected items beyond
the range specified in discretionary promotional
campaigns, and will have to bear a substantial
portion of reduced margin from lowering the sales
price for such campaigns.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

136

(®)

Revenue and other income (continued)

U

Sales of products (continued)

Sales to offline distributors

The Group has entered into a series of agreements
with certain offline distributors, primarily overseas,
which mainly include a master license agreement
and a sales agreement, whereby the distributors
are authorized to sub-license the operation of
franchised stores in its authorized territory and sell
the products that they have purchased from the
Group to the franchised stores in its authorized
territory. Revenue from sales of products to these
distributors is recognized at the point when the
products have been shipped from or delivered to
the specific locations according to the detailed
agreement between the Group and distributors.
Revenue is recognized based on the contract
price, net of sales rebates.

Online sales

Revenue from online sales to customers, which
are conducted through the Group’s self-operated
online stores on WeChat Mini Program and third-
party e-commerce platforms, is recognized at
the point when the products are delivered to
customers. The Group has also entered into
agreements with certain online distributors, who
are authorized to sell products to customers
through their online stores on various major
e-commerce platforms. Revenue is recognized
when control of the goods has transferred
according to respective agreed terms of delivery,
which is at the point in time when the distributor
obtains control of the distinct good.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

() Revenue and other income (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

License fees, sales-based royalties and
sales-based management and consultation
service fees

Franchisees and distributors are required to
provide non-refundable upfront payments
in exchange for the franchise right or sub-
license right, which represent primarily their
right to access the Group’s brand name and
trademarks. In addition, franchisees are also
required to pay sales-based royalties and sales-
based management and consultation services
fees for such access. The fixed component of
such royalties is recognized as revenue over the
estimated license period, while the sales-based
component is recognized as revenue when the
related sales occur.

Customer loyalty program

The Group maintains spend-based customer
loyalty programs for MINISO and TOP TOY
brands, under which loyalty points are rewarded
to end customers based on the spend level and
are redeemable in future purchases when certain
criteria is met. Transaction price is allocated to the
product(s) and the loyalty points are rewarded on
a relative standalone selling price basis. Revenue
associated with the price allocation of loyalty
points rewarded is deferred and a corresponding
liability is established in contract liabilities.

The Group has established a premium paid
membership program to cultivate customer loyalty
and encourage repeat purchases. Under such
membership program, customers pay membership
fee in advance for subscriptions of premium
members in a specific membership period, which
ranges from 1 month to 1 year. Premium members
are entitled to special prices for select products
and additional discounts throughout membership
period. The membership fee is recognized as
revenue over the specific membership period.
Unamortized portion of upfront membership fees
received were recognized as contract liabilities.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

138

() Revenue and other income (continued)

(iv)

(v)

Interest income
Interest income is recognized as it accrues using
the effective interest method.

Government grants

Government grants are recognized in the
statement of financial position initially when there
is reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the
Group for expenses incurred are recognized as
other income in profit or loss based on the timing
of when the related costs for which the grants are
intended to compensate are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are
deducted from the carrying amount of the asset
and consequently are effectively recognized in
profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by
way of reduced depreciation expense.

(u) Translation of foreign currencies

U

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Item included in the financial statements of
each entity in the Group are measured using the
currency that best reflects the economic substance
of the underlying events and circumstances
relevant to the entity (the “functional currency”).
The functional currency of the Company is United
States Dollars (“USD”). As the major operations of
the Group are within the PRC, the Group presents
its consolidated financial statements in Renminbi
(“RMB?”), unless otherwise stated. All values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into the respective functional currencies
of Group companies at the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions and balances (continued)
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognized in profit or loss and presented within
other net income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured based on historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated at the exchange rate at the
date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated at the exchange rate at the
date when the fair value was determined.

Foreign operations

The results of foreign operations are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates approximating the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates at the end of
each reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognized in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in
the translation reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences in the
translation reserve relating to that foreign operation
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when
the profit or loss on disposal is recognized.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use are capitalized as part of the cost of that
asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B TSR R M

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(W)

Related parties

(@)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(W)

Related parties (continued)

° The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

° A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

° The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the type or class of customers, the methods
used to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized prospectively.

Information about judgements made in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts
recognized in the financial statements is included in the
following notes:

° Note 2(t)(i)-product sales to franchisees: whether
revenue from product sales to franchisees is recognized
at the point when the franchisees sell the product to
their customers in the franchisees’ stores

° Note 2(t)(ii)-license fees, sales-based royalties and
sales-based management and consultation services
fees: whether revenue is recognized over time

Note 28 contains information about the assumptions and their
risk factors relating to measurement of ECL allowance for
trade receivables and fair value of financial instruments. Other
significant sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(@) Write down of inventories

The Group determines the write-down for obsolescence
of inventories. Write-down of inventories is recorded
when estimated net realizable value is less than cost.
In determining write-down of inventories, the Group
considers factors such as inventory aging, forecasted
product demands, historical pricing trends and
anticipated future pricing strategies. It could change
significantly as a result of change in the product
demands and pricing strategies due to change in market
condition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(b)

Impairments of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

In considering the impairment losses that may be
required for certain property, plant and equipment,
and right-of-use assets, recoverable amount of these
assets needs to be determined. The recoverable
amount is the greater of the net selling price and the
value in use. It is difficult to precisely estimate selling
price because quoted market prices for these assets
may not be readily available. In determining the value
in use, expected cash flows generated by the asset
are discounted to their present value, which requires
significant judgment relating to items such as level of
revenue and amount of operating costs. The Group
uses all readily available information in determining an
amount that is reasonable approximation of recoverable
amount, including estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections of items such
as revenue and operating costs.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses and other
deductible temporary differences carried forward are
recognized and measured based on the expected
manner of realization or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
periods. In determining the carrying amounts of deferred
tax assets, expected taxable profits are estimated
which involves a number of assumptions relating to
the operating environment of the Group and requires
significant level of judgement exercised by the directors.
Any change in such assumptions and judgement would
affect the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets to be
recognized and hence the net profit in future years.

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B TSR R M

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(d)

Share-based compensation

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled
transactions with employees by reference to the fair
value of the equity instruments at the date at which they
are granted. The fair value is estimated using a model
which requires the determination of the appropriate
inputs. The Group has to estimate the forfeiture rate
in order to determine the amount of share-based
compensation expenses charged to the statement
of profit or loss. The assumptions and models used
for estimating the fair value of share-based payment
transactions are disclosed in Note 26.

Depreciation and amortization

Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and intangible assets, are depreciated or amortized
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of the assets. The Group reviews the estimated useful
lives of the assets regularly in order to determine the
amount of depreciation expense to be recorded during
any reporting periods. The useful lives are based on
the Group’s historical experience with similar assets.
The depreciation and amortization expenses for future
periods are adjusted if there are material changes from
previous estimates.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organized by a mixture of both brands and geography. In
a manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has presented two
reportable segments of MINISO brand and TOP TOY brand
during the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2023.

m MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

Other operating segments have been aggregated and
presented as “other segment”.
other segment did not meet the quantitative thresholds for
reportable segments for the years ended June 30, 2022 and

2023. The segment information is as follows:

Reportable segments  Operations

MINISO brand

TOP TOY brand

products

Segment results, assets and liabilities

Information related to each reportable segment is set
out below. Segment profit/(loss) before taxation is used
to measure performance because management believes
that this information is the most relevant in evaluating

the results of the respective segments.

Business included as

Design, buying and sale of lifestyle

Design, buying and sale of pop toys

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

2 EbER & ()

HW&%%E‘B/\HIEE\JM% DEB] o &
)\ﬁﬁﬂ"*m%?ﬁ{{@izozzE&zozsie
AS0B L FEWRZERR 2R IBAE(LPT
B o AEERT ¢

o] 25 & E3)

#EEmamE ERFEEMRET - BB

B MHE
TOP TOY k& WRITERRET BER
iy EEE - EEREE
BRI 2H/OABOEEEREINDT - ﬂé
BT ERFIE, () AR E X4
AeE ;%%ﬁﬂ;@,\uﬁéw%%ﬁﬁ%
1B RAEEE -

As at and for the year ended June 30, 2022
1202266 A30H REZEZHILFE

Other
Reportable segments segment
DL Gl Hi 5
Total
MINISO  TOPTOY  reportable
brand brand  segments
ZEIER TOPTOY MERHHB
i3 i3 At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETR AR%TR
External revenues 9MESUTA 0,468,718 446930 9,915,648 170,001 10,085,649
Inter-segment revenue 7 ZBRUA 895 501 1,396 215183 216,579
Segment revenue 23 A 9,469,613 447,431 9,917,044 385,184 10,302,228
Segment profit/(loss) before taxation 59 &5,/ (E518) 941,037 (81,536) 859,501 97,455 956,956
Finance income S U 62,218 416 62,634 3,190 65,824
Finance costs 81 A A< (26,481) (6,904) (33,385) (11) (33,396)
Depreciation and amortization 172 & i (317,273) (32,528)  (349,801) (1,916) (351,717
Other material non-cash items: E i E AR SER -
- credit loss on trade and other receivables
BH RAMEYWFEEERE (27,054) (1,762) (28,816) (108) (28,924)
- impairment loss on non-current assets
FRBEERERE (8,656) (4,829) (13,485) - (13,485)
Segment assets 2 EE 8,310,214 519,814 8,830,028 171,163 9,001,191
Additions to non-current assets during the year* 3 ERE) 8 £ 1L g 319,809 141,101 460,910 8,510 469,420
Segment liabilities 2 S & & 3,552,457 620,953 4,173,410 62,341 4,235,751
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

4 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4 DEBHRE (E)

() Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) () DEFE - EEREEE)

As at and for the year ended June 30, 2023
R2023F6 A0 A RBEZ AL FE
Other
Reportable segments segment
2857 Htod
Total

MINISO TOPTOY reportable
brand brand segments
HEER TOPTOY WEHEAH
) i CH
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTRE ARETR ARBTR ARETR

External revenues 9MEBURA 10,861,222 533,367 11,394,589 78,619 11,473,208
Inter-segment revenue 7 ZBRIMA 71 7,946 8,017 367,032 375,049
Segment revenue 23 A 10,861,293 541,313 11,402,606 445,651 11,848,257
Segment profit/(loss) before taxation 15 27178/ (&18) 2,354,357 (20,412) 2,333,945 17,814 2,351,759
Finance income F1HKA 139,577 1,201 140,778 2,969 143,747
Finance costs 81 AN (29,751) (4,863) (34,614) ® (34,622
Depreciation and amortization #78 & i (302,070) (64,405)  (366,475) (4,339)  (370,814)

Other material non-cash items: 2t EAFREIER :
- reversal of credit loss/(credit loss) on trade and other receivables

g RAMEKEEEBERE/(FEFR) 1,409 (246) 1,163 (©1) 1,072
- impairment loss on non-current assets I 3)E E i EEE (1,433) (2,015) (3,448) - (3,448)
Segment assets 2 EE 10,573,747 361,397 10,935,144 190,366 11,125,510
Additions to non-current assets during the year* FAIEREIEFEILINZE* 933,768 37,434 971,202 4,221 975,423
Segment liabilities 2 & & 3,937,784 493,044 4,430,828 43,699 4,474,527
Note: BiE -
* The additions to non-current assets do not include * IERBEENEINTEEBERELEHEE
additions to deferred tax assets, non-current E - ERFEANFEREMIEREIRE
prepayments and non-current other investments. KI5 A0 o

m MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R AR MY AT

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

4 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4 DIHE(E)
(i) Reconciliations of information on reportable (i) FEFRDEBEREEGEHRRPRE
segments to the amounts reported in the financial WEEHNE IR

statements

For the year ended June 30,
BZ6H30HLLFE
2022 2023

20224 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AR®ET T

i. Revenue Wt A

Total revenue for reportable segments 7] £ ¥R ZRAEU A 9,917,044 11,402,606
Revenue for other segment E1th 75 YA 385,184 445,651

Elimination of inter-segment revenue 7 2B A K £ (216,579) (375,049)
Consolidated revenue & #fIA 10,085,649 11,473,208

ii. Profit before taxation %t 51 5/&
Total profit before taxation for reportable segments
] 28/ H BRATF B 859,501 2,333,945
Profit before taxation for other segment £ {5 387 51 ) 97,455 17,814
Unallocated amounts: KD A4 78
— Share of loss of an equity-accounted investee, net of tax

DMEAEREARNEIRE A RINERE - TRFE (8,162) -
— Expenses relating to construction of headquarters building and

depreciation expense of apartments for use as staff quarters

REANEEREARI MAEEIEENAEBTERX (41,981) (18,145)
Consolidated profit before taxation %t A4z & Tl 906,813 2,333,614

2023 ERE o BAIER LEL



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

4 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4 DEHE(E)
(i) Reconciliations of information on reportable (i) FEFRDEBEREGBEHRRPRE
segments to the amounts reported in the financial HEREREER (8)

statements (continued)

As at June 30,
A6 H30H
2022 2023

20224 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT AR¥ET T

iii. Assets EE
Total assets for reportable segments 7] £ R 2F & E 42 ZE 8,830,028 10,935,144
Assets for other segment Eth 5 38 & &= 171,163 190,366

Other unallocated amounts E k5 At & 58
— Assets relating to construction of headquarters building

RESRIERERIEAEE 2,028,095 2,078,833
- Apartments for use as staff quarters FI{EE TTHEEHNAE 252,502 243,370
Consolidated total assets & & E 258 11,281,788 13,447,713

iv. Liabilities & f&
Total liabilities for reportable segments 7] 25 Sf & (E4E%8 4,173,410 4,430,828
Liabilities for other segment E 5 SF & (& 62,341 43,699
Other unallocated amounts E kDBl & %8
— Liabilities relating to construction of headquarters building

B EEREEAE 18,637 54,918

Consolidated total liabilities & #f & {&42%58 4,254,388 4,529,445

m MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(i

Reconciliations of information on reportable

e PR WK

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

segments to the amounts reported in the financial
statements (continued)

V.

Other material items

Finance income B #54A

Finance costs 81 7% 7%

Depreciation and amortization #7£ % # 4
Credit loss on trade and other receivables
B 5 RHEMEKFAEEEE

Impairment loss on non-current assets

FRBEERERE

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

Al 23 o HERE KRR PIRE
ML EEMEER (1)
v. HiEKREHR

For the year ended June 30, 2022
#HE2022F6 H30B ILFE

Reportable
segment
totals
A2HHH
A3t
RMB’000
ARBFIT

62,634
(33,385)
(349,801)

(28,816)

(13,485)

Other
segment

Hfth 5> &P
RMB’000
ARBTTT

3,190
a1
(1,916)

(108)

Unallocated Consolidated

amount totals

RHOELEHE GHEET
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT
520 66,344

- (33,396)

(38,154) (389,871)

- (28,924)

- (13,485)

Finance income B1 75 Ug A

Finance costs BA #4552

Depreciation and amortization #7% & # 4

Reversal of credit loss/(credit loss) on
trade and other receivables

g5 REMBWRIBEEEERE,
(FEEE)

Impairment loss on non-current assets

FEREBEERERE

For the year ended June 30, 2023

Reportable
segment
totals
CIEZ:8
att
RMB’000
ARBT T

140,778
(34,614)
(366,475)

1,163

(3,448)

(0]1,1-15
segment

HAt 7 &
RMB’000
ARBT T

2,969
@)
(4,339)

(91)

B Z2023F6 A30H LFE

Unallocated Consolidated

amount totals
ROBEEE &ftast
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR%¥Tx
1,478 145,225
- (34,622)
(20,353) (391,167)

- 1,072
- (3,448)
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e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

4 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4
(i) Geographic information (iii)
The geographic information analyses the Group’s
revenue and non-current assets by the Group’s
country of domicile and other regions. In presenting
the geographic information, segment revenue has been
based on the geographic location of customers and
segment assets are based on the geographic location of
the assets.

7 EbERE (F8)

M ER
MWIHERHEARE R AEBRRME i [
DM AEBEHBAMGERBEE - £
S E R - D EBRAERTF M
BUE  momMEENERNEENNE
fE -

For the year ended June 30,

HZE6H30HIEEE

2022 2023
20224 2023 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARMT

i. Revenue Yt A
the PRC (place of domicile) 7F Bl (FifEit) 7,442,156 7,650,821
Other Asian countries excluding the PRC K&/ B 4Mg) E i gr ISR 1,174,323 1,821,080
America EM 1,189,119 1,738,058
Europe BUM 174,691 151,496
Others E b 105,360 111,753
10,085,649 11,473,208

ii. Non-current assets EREEE

As at June 30,
HR6A30H
2022 2023
20234
RMB’000

AR¥T T

20224
RMB’000
AREFIT

the PRC (place of domicile) A Bl (FT7Eith) 2,575,241 2,672,426
Other Asian countries excluding the PRC K /1 B4 g E i 25 MBI SR 63,021 121,614
America 3=/ 204,459 512,322
Europe BUM 10,490 1,859

2,853,211 3,308,221

Non-current assets exclude deferred tax assets, non-
current prepayments and non-current other investments.

L] MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE

The Group’s revenue is primarily derived from the sale of
lifestyle and pop toy products through self-operated stores,
franchised stores, offline distributors in the PRC and overseas
and online sales conducted through the Group’s self-
operated online stores on WeChat Mini Program, third-party
e-commerce platforms and through online distributors. Other
sources of revenue mainly include license fees, sales-based
royalties and sales-based management and consultation
service fees from franchisees and distributors.

() Disaggregation of revenue
In the following table, revenue from contracts with
customers is disaggregated by major products and
service lines and timing of revenue recognition.

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

5 WA

AEERWATEZRE BB EMEGINEZ
JE ~ MNEEE - R TRIERHEEEREERM
ARt RER - NBEAEEEME NMEF
EMFE=TTEHTE LN B EREA BB
ERIEEETHRLEE - RMRAKRER
BREREMBRMMKERNRESE ENHE
HVRF PR A B R ENIHE RN E IR KRS
o

i) WADE
ETRT  EPFAORAREBRZERM
PRISARANVBAFER S E D48

For the year ended June 30,
HZ6H30HLFE
2022 2023

20224 20234F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT AR®ET T

Major products/service lines FZ&Z 5, R4

— Sales of lifestyle and pop toy products 4= /&K /B E m MRt A E R E

— Retail sales in self-operated stores B & [E T & HE 555,226 990,048
— Product sales to franchisees [F1/11 83 75 i & & & 5,499,267 5,960,518
— Sales to offline distributors A4 N IEE $EE 2,072,061 2,612,742
- Online sales 4% _F 4% 651,039 706,397
— Other sales channels Efth$5ERE 220,069 87,530
Sub-total /N5t 8,997,662 10,357,235
- License fees, sales-based royalties, and sales-based management
and consultation service fees
KiEE ERNHENETRFEAEMENREENEE LEHRREE
— License fees X1 & 109,166 84,711
— Sales-based royalties ER 5SS FEFHE 97,453 102,089
— Sales-based management and consultation service fees
ERHENEIE ARG E 478,775 500,775
Sub-total /N5t 685,394 687,575
— Others* Efiy* 402,593 428,398
10,085,649 11,473,208
Timing of revenue recognition A fE:2FE/ET
— Point in time 7 1 5 24 9,321,490 10,619,987
— Over time B&Rs I HERS 764,159 853,221
Revenue from contracts with customers 254 £ 10,085,649 11,473,208

2023F [EHE o HAIER LB



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

5 REVENUE (continued) 5 WA (%)

() Disaggregation of revenue (continued) i) WADEGE)
Note: st -
* Others mainly represented sales of fixtures to franchisees * HthF Z IR MEFMRIERHER

and distributors and membership fee income. EMEME 8 BIA -

For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2023, the Group B E2022F K 2023F6 A30H [FFE -
did not have any customer with revenue exceeding 10% MEREEEFBAGHEFEARER
of the Group’s total revenue for the respective year. BUTA10% LA E o

(i) Contract balances @iy BREER
The following table provides information about receivables, TREHTRE RS E LR EWRIEH
contract liabilities from contracts with customers. BHBERBEER -

As at June 30,
M6 H30H
2022 2023

20224 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AR®T T

Receivables, which are included in ‘trade and other receivables’

T ATE 5 K H b fE UK IE |#) FE YL SR IE 19 290,681 305,963
Contract liabilities & £ & (&
— Current portion ENEEE5 (361,522) (292,887)
- Non-current portion JEENEAEES (51,658) (46,754)
Total contract liabilities & #) & (B2 %8 (413,180) (339,641)

As at June 30,
A6 H830H
2022 2023

20224 20235
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBT T

Contract liabilities are analyzed as follows:
BREENSTHT :
— Advance payments received from customers for purchase of goods

W B% P E B m e BN 508 219,192 231,636
— Deferred revenue related to license fees

EREE GRS 88,536 89,498
— Deferred revenue related to membership fees

g S B RRNETERS 96,025 5,215
— Deferred revenue related to loyalty points

Heg SEoAHNEENS 9,427 13,292

413,180 339,641
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 REVENUE (continued)

(i

Contract balances (continued)

The Group requests 20% to 100% advance payment
for purchase of goods from certain domestic and
overseas distributors prior to delivery of goods. This
gives rise to contract liabilities at the start of a sales
order, until the revenue of sales of products recognized
on the corresponding sale order exceeds the amount of
payments received in advance.

Unamortized portion of upfront license fees, membership
fees received and deferred revenue associated with

loyalty points were recognized as contract liabilities.

Movements in contract liabilities are as follows:

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

5 WAG&E)

(i

B (&)

AEBEENR  ERETEAIMMIERR
B mAT - REAXT20%E100%H
REBFEMNR - EHEEEERRIEE
ETEMARE BEEHEHETE LE
RHEmMFERABERRRARL

BNEEENREED  WEINE R
ENEEEROERNEERSERS
BHAE-

BRRENZEFHERMT

Contract
liabilities

BRAR
RMB’000
ARET T

Balance at July 1, 2021 72202147 A1 B4 326,866
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of recognizing revenue during the year that was

included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the year
FABARAFINRASNEENRAEHSNE B (266,919)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of receiving advance payment for purchase of goods
RAWRBE S MHANFEMELN S L REEM 219,192
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of receiving payment of license fees
AR ZEEFIEMEENS LB EILIN 28,589
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of receiving payment of membership fees
AW e 8 E8FEMEENS LB BILIN 96,025
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of loyalty points & & & 7 & A F) A 4 8 (&1 11 9,427
Balance at June 30, 2022 72202246 A 30 H Ay 4564 413,180
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of recognizing revenue during the year that

was included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the year
FABRFNAASNEENRAEHENEERD (361,522)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of receiving advance payment for purchase of goods
AW REE S MHFANFIEMELRN S L BEEM 231,636
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of receiving payment of license fees
AR ZEEFEMEENS LB BILIN 37,840
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of receiving payment of membership fees
AR e 8 B8FEMEENS L BILIN 5,215
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of loyalty points & & & 7 & A F) A 4 8 (&1 11 13,202
Balance at June 30, 2023 72202346 A30 H A 4564 339,641

2023F EE o BAIER LB
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

5 REVENUE (continued)

154

)

(ii)

Contract balances (continued)

As of June 30, 2022 and 2023, contract liabilities
expected to be recognized as revenue after one year
were RMB51,658,000 and RMB46,754,000, respectively,
mainly represented license fees.

Revenue expected to be recognized in the future
arising from contracts with customers in existence
at the reporting dates

Contracts within the scope of IFRS 15

As at June 30, 2022 and 2023, the aggregated amounts
of the transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations under the Group’s existing
contracts were RMB193,988,000 and RMB108,005,000,
respectively. These amounts represented revenue of
license fees, membership fees income and revenue
associated with loyalty points. Revenue of license
fees is expected to be recognized in the future from
license agreements entered into with the franchisees
and distributors. The Group will recognize the expected
revenue in future over the remaining licensing period,
which is expected to occur over the next 1 to 46
years and the next 1 to 45 years as at June 30, 2022
and 2023, respectively. Membership fee income is
expected to be recognized in the future based on the
subscribed membership period, which ranges from 1
month to 1 year. Revenue associated with loyalty points
are expected to be recognized when the points are
redeemed or when they expire, which is expected to
occur within 1 year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 REVENUE (continued)

(iv)

COVID-19 impact on revenue

The COVID-19 outbreak has impacted the Group’s
revenue and operations during the years ended June 30,
2022 and 2023.

During the year ended June 30, 2022, the outbreak of
the Delta and Omicron variants of COVID-19 in several
provinces in the PRC caused temporary store closures
and suspension of online sales in these areas, as a result
of governmental restriction measures. Accordingly,
the Group recorded lower revenues in these impacted
provinces during the year ended June 30, 2022. The
sales of stores owned by overseas distributors gradually
recovered although some of those stores that resumed
operations also had reduced operating hours due to
regional resurgences of COVID-19 during the year
ended June 30, 2022.

During the first half of the year ended June 30, 2023, the
Group’s retail sales and product sales to franchisees
in the PRC were negatively affected by outbreaks of
the Omicron variants of COVID-19. This was due to
governmental control measures and an increased
number of COVID-19 cases. After control measures
were eased in December 2022 and daily life returned to
normal for consumers, the sales of most of the Group’s
self-operated stores and stores owned by franchisees
in the PRC gradually recovered in the second half of the
year ended June 30, 2023. During the year ended June
30, 2023, the sales of most of the Group’s overseas
self-operated stores and distributor-owned stores have
returned to pre-pandemic levels, as more and more
jurisdictions lifted their pandemic control measures.

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

5 WAG&E)

(iv)

COVID-19¥f IR AV &
HE 20224 202356 A30H ILFE -
COVID-19%& B AL BRI A K& &

By a8
HERE -

HZ=2022F6 A30B LFE - FEE S
A 1D 1EZCOVID-19#)Delta &2 Omicron
BERBEE  ARBNLARIERE -
B AP EERREE - TEE
R ESHE o Hitt - 212202246 A30H
IEFE  AEETEELERTEENES
FIUL A B BT NBE - B ZE2022F6 A30H
IEFE - ERMEEENI D FIMIE
P9 & 5, 8 COVID-19 By [ 13 14 18 B 1M 48 52
TEERE - EPYEREEREEREIRIE o

HZE202356 A30H FFE ¥ F - K
5 B 72 /0 B /9 = 6 A () 0 BE 7 5 S E
% COVID-19#)Omicron & 2 82 & [F 1@ 2
RETE - ERE B E A R B = BT Y
P2+ e A COVID-19FE 2 A BB A -
2022F 12 A NEIFIEEEE  BEEN
HE4AEOEIESY - 212202346 H30
HIEFETHF  AEBETFENEE
JERINBEERRBOEERSIRE - &
Z22023F6 A30H ILFE  BEE MR
ZHREERBREBIIEREE - A%
EEEEEMREMENASSEE
B IREEEIFRIKF ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

6

156

OTHER INCOME 6

HibUg A

For the year ended June 30,
BZE6H30HILLFE
2022 2023

20224 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARET T

Tax refund EF7 3,231 2,660
Government grants (Note (i) BURF# B (FE()) 16,663 8,807
Income from depositary bank (Note (i) 77 =E 277 W A (Bt E (i) 6,037 6,468

25,931 17,935

Notes:

(i) Government grants mainly represented unconditional cash
awards granted by the local authorities in the PRC. During the
year ended June 30, 2022, government grants also included
subsidies obtained by the subsidiaries in the U.S. under the
Paycheck Protection Program Rule with an aggregated amount
of USD1,320,000 (equivalent to RMB8,548,000).

(i)  The Company received an initial payment of USD4,690,000
(equivalent to RMB30,995,000) from depositary bank in
December 2020, in connection with the establishment and
maintenance of depositary receipt. The amount was amortized
using the straight-line method over a five-year arrangement
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R AR MY AT

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

7 EXPENSES BY NATURE 7 RMBEEINEX

For the year ended June 30,
BZE6H30HILLFE
2022 2023

20224 20234F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARET T

Cost of inventories (Note 18(a)) F& K2 (Fiz£18(a)) 6,870,976 6,859,362
Payroll and employee benefits (Note () T & &1E E&H (FizE()) 864,693 819,592
Rental and related expenses 4 N #HEI RS2 33,354 69,174
Depreciation and amortization (Note (ii)) #7 K # 84 (Bt (ii)) 389,871 391,167
Licensing expenses £ E 149,612 249,437
Promotion and advertising expenses & & & & 52 242,681 315,976
Logistics expenses ¥ i x 272,363 295,933
Travelling expenses Z= IKF X 66,172 66,544
Other expenses H iz 384,730 312,677

Total cost of sales, selling and distribution and general and
administrative expenses

HERKA - HE KD M —RRITHAX 9,274,452 9,379,862
Notes: PR -
(i) Payroll and employee benefits are analyzed as follows: (i) ITERESRBNATAT :

For the year ended June 30,

BZ6H30BILLFE
2022 2023
20224 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AR¥T T
Salaries, wages and bonus ¥ + T& MIEAL 666,968 657,236
Contributions to social security contribution plan it &R it Fat 2R 77,903 75,168
Welfare expenses & F 2 36,987 24,306

Equity-settled share-based payment expenses (Note 26)

IAREZS A5 VAR 1 S A Bl 2 (B9 5E26) 82,835 62,882
864,693 819,592

2023F[EHE o BRAIER SIS



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

7 EXPENSES BY NATURE (continued) 7 BEMEESNEX(E)
Notes: (continued) BT : (48)
(i)  Depreciation and amortization are analyzed as follows: (i) WEREHEITET

For the year ended June 30,

HZE6H30HILEE
2022 2023
20224 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARET R
Property, plant and equipment (Note 13) ¥1% - &= & & (F7E13) 58,865 70,706
Right-of-use assets (Note 14) {# f#E & 2 (ff3:14) 309,606 334,193
Less: amount capitalized as construction in progress i : EA(L R EE TS E - (33,907)
Intangible assets (Note 15) EFZ & (HizE15) 21,400 20,175
389,871 391,167
@iy The auditor’s remuneration in relation to audit service (i) B Z=20229F%2023F6HA30HIEFE -
provided for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2023 were RERRENETRBHE D R ARE
RMB22,500,000 and RMB14,700,000, respectively. 22,500,000 & A K #14,700,0007T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

8 OTHER NET INCOME

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

HFERA

For the year ended June 30,
BZ6H30HLLEE
2022 2023

20224 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

NS S AR T T

Net foreign exchange gain (Note (i) JFFE 3 U zs (B sE()) 14,041 109,095
Losses on disposal of property, plants and equipment and intangible assets
HEME - BE RRBAREREERNEIE (5,614) (5,350)
Investment income from other investments E1th3% & F#& & Y z5 63,801 42,921
Scrap income & G A 11,808 12,137
Net change in fair value of other investments HAi% & A f (BEK EE)F4E 5,709 (3,692)
Litigation compensation (Note (ii)) 57 7AR1E (P % i) (15,576) (37,710)
Gains relating to cancellation and modification of lease contracts
BRARIERIEREE S B KR 13,456 193
Others HAf (317) (3,488)
87,308 114,106

Notes:

(i) Net foreign exchange gain for the year ended June 30, 2023
was mainly caused by the appreciation of US dollar against
Renminbi in certain subsidiaries whose functional currency
are Renminbi whereas its holding net assets were mainly
denominated in US dollar, which mainly comprised of the
US dollar cash and cash equivalents and trade and other
receivables.

(i) Litigation compensation for the years ended June 30, 2022 and
2023 mainly represented the provisions made for the lawsuits
relating to employees’ compensation and illicit competition.

IS

(i)

B £2023F6 A30H - FEHFER W+
ERARETHARENAE BB THE
ARAMMEEEEABARE  MEFENFE
E(XEeEETRESRESSEMARES
R E A ERGRIE) EBAFETTAME ©

REXEEHERERRER T EEHFN

H ZE20224F 202346 530 H |- FEHFFA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

9 NET FINANCE INCOME 9 MBWAFE

For the year ended June 30,
BZ6H30HLLEE
2022 2023

20224 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AERHEEFIT AREFTT

Finance income BA#I A

— Interest income 7| BUZA 66,344 145,225

Finance costs 817k 2

— Interest on loans and borrowings & # % &7 F 8 (405) (226)

— Interest on lease liabilities & & &F & (32,991) (34,396)
(33,396) (34,622)

Net finance income B1#5U AJF 58 32,948 110,603

10 INCOME TAXES 10 Fr8%
(@ Taxation recognized in consolidated profit or loss: (a) HEEPHERPERNEIE

For the year ended June 30,
BZ6H30HLLEE
2022 2023

20224 2023 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AERHEEF T ARETTT

Amounts recognized in consolidated profit or loss

et BRaTERNER

Current tax BTEf#E

Provision for the year F A {# 252,989 557,630

Deferred tax EFEFE

Origination and reversal of temporary differences (Note 10(c))

TR = A A RN (B9FE10(c)) 14,081 (5,845)
Tax expense FT{SFiFI 2 267,070 551,785
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10 INCOME TAXES (continued)

(@)

Taxation recognized in consolidated profit or loss:
(continued)

1)

2)

3)

Cayman Islands and the BVI

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman Islands and the BVI, the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands
and the BVI.

Hong Kong

Under the current Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Ordinance, the Company’s Hong Kong
subsidiaries are subject to Hong Kong Profits
Tax at the rate of 16.5% on their taxable income
generated from the operations in Hong Kong. A
two-tiered profits tax rates regime was introduced
in 2018 where the first HKD2 million of assessable
profits earned by a company will be taxed at half
of the current tax rate (8.25%) whilst the remaining
profits will continue to be taxed at 16.5%. There is
an anti-fragmentation measure where each group
will have to nominate only one company in the
Group to benefit from the progressive rates.

Mainland China

Under the Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”) Law, the
subsidiaries established in mainland China are
subject to a unified statutory CIT rate of 25%.

A subsidiary established in Henggin New Area of
Zhuhai, a pilot free trade zone in the PRC, met the
criteria for a preferential income tax rate of 15%
prior to December 31, 2022.

A subsidiary established in Guangzhou Nansha, a
pilot free trade zone in the PRC, met the criteria for
a preferential income tax rate of 15%.

A subsidiary established in Guangzhou, the PRC,
is qualified as high and new technology enterprise
and is entitled to a preferential income tax rate of
15% for three fiscal years ending December 31,
2024.

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

10 INCOME TAXES (continued)

162

(@)

Taxation recognized in consolidated profit or loss:
(continued)

4)

5)

6)

7)

United States

Under United States Internal Revenue Code,
the subsidiaries established in United States are
subject to a unified Federal CIT rate of 21% and
variable state income and franchise tax depends
on which state the subsidiaries has nexus with.
Most of subsidiaries in United States are operated
in the state of California, and thus they will be
subject to state income tax rate of 8.84%. Other
subsidiaries in United States mainly are subject
to state income tax rates ranging from 6.25% to
11.5% depending on the location of the operation.

Indonesia

The subsidiary incorporated in Indonesia is subject
to the prevailing statutory tax rate on taxable
income. The statutory tax rate was 22% from fiscal
year ended December 31, 2021 and onwards.

India

Under the Income Tax Act 1961 enacted in India,
the subsidiary incorporated in India is subject to a
profit tax rate of 26% for fiscal year ended March
31, 2022 and 29.12% from fiscal year ended
March 31, 2023 and onwards.

Canada

Under the Canadian federal and provincial tax
rules, the subsidiaries incorporated in Canada are
subject to the combined Canadian federal and
provincial statutory income tax rates ranging from
23% to 31% depending on the location of the
operation.
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10 INCOME TAXES (continued)

(@)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR WK

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

Taxation recognized in consolidated profit or loss: (@)
(continued)
8) Singapore

Under the Income Tax Act enacted in Singapore,

the subsidiaries incorporated in Singapore are

subject to a tax rate of 17% on its chargeable

income.

9) Vietnam
Under the Law on Corporate Income Tax enacted
in Vietnam, the subsidiary incorporated in Vietnam
is subject to a tax rate of 20% on its assessable
income.

Reconciliation between tax expense and (b)
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

10 FRiEH:(

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

&)

HRpHERPRANBIE (&)

8)

9)

IS

REBFT I BB CAERE) - 1
S NI R TAX SZ B Y B8 2 B 0 e AR
BB EB17% °

R
RBEBEBEMNCEEMBRIE)
R A S FORT B A BB FE iR
HPTISHE 520% °

BERAB R ENTAR X EERT
M2 B AT ER

For the year ended June 30,
BZ6H30HLLFE
2022 2023

20224 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

NS S AT T

Profit before taxation 7% Al F1)E 906,813 2,333,614
Notional tax on profit before taxation, calculated at the rates

applicable to profits in the jurisdictions concerned
BBIAENBEHIR RERRIEEERERNMENRETE 214,704 566,955
Tax effect of share-based compensation expenses (Note 7(i))
Pt SN $r BN PR S O A IR R 8 (BT RET () 20,254 15,435
Tax effect of other non-deductible expenses £t~ A] H1)8 S F R IR 2 10,935 13,666
Effect of preferential tax treatments on assessable profits of certain

subsidiaries (Note 10(a)(3))
BEMIAGSEE THE R RERTABENZE (310@)E3)) (18,001) (42,739)
Tax effect of additional deduction on research and development costs
BIMNRIA B K AN TR E = (4,217)
Tax effect of exempted and non-taxable interest income
B R IERE R T A B AR B IR R 2 (4,044) (7,421)
Effect of unused tax losses not recognized KR A BHIBEIBNFZE 44,888 22,956
Effect of unrecognized deductible temporary differences being utilized
BERAAREROAIHIREREEENTE (1,666) (12,850)
Actual tax expenses EFRFIBRH 267,070 551,785

2023 ERE o BAIER LEE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

10 INCOME TAXES (continued) 10 FrB%i (&)
() Movement in deferred tax assets () ELBEEES
The components of deferred tax assets recognized in RERE BB R P R IELETIEE
the consolidated statement of financial position and the EANKE D RREHANEDFE L5 00
movements during the reporting periods presented are T
as follows:

Loss from

waiver of

intercompany

Unused Intra-group Creditloss receivables of
tax unrealized and discontinued

losses profits impairment operations Others
HeoRLRge
AEA £BRN FEEBEE FEBENARH
BEEE RERAE RAE ERREESE Hit &%
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSI AR%¥Tn AR¥TR AR®ETR AR®¥Tn AR%TR

Deferred tax assets arising from:

RETSIRENELEHEEE :

At July 1, 2021 720217818 34,253 14,696 50,347 61,548 7,708 168,552
Charged to profit or loss FEZ A1k (2,536) (3,556) (8,673) - 684 (14,081)
Exchange rate difference [E X =% (21) (43) (101) - 27 (138)
At June 30, 2022 7202246 B30 H 31,696 11,097 41,573 61,548 8,419 154,333
Charged to profit or loss 718 2x A1k (8,499) 11,944 (3,519) (675) 6,594 5,845
Exchange rate difference [E %= % 239 111 628 - 461 1,439
At June 30, 2023 72202346 530 H 23,436 23,152 38,682 60,873 15,474 161,617
The Group only recognizes deferred income tax assets REBEERRRAGER BRI RTEA
for cumulative tax losses if it is probable that future BRAZENEABER - T RFTIE
taxable amounts will be available to utilize those tax EIERRELEMEREE -

losses.
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10 INCOME TAXES (continued)

(d)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR WK

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

Unrecognized deferred tax assets (d)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect
of the following items, because it is not probable that
future taxable profit against which the losses can be
utilized will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction.

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

10 FriS#i (&)

RERWIELERIREE

AEIETH IR B B (R R BA A IR B 1T
R RAREERBEER TARES
A 7] B A BT T LA 85 B R 2R 8 SR AR A
e

As at June 30,
M6 H30H

2022 2023

20224 2023

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARMET T

Deductible temporary differences A FIER i M =R 107,964 49,375

Cumulative tax losses Z5tH11E 518 630,807 751,256

Total &5t 738,771 800,631
Tax losses carried forward (e) #HEBIIEEIE

Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was
recognized will expire as follows:

As at
June 30,
2022

20224
6 A30H
RMB’000
ARETTT

Expire /|57
Never expire fE2|H H

278,215
352,592

RBERURAE BT A 2 M B RS 5 0
AT :

As at
June 30,
2023

R20234F
64301

RMB’000
ARBT T

Expiry date Expiry date

BHH PG RE

2023-2043 361,627 2024-2044

389,629

Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was
recognized are related to subsidiaries that were
established in recent years, which are not expected to
derive sufficient taxable profits in the foreseeable future
before unused tax losses expired.

RERELEHRIAE EN BB R EIIF
KKZHMERRER  ZEHNEBAR
EARPARBEEEI B AN BER R
KB T EELRHNERTAE -
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Notes to the Copsolidated Financial Statements
e B TSR R M

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

10 INCOME TAXES (continued)

(

Uncertain tax position

The Group evaluates whether it is probable that tax
authority will accept the tax treatment for each uncertain
tax position (including the potential application of
interest and penalties) based on the technical merits,
and measures the unrecognized benefits associated
with the tax positions. As of June 30, 2022 and 2023,
the Group did not have any significant unrecognized
uncertain tax positions. The Group does not anticipate
any significant increase to unrecognized tax benefit
within the next 12 months. Interest and penalties related
to income tax matters, if any, is included in income tax
expense.

11 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share has been
based on the following profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders and weighted-average number of ordinary
shares outstanding.

(i) Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
(basic):

10 FiiS#i ()

()

THE TE VR TE AR

AEEF ARG R T 7] SRR T
MRS & T REEBR BN E
B(BEMNEREFMEERER) W
SEEBMEKIEEORERT = - BHE
2022F 20236 A30H @ AEB T
TEEMRERHERTREEHRBMMN
INER B TR AT AR RIS F 2 A R 2R 12 1
AATg@EEIL I - EATEH S HE
FFI 2 R EIF (2B ) FF AFTSFAX -

11 BRER

(@)

Profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company

AR RE R IR E (R )
Less: A

Allocation of undistributed earnings to holders of unvested

restricted shares

BRABBXREIRMNFFE AR IKEHN

SRENEF
SRREARRFIN HHER AT AR
BRCSR A 4 R 8 R BT 51 2 A e
FHHA -

() EHBERRREGFEESR) :

For the year ended June 30,
BZ6H30HLLFE
2022 2023

20234
RMB’000

AR T T

20224
RMB’000
ARETIT

638,170 1,768,926

(1,576) (424)

Profit used to determine basic earnings per share
RRETE G RREREFHAE

636,594 1,768,502
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

(@)

Basic earnings per share (continued)

U]

(ii)

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
(basic): (continued)

The unvested restricted shares granted to
employees under the 2020 Share Incentive Plan
(see Note 26) are entitled to non-forfeitable
dividends during the vesting period. For the
purpose of calculating basic earnings per share,
the numerators are thus be adjusted for the
undistributed earnings attributed to these unvested
shares in accordance with their participating
rights, which have not been recognized in profit or
loss.

Weighted-average number of ordinary shares
(basic):

The weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 1,205,527,348 and 1,243,320,377 in issue
for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 20283,
respectively, were calculated as follows:

Issued ordinary share at July 1, 2021 and 2022
F2021 4 K% 20224F7 A1 B #THEBEAR

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

11 BRERN (&)
@ SBRELRF (E)
() BB REREEFE(EE) (@)

RI52020F 15 BT 8] (R KI5
26)E T B IHRFEBIREFIKRND

SRBHAANE RES T RDR YA %
B RABEERELABTNE @ »
FRARIBRIEERFBRMDHS
HES I ERBBROEBERD IR
BAELRAE - WERDIRAF R
BB RER °

(i) TBERMEFHIE(ER) :

HZE2022F x2023F6 A30H
IEFEBITH T BRINEFS
255l A1,205,527,348 K &
1,243,320,377/% * 5HEOT :

For the year ended June 30,
BZ6H30HLFE
2022 2023

20234
Number of
shares

Ji% 47 B H

20224
Number of
shares
a4

1,204,860,715  1,202,646,619

Effect of shares issued relating to Hong Kong public offering

and exercise of the over-allotment option

HEB N EE MR R TERRN BTN

B 48R
o)

Effect of shares released from share incentive plan (Note 26)

AR 1 BB =T 2148 ARt =2 28 (B =E26)
Effect of repurchase of shares (Note 25(b)(v))
Mt ERE Y =22 (MaE25(b)(v))

- 40,181,685
2,369,454 2,878,812
(1,702,821) (2,386,739)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares & &% hniE ¥ 52

1,205,527,348  1,243,320,377

2023FEHE o BAES U



Notes to the Copsolidated Financial Statements
e B TSR R M

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

11 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

(b) Diluted earnings per share (b)

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all potential
dilutive ordinary shares.

For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2023,
the calculation of diluted earnings per share were
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company of RMB638,170,000 and
RMB1,768,926,000 and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 1,216,637,439 and 1,250,545,116
shares, respectively, after adjusting by the dilutive effect
of share incentive plan, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares, basic
E BRI 8 (ER)
Dilutive effect of share incentive plan (Note 26)

Befn A=t 81 EEE B (H7E26)

11 SRER (&)

BREERT
BREERNIRRCERMAAEE
BNV EER - HEBBITEINNE RS
IEFABEES -

HZE2022F 20236 A30H IFFE -
FREERF TIREARAE L BRRE
FE(E T A R 638,170,000 T M AR
#1,768,926,0007T @ LA N & im@A hntEF
#%11,216,637,4390% }21,250,545,116

METE - WG BB BN e 2
PR ¢

For the year ended June 30,
BZ6H30HLFE
2022 2023

20234
Number of
shares

Ji% 42 B H

20224
Number of
shares
a4

1,205,527,348  1,243,320,377

11,110,091 7,224,739

Weighted average number of ordinary shares, diluted

BB 8 (H58)

1,216,637,439  1,250,545,116
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R AR MY AT

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

12 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 12 Hitt2EW =

For the year ended June 30, 2022
B ZE2022F6 A30B LFE
Before-tax Tax (expense)/ Net-of-tax
amount benefit amount

#E (Fx%),/
BRI Mzt BREREREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT  ARBTT ARETT

Exchange differences on translation of financial statements of
overseas subsidiaries

HMEGINHT B A B TSR R RO IE H A5 40,494 = 40,494
Other comprehensive income Efth 2 Ukzs 40,494 = 40,494

For the year ended June 30, 2023
B £202356 A30HLLFE
Before-tax Tax (expense)/ Net-of-tax
amount benefit amount

BR (BAX%)
BT &8 Mz BRAERSHE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFIT _ARWIT ARWFT

Exchange differences on translation of financial statements of
overseas subsidiaries

HEEINE R R B R I E = EE 41,198 - 41,198
Other comprehensive income EHfth 2 Uk zE 41,198 - 41,198

2023F EE o RAIER LGS



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 Y% - BMERRE

Store
Leasehold Office  operating Motor Construction
Apartments  improvements  equipment ipment vehicles Moulds in progress Total

08 HAERERE wfh FIBEES L] BR  ERIE At
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT  ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARRTT ARRTLT ARETT ARETR

Cost: & :

At July 1, 2021 78202167 1R - 111,949 37,431 46,469 2,740 - - 198,589
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 27(b))

WeE—FME AR (HzE2r(b) - - 14 - - - 10,276 10,200
Additions A& 242,639 67,160 16,779 7,628 232 26,511 48,528 409,477
Disposals (& - (15,389) (3,183) (6,670) (622) (102) - (25,966)
Exchange adjustments (&3 ;5% - 4,400 2 (636) &) - - 3,763
At June 30, 2022 7420226 430 242,639 168,120 51,043 46,791 2,347 26,409 58,804 596,153
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 27(al)

WiE—FMBAR (Wi2r@) - 451 888 - - - - 1,339
Additions A E - 8,710 7,348 5,348 675 19,585 155,331 196,997
Transfer from construction in progress

BERIEEA - 36,419 - - - - (36,419) -
Disposals 11 - (75,541) (5,611) (5,191) - (253) (2,084) (88,680)
Exchange adjustments [& ;5% - 9,112 380 (225) 67 - 757 10,091

At June 30, 2023 /420236 A30H 242,639 147,21 54,048 46,723 3,089 45,741 176,389 715,900
Accumulated depreciation: 25t 7% :

At July 1,2021 %2021 57 A1H - (41,007) (18,626) (22,923) (1,510) - - (84,066)
Charge for the year R (7,538) (17,840) (7,144) (8,647) (4s2)  (17,244) - (58,865)
Written back on disposals £ [ - 4,541 1,672 4,524 500 19 = 11,256
Exchange adjustments [£ X% - (1,710) 63 395 6 - - (1,246)
At June 30, 2022 7202246 A30H (7,538) (56,016) (24,035) (26,651) (1,456) (17,225) - (132,921)
Charge for the year R 11 8,712) (24,270) (10,981) (4,690) (475) (21,578) - (70,706)
Written back on disposals (i & & [ - 44,866 3,058 3,857 - 63 - 51,844
Exchange adjustments [EXE% - (3,084) (887) 587 (18) - - (3,402)
At June 30, 2023 20236 A30H (16,250) (38,504) (32,845) (26,897) (1,949) (38,740) - (155,185)
Impairment: i/ :

At July 1, 2021 #2021 57 A1H - (36,432) - (1,779) - - - (38,207)
Addition /A& \ - (8,880) (1,380) 2,802 - - - (13,062)
Written back on disposals (1 & & [ - 7,536 - 1,231 - = = 8,767

Exchange adjustments [ iz - (940) 42) 146 - = = (836)
At June 30, 2022 720226 H30H - (38,716) (1,422) (3,200) - - - (43,338)
Addition /A E \ - (5,640) (591) (1,017) - - - (7,248)
Written back on disposals (t! £ [z - 24,875 - 1,140 - - - 26,015

Exchange adjustments [ 5% - (2,031) 197 324 - - - (1,510)
At June 30, 2023 720236 530 F - (21,5512) (1,816) (2,753) - - - (26,081)
Net book value: EH{E :

At June 30, 2022 742022F6 A30H 235,101 73,388 25,586 16,940 891 9,184 58,804 419,894

At June 30, 2023 202346 A30H 226,389 87,255 19,387 17,073 1,140 7,001 176,389 534,634
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R AR MY AT

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

14 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 14 ERAEEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by LI EEERE SR REEERTDSE
class of underlying asset is as follows: DI :

Warehouse Land use

Property  equipment right
(Note (i)) (Note (ii)) (Note (iii)) Total
VUES BEHRE THERAE A&t

(PR EEG)) GEA(D)) GEA(D))
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTIT AREBTIT ARETIT ARETT

Cost: ;A :
At July 1, 2021 7820217 H1H 1,077,417 11,702 - 1,089,119
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 27(b))

Ui — KB A A (H5E27(b)) 1,781,595 1,781,595

Additions /RE . 337,717 414 815 338,946
Derecognition #% |F 53 . (408,249) (1,470) - (409,719)
Exchange adjustments [ 2 J & 6,239 2 - 6,241

At June 30, 2022 74202246 H30 H 1,013,124 10,648 1,782,410 2,806,182

Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 27(a))

Weks — K8 A &) (Fiiak27(a)) 10,467 - - 10,467
Additions RNE N 718,845 143 - 718,988
Derecognition #% |- ##52 ) (620,305) - - (620,305)
Exchange adjustments [ 3 {5 35,218 - - 35,218
At June 30, 2023 74202346 H30H 1,157,349 10,791 1,782,410 2,950,550
Accumulated depreciation: Z5H37%E :

At July 1, 2021 202147 A1H (359,888) (1,548) - (361,436)
Charge for the year FRX ) (275,310) (3,765) (30,531) (309,606)
Derecognition X |F&:2 243,575 1,470 - 245,045
Exchange adjustments [& & 3% (2,917) (1) = (2,918)
At June 30, 2022 7202246 830 H (394,540) (3,844) (30,531)  (428,915)
Charge for the year 37 Hi (285,393) (3,592) (45,208)  (334,193)
Derecognition #X |- #52 . 384,771 - - 384,771

Exchange adjustments [ 2 i £ (11,660) - - (11,660)
At June 30, 2023 74202346 H30H (306,822) (7,436) (75,739) (389,997)
Impairment: JH & :

At July 1, 2021 2202147 1A (87,796) - - (87,796)
Derecognition #1FFER 4,249 - - 4,249

Exchange adjustments [ & ;5% (1,131) - - (1,131)
At June 30, 2022 202246 A 30 H (34,678) - = (34,678)
Reversal %2l 3,800 - - 3,800
Derecognition 4% |- &7 24,439 - - 24,439
Exchange adjustments [ 535 (1,514) - - (1,514)
At June 30, 2023 72202346 A30H (7,953) - - (7,953)
Net book value: BREEE :

At June 30, 2022 220226 A30H 583,906 6,804 1,751,879 2,342,589

At June 30, 2023 74202346 H30 H 842,574 3,355 1,706,671 2,552,600

2023 ERE o BAIES LA



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

14 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued) 14 FREEE (8)
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognized BB NEREE SR FZIAR 2T
in profit or loss is as follows: ™~

For the year ended June 30,
BZ6H30HLLFE
2022 2023

20224 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AR®ET T

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets by class of underlying asset:

LR EERR S NERREENEERR

Property )% 275,310 285,393
Warehouse equipment & E =& 3,765 3,592
Land use right = Hi{# FA# 30,531 45,208

309,606 334,193
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 9) FH & & E&IF £ (FI7E9) 32,991 34,396

Expense relating to short-term leases and other leases with

remaining lease term ending on or before June 30
B8 HATE & K IR AR 6 A 80 A sk 2 A4S SR H b T EAERAMY B X 28,384 15,322
Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of

lease liabilities

Rt A EA B ENAIZHEERNK 4,648 18,614
COVID-19 rent concessions COVID-1948R37H & &t (35,548) -
Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity HEReRLBENENHESENIR S
analysis of lease liabilities are set out in Note 22(c) and Note M ISR T sk 22(c) A Ffi 5E24 ©

24, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(U]

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

Property - right-of-use assets

The Group leases properties for its offices space, warehouse
storage and retail stores. The leases of offices space typically
run for a period of two to five years, leases of warehouse
storage and retail stores typically run for two to ten years.

Variable lease payments based on sales

Some leases of self-operated stores contain variable lease
payments, which typically range from 1% to 15% of the annual
sales that each store makes in excess of a certain breakpoint
predetermined with landlord. These terms are common in
retail stores in countries such as United states, Canada and
Singapore where the Group operates.

Warehouse equipment - right-of-use assets
The Group leases warehouse equipment, with lease terms of
two to three years.

Land use right

The Group acquired the land use right of a parcel of land
located in the PRC during the year ended June 30, 2022
through the acquisition of a subsidiary as disclosed in Note
27(b), with a lease term of 40 years.

Rental deposits

The refundable rental deposit itself is not part of the lease
payments and is in the scope of IFRS 9. Therefore, the rental
deposit should be measured at fair value on initial recognition.
The difference between the initial fair value and the nominal
value of the deposit is an additional lease payment made by the
Group and it is included in the measurement of the right-of-use
assets.

COVID-19-Related Concessions

The Group has early adopted the 2021 Amendment to IFRS16,
Leases, COVID-19-Related Concessions beyond 30 June
2021, and has applied the practical expedient introduced by
the Amendment to all eligible rent concessions received by the
Group during the year ended June 30, 2022.

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

14 FREEE (8)

GEE

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

v)

ME—-EREEE

FEBAENRNGH  RELTEEHEY
¥ - WRAGHNEERBER2ESF B
REEENEENAE R2E104F o

ENHERN A ZHEENR
ETEEENENBEEHEENK K
HEEMTNESERFHERR D EETRAL
EENR—EEHZEE1%E15% ° EL
RN R B S ERKE - INEAFH
MEERRNTEEDRER -

RERE-EREEE
AEEHRERERME  HH/2E3F -

Tl A

REE2022566 300 ILFE - ANEERA
B — R BB A B (Mt 5527 (b) Pt 58 ) 115
TR B R — 3R+ it i)+ e R4 - 7257
RA0F ©

HEZe
RENBEEREAN G TBRAEN KA —
g - MEBNCERMBIREEL) E95%
MEE - Fit - HERS EEVIAERER
ARABEFE - NRAAEBERREEEE
BzHNZRRAEEXNNBEIIEER
R HBSIAEREEENTET °

COVID-1948R8 @R ER
REEFEHA202146 300 2% #872021
F(REBRI B RE2ER]) F165% [FHE HEFTA
[COVID-19fHBTE & & % A R B #HEFT A3
AR {THREF AEARASE@NEE2022
F6A30B L FERMMESNMEAERES
B o

2023F EE o RAIER L



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15 B EE

Software
LI
RMB’000
ARBT T

Cost: B4 :
At July 1, 2021 72202147 A1H 107,583
Purchases & 3,922
Disposals & (24)
Exchange adjustments [ 5 35 (63)
At June 30, 2022 220226 A30H 111,418
Purchases & 2,450
Exchange adjustments [E & ;5% (61)
At June 30, 2023 7202346 H30H 113,807

Accumulated amortization: E5T#i8H :

At July 1, 2021 R202147 A1H (46,237)
Charge for the year F R {1 (21,400)
Written off on disposal Hi & i 8 2
Exchange adjustments [ 3 F§ % 20
At June 30, 2022 7202246 F30H (67,615)
Charge for the year A (20,175)
Exchange adjustments [ 3% (7
At June 30, 2023 7202346 530 H (87,797)

Impairment: jE{E :

At July 1, 2021 7220217 H1H (341)
Charge for the year X (423)
Exchange adjustments [ 552 27
At June 30, 2022 7202246 H30H (737)
Exchange adjustments [ 5572 4
At June 30, 2023 74202346 H30 H (733)

Net book value: BREE{E :
At June 30, 2022 7202246 530 H 43,066

At June 30, 2023 72202346 430 H 25,277
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR WK

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

PREPAYMENTS 16

Prepayment for construction of a new headquarters building (Note 27(b))

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

RN FIR

As at June 30,
M6 H30H
2022

2023
20234
RMB’000
ARMT

20224
RMB’000
ARETIT

EIEFTRE R TR B (H5E27(b)) 200,861 -
Others E A 821 -
Total &5t 201,682 -

OTHER INVESTMENTS 17

Financial assets measured at FVTPL:
UAAREEFEAHSEHGTAEHEZNEREE *

Non-current JE7R &)

Hibix&

As at June 30,
M6 H30H
2022 2023
20234
RMB’000

AR®T T

20224
RMB’000
ARETIT

— Investment in an unlisted enterprise JE E R E - 73,870

Current R B

— Investments in trust investment schemes (53ti% &1 2|1 E 208,649 205,329

— Others E 1t 1,874 -
210,523 205,329

In December 2020, the Group invested in a trust investment
scheme (“Trust Scheme A”) established and managed
by a trust company as the trustee with the principal of
RMB100,000,000 and an initial investment period of within
one year. The Group subsequently extended the investment
period to September 2023. Pursuant to the agreement, the
Trust Scheme A is designated to make the majority of its
investments in debt securities, while the principal and return
of the investment are not guaranteed. Fair value of this
investment as of June 30, 2022 and 2023 was estimated to be
RMB1083,537,000 and RMB101,600,000, respectively.

R2020F12 A » AEBRER —REFLAA
(EAZEANRILEENETRESE(1E
FErrElAl) - EA$e B ARY100,000,000
TC AR EER A—F A o BEEAEE
WEHRTERZE2023F9 A - BiEZ WS =
AR EAEEARDRERNERES - MIRE
B E R B3R AERE - ;2R EHZE20224F
}2023F6 430 HH AR EBEMTAFIAAR
#£103,537,0007T & A K% 101,600,000 °

2023F[EHE o RAIER S



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B TSR R M

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

17 OTHER INVESTMENTS (continued)

176

In July 2021, the Group invested in another trust investment
scheme (“Trust Scheme B”) established and managed
by a trust company as the trustee with the principal of
RMB100,000,000 and an initial investment period of
within one year. The Group subsequently extended the
investment period to July 2023. Pursuant to the agreement,
the Trust Scheme B is designated to make the majority of
its investments in debt securities, while the principal and
return of the investment are not guaranteed. Fair value of this
investment as of June 30, 2022 and 2023 was estimated to be
RMB105,112,000 and RMB103,729,000, respectively.

In June 2023, the Group invested in an unlisted limited
partnership enterprise (the “Partnership Enterprise”)
with consideration of USD10,409,000 (equivalent to
RMB73,870,000). The Partnership Enterprise is specialized
in equity investment. The Group has an intention of holding
such investments as long-term investments. According to
the partnership agreement, the Partnership Enterprise is
managed by its general partner. The Group participates in
the Partnership Enterprise as one of the limited partners who
does not have power on selection nor removal of assets
manager or general partner of the Partnership Enterprise.
In addition, the Group does not have any right on making
operating, investing and financing decision of the Partnership
Enterprise. The director is of the opinion that the Group does
not have any control nor significant influence to affect the
variable returns through its investment in the Partnership
Enterprise and therefore this investment is accounted for as
financial assets measured at FVTPL. The fair value of this
investment as at June 30, 2023 was measured with reference
to recent transaction price.

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit and market
risks, and fair value measurement, is included in Note 28.

MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023

17 HiRE (88)

R2021F7 8 AEEBRER —KREZLLQ
B (EARTEA)RINERENS —HEFT
"EFEI([{E5E5T8IB)) - EAS AARK
100,000,0007T * #MRIEEHR B—F AR o
PEE AR B IEEHRLERE2023F7H »
BIEZ 3 - ErEstEIBE EALOIZRENE
HESE MEENAS KOHMAERE - %
WEE T 20224 202346 A30 NI A A B
EEE D BIAARE105,112,0007T & A R
103,729,0007T °

M2023F6 A - AEEKRE—KIELMARAE
BE(EBEE]) - HE /10,409,000
T (HERARKET3,870,0007T) - BB %E
B ERERE c AEEEERFAZERE
EREBIRE - IRIBERENZ - A% HEA
HEBEBAETE - AEBEAERERALZ
—2HAERLE  MAERGBRAEREBENE
REABLENBEERARLBEEA ° It
Sh 0 REBEERIEEABOENEE  REK
BRERIR - EFRA - NGB I M H i
REATEN  NWBRBHEREBLEZIRAY
R F0IR - FZIEEWS AR R EER
EEHEZHFAEHPESNERMEE - ZINE
720236 A30 AWM AR BEIZE TR
SERETE -

BRASEERNEERTSRBRARDAE
EFtEMNERFNHE28 -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R AR MY AT

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

18 INVENTORIES 18 #&

As at June 30,
M6 H30H
2022 2023

20224 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT AR¥ET T

Finished goods & i 1,186,810 1,447,799
Low-value consumables K18 5 1,285 2,720
1,188,095 1,450,519
(@) The analysis of the amount of inventories () CEHEIAARIZEFABENEES
recognized as an expense and included in profit or BEAOMWT :

loss is as follows:

For the year ended June 30,
BZ6H30HLLFE
2022 2023

20224 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT AR®ET T

Carrying amount of inventories sold 2 &£ 77 & 2 BFE 458 6,915,713 6,879,212
Reversal of write-down of inventories 77 & J& {E # [2] (44,737) (19,850)

Cost of inventories recognized in consolidated statements of profit or loss
RiFaBmKRPRRNFEXAE 6,870,976 6,859,362

2023 ERE o BAIER LN



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19 E5 R HEAMEWRE

As at June 30,
HR6A30H
2022 2023

20224 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AR¥ET T

Non-current 3EENHH

Amounts due from related parties J& 4 B85 75 ZUIB 31(c) - 10,647
Deposits & & 10,000 41,834
Value-added tax (“VAT”) recoverable S FIE(EF 18,274 22,160
28,274 74,641
Current EHj
Trade receivables & 5 FE WK1 375,798 394,727
Less: loss allowance i : E518## 28(a) (85,117) (88,764)
Trade receivables, net of loss allowance 2 5 FEWFIE (F1k: E1E 5 ) 290,681 305,963
Amounts due from related parties f&4 #3577 ZUIE 31(c) 5,105 5,602
Miscellaneous expenses paid on behalf of franchisees
AN R S MR IR R XX 246,097 265,335
VAT recoverable & HIEEHE 182,906 270,298
Rental deposits fl &%z & 101,124 86,600
Receivables due from on-line payment platforms and banks (i)
JEUSFEAR S 1~ F & R ERTTRRIA() 26,806 34,726
Prepayments for inventories 77 &8~ 18 52,476 49,631
Prepayments for licensing expenses %&£ & 81z 18 35,223 40,934
Prepayments for listing expenses relating to Hong Kong public offering
HEBARBEEHFRN EHRXENKIE 58,560 -
Prepayments for promotion and advertising expenses
fRiH N & & B S TR KR 9,302 17,374
Others HA, 47,918 73,693
1,056,198 1,150,156
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19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

Notes:

@)

(ii)

(i)

Receivables due from on-line payment platforms and banks
mainly represented the proceeds of online sales through
e-commerce platforms collected by and retained in third-party
online payment platforms. Withdrawal of the balances retained
in online payment platforms could be made anytime upon the
Group’s instructions. The amounts also included those due
from banks for offline sales made through customer credit/
debit cards and other online payment platforms that require
overnight processing by the collection banks.

All of trade and other receivables classified as current portion
are expected to be recovered or recognized as expense within
one year.

Trade debtors are due within 20 to 180 days from the date
of revenue recognition for domestic and overseas customers
respectively. Further details on the Group’s credit policy and
credit risk arising from trade debtors are set out in Note 28(a).

Aging analysis

As of the end of each reporting period, the aging analysis of
trade receivables, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

MG

(ii)

(il

e PR WK

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

19 EZREMEBWRE (&)

RESRINFERRTFELIERAF=
FERINFEEBREFENEHER T A
REHEMBSHOR - RERNERIMNFA L
MEREE R RIBAEBIERBERER - 252
ETERRREFERAR AR RREME
AT B ETAR T B S A EUERTTRR0A -
ZEN T RRIRI TR R IE

P A B ABNERER 2 B2 5 I EoAth & IR TE
FHE—F AR E R R o

BA&kBING FRIE SERA D IR
#®Z B#20E=180AAEIH - BEEAAEE =
BEHRRRESBEBAEENEERROE
L BRI HIE28(a) ©

IRER DA
BESMERR - EREF ARG ERR
BIRNE 5 RUGRREKDITAT

As at June 30,
A6H30H

2022 2023
20224 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBFTT AR¥T T
Within 90 days 90K 182,184 281,511
91 to 180 days 91180~ 89,050 20,112
181 to 360 days 1812360k~ 8,108 2,332
361 to 540 days 361 £540K 11,233 1,074
Over 540 days #:8540K 106 934
290,681 305,963
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e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20 RERAESEEY
Cash and cash equivalents comprise: ReRRELEEYERE

As at June 30,
M6 H30H
2022 2023

20224 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARET T

Cash on hand F 2R & 450 576
Cash at bank $E171F 5,348,042 6,488,637

Cash and cash equivalents as presented in the consolidated statements
of financial position and in the consolidated statements of cash flows
FEUBHRRARMGERERERINTHRE LIRS EEY 5,348,492 6,489,213

21 RESTRICTED CASH 21 ZRHERE

As at June 30,
MA6H30H
2022 2023

20224 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AR¥ET T

Bank deposits held in an escrow bank account () & $R1T78E P A B8R 1T1E2K() 5,772 1,391
Bank deposits frozen for legal proceedings (i) FIJA 2R 5 FA T 4K 3R 45 RO SR 1717 7K (i) 26,604 25,682
32,376 27,073
Notes: FI5E -
()  The balance represented cash held in an escrow bank () ZERKENTHEFZEERTEPFANERS -
account in the PRC with designated usage of settlement with BEBRRAEMBEETEE -

franchisees.

(i)  The balance mainly represented deposits frozen for the lawsuit iy WOKIFESO(D)ATIFEEE - ZAEBEEIREBTIE
relating to illicit competition as disclosed in Note 30(b). EBRFITRBNFAMBPRENTTR
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e B TSR R M

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

22 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 22 REREHR
(@) Reconciliation of profit for the year to cash (@ FRFEHEKEMESRSNEER :

generated from operations:

For the year ended June 30,
BZ6H30HLLFE
2022 2023

20224 20234
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt ARETIT AR¥ET T

Profit for the year & R F;H 639,743 1,781,829
Adjustments for: & LA NEIF% ¢

Interest on lease liabilities & & &5 & 9 32,991 34,396
Depreciation and amortization #7%& % i $4 7 389,871 391,167
Interest on loans and borrowings & % & f& 7 & 9 405 226
Interest income F S U A 9 (66,344) (145,225)
Investment income from other investments E {th#% & H3% & W a5 8 (63,801) (42,921)

Net change in fair value of other investments
HRE QAR BEZEFHE 8 (5,709) 3,692
Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment and

intangible assets

HEWE - BERREURELEERNEE 8 5,614 5,350
Impairment loss on non-current assets £/ )& EREE 2 13,485 3,448
Unrealized foreign exchange loss/(gain) Ak IR INEE 18, (W zs) 6,806 (45,522)
Effect of lease contract cancellation BUSTE & RIH) 572 (25,015) 3,681

Share of loss of an equity-accounted investee, net of tax

DI AR E AR IR E A BRI EE - BiRFE 8,162 -
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses

PARESS 45 B RO AR STV B X 7 82,835 62,882
Income tax Fr5 %% 10(a) 267,070 551,785
Changes in working capital: &8 & & &) :

Inventories 7 & 307,966 (250,851)
Trade and other receivables & 5 & E fth fE 5K I18 (190,145) (185,768)
Contract liabilities & #18 & 86,314 (73,539)
Trade and other payables & 5 & H {b f& {78 180,122 (34,055)
Restricted cash X [R#l|3R & (28,696) 5,303

Deferred income iEFEU % (5,282) 19,074

Cash generated from operations L& Fi5H & 1,636,392 2,084,952

2023FEHHE o HAES kA
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e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

22 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 22 REREH (EB)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) BMETENFIEEEBENHER:
activities:

Loans and Interest Lease
borrowings payable liabilities Total
ERRMER FESTAILE HEBE &5t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTET
Note 24
Bzt 24

At July 1, 2021 A20215781H 20,594 667 804,412 825,673

Changes from financing cash flows:

RMERSRBE

Repayment of loans and borrowings & & &% &2 f& 5% (5,295) = = (5,295)

Interest of loans and borrowings paid

ENERRERFE - (1,000) - (1,000)

Payment of capital element and interest

element of lease liabilities

SRHEAGENERT D NF S - = (317,017) (317,017)
Total changes from financing cash flows
BEIR M EARTE (5,295) (1,000) (317,017) (323,312)
Exchange adjustments [E 3= & 197 (29) 2,260 2,428
Other changes: E &8 :

Increase in lease liabilities from entering into

new leases during the year

FRETLHEA A E & EE - - 338,131 338,131

Decrease in lease liabilities from derecognition

RIFEREHNEER B - - (209,712)  (209,712)

Increase in interest expenses |5 5757 1 N = 405 32,991 33,396

Forgiveness of loans and borrowings 4% &51 I (&£ 31 (8,548) = = (8,548)
Total other changes E fth & 4@ %8 (8,548) 405 161,410 153,267
At June 30, 2022 74202246 530 H 6,948 43 651,065 658,056
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22 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

(b)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities: (continued)

e PR WK

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

22 BERER (8)
b) BMEITHFELEBWYHE (&

Loans and Interest Lease
borrowings payable liabilities Total
ERRER ERRE HEEE &%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRE AR®TR AR®BTRT AR%®TR
Note 24
FizE24
At July 1, 2022 }A2022%F7 B 1H 6,948 43 651,065 658,056
Additions through business combination (Note 27(a))
BRLESHNRE (ME27() - - 15,313 15,313
Changes from financing cash flows: B& 8 &7 &5 :
Repayment of loans and borrowings 1€i& &7 & &7 (206) - - (206)
Payment of capital element and interest
element of lease liabilities
X NEEBBENEARE D MF SIS - - (346,008)  (346,008)
Total changes from financing cash flows
MERSREBRR (206) - (346,008)  (346,214)
Exchange adjustments [E RE% 576 - 25,267 25,843
Other changes: E 1% 8 :
Increase in lease liabilities from entering into
new leases during the year
FRRIFEA) S BN E R EIG AN - - 718,985 718,985
Decrease in lease liabilities from derecognition
RIFERERNEEAERD - - (213,284)  (213,284)
Increase in interest expenses F|.8 7 Sz 1 A1 - 226 34,396 34,622
Forgiveness of loans and borrowings A% B 7% [ &7k (103) - - (103)
Total other changes Hth & ) 4858 (103) 226 540,097 540,220
At June 30, 2023 42023F6 530H 7,215 269 885,734 893,218
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e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

22 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 22

(c) Total cash out flow for leases:

RERER (8)
(c HERSRELHE:
For the year ended June 30,

BE6H30ALFE
2022 2023

20224 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBTT

Within operating cash flows S2ER & EIE SR (33,032) (71,185)
Within financing cash flows 57 ERRE & IR £ 7t (317,017) (346,008)
(350,049) (417,193)
23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23 ESRHMENKIE

As at June 30,
M6 H30H
2022 2023

20224 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREET T AR¥T T

Trade payables & 5 & 71E 649,415 653,713
Payroll payable fEff T & 68,969 93,065
Accrued expenses fExTFI Sz 264,905 236,594
Other taxes payable H (< F5 18 52,078 49,072
Deposits 14 1,875,380 1,785,405
Payable relating to leasehold improvements 18 [EAFH & 2 & e (< 7018 37,109 47,654
Amounts due to related parties (Note 31(c)) F& 1~ B 75 7138 (FizE31(c)) 13,710 6,371
Others Eftb 111,425 147,428

3,072,991 3,019,302

Information about the Group’s exposure to currency and
liquidity risks is included in Note 28.

The credit period granted by suppliers is 30 to 90 days.

Deposits received from suppliers, distributors and franchisees
may be repayable to suppliers, distributors and franchisees
after more than one year. All of the other trade payables,
other payables, accruals and amounts due to related parties
or franchisees are expected to be settled within one year or
are repayable on demand.
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e B RS R AR MY AT

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 23 25 &2 fhfE(EI1E (&)

Aging analysis RER DT
As of the end of each reporting period, the aging analysis of HESHRESHR  ENBEEAHELNEFE
trade payables, based on the invoice date and net of loss RFIBHIBR B R < BREC D ITIA T -

allowance, is as follows:

As at June 30,
M6 H30H
2022 2023

20224 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT AR®F T

Within 1 month 1{& A A 599,280 613,353
1 to 3 months 1 Z=31& A 32,308 27,210
3 months to 1 year 318 A =14 5,010 7,350
Over 1 year 15 A E 12,817 5,800

649,415 653,713

2023F EE o RAIER REH
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e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

24 LEASE LIABILITIES 24 HERE
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities TREJIAEEHERENSREARNAKT
of the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the reporting BHEIEBER
periods:

As at June 30, 2022 As at June 30, 2023
7202256 A30H 72023546 A30H
Present Present

value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum

lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
REHE EHE RIEHEE RIEESE
RREIRE NFER ARHRE e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARBTRT AR%¥TR

Within 1 year —4F LA 257,997 263,332 328,933 334,778
After 1 year but within 2 years — S & {EfRER 176,047 188,172 251,844 259,048
After 2 years but within 5 years FFE &8 R F K 188,031 215,398 227,048 260,188
After 5 years LA E 28,990 39,421 77,909 110,215

393,068 442,991 556,801 630,351

651,065 706,323 885,734 965,129

Less: total future interest expenses & : K2 F B FI7 58 (55,258) (79,395)
Present value of lease liabilities f & & {FIR{E 651,065 885,734
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25 CAPITAL AND RESERVES

(@)

Share capital and additional paid-in capital

As at June 30, 2022 and 2023, the Company authorized
5,000,000,000 ordinary shares, with a par value of
US$0.00001 each.

As of June 30, 2022 and 2023, analysis of the
Company’s issued shares including treasury shares
reserved for the share incentive plan, was as follows:

As at June 30, 2022

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

25 EXR#HE
(a) BARERAIE
HZE2022F 22023F6 A30H © AR
A %#£5,000,000,000 iX F A% BR E &
0.00001 E Ty E @A o

HZE2022F N 2023F6 H30H * A A]

BB 1T (B R AR 8l (RE
MERFB) DM

As at June 30, 2023

7202246 A30H 7202346 A30H
Number of Share Number of Share
shares capital shares capital
R1DELE [N RHEE B
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT N
Class A ordinary shares A% i@A% 897,275,873 69 - -
Class B ordinary shares B8 % 328,290,482 23 - -
Ordinary shares &% - - 1,263,689,685 95
1,225,566,355 92 1,263,689,685 95

(i) Prior to the Company’s listing on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, the Company adopted
a dual-class share structure, including Class A
ordinary shares and Class B ordinary shares.
Holders of the Class A ordinary shares and Class
B ordinary shares had the same rights except for
voting and conversion rights. In respect of matters
requiring the votes of shareholders, the holder of
Class B ordinary shares was entitled to three votes
per share, while the holders of Class A ordinary
shares entitled to one vote per share. Each
Class B ordinary share was convertible into one
Class A ordinary share at any time by the holder
thereof, while Class A ordinary shares were not
convertible into Class B ordinary shares under any
circumstances.

() RAREEFBBRALEMA - A
REFATERERNRE (BEA
BEBEBREBREER) - BIRE
NEHES - AREBREBEY
BERAFAE ARBHRER - £F
ZRFEENZR L BEEAERK
FEABRBE=FRRE MmMAE
BBRBRRRERAE —RERRE -
MBI E BRI A AR EE R
RARARE B - MAREBEK
FEEMIER TEA AR B E
il
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

25 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(@) Share capital and additional paid-in capital

(continued)

(i) Pursuant to the annual general meeting of
shareholders of the Company held on July 11,
2022, upon and with effective from the Company’s
listing on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, all
the authorized Class A ordinary shares (whether
issued or unissued) and Class B ordinary shares
(whether issued or unissued) are redesignated
as ordinary shares of a par value of US$0.00001

each.

(iiiy  On July 13, 2022, the Company completed its dual
primary listing on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
In connection with the dual primary listing, the
Company completed a global offering and issued
41,586,200 ordinary shares, including 486,200
shares upon exercise of the over-allotment option,
with a par value of US$0.00001 each and offer

price of HK$13.80 each.

(iv) During the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2023,
3,897,180 and 4,161,100 of restricted shares,
restricted shares units and options were vested
and exercised, and were released from treasury

shares into ordinary shares.

(v)  As at June 30, 2022 and 2023, among the ordinary
shares issued, 22,919,736 and 18,834,996 shares
were recognized as treasury shares (see Note

25(b)(v)), respectively.

Pursuant to a resolution approved by the board
of directors of the Company on May 16, 2023, the
Company transferred RMB730,898,000 (equivalent to
USD105 million) of additional paid-in capital to set off its

accumulated losses.
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25 EXKf#iE ()
RAREARDHE ()

(@)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

BIEARQATN2022F7 811 BB
ARRRBFRE  BAQAR
BB LMz B TR
BRAEEBER (TwmEETIR
E1T) RBIELER (T B 3BT
REITIWETIETASRAEES
0.00001 £ TTHYE @A o

R2022F7 138 » ARARIRE
B FTER EETE ET o i
EFXFE LT - ARRITKEREE
7 £7741,586,2000% I FA% (H AR
BIER B AR IET TR M B THY
486,200(%) + E%E{E £0.00001
ETREBREEER13.8087TT ©

HE20224 2023456 A30H I
FE 3,897,180 124,161,100 A%
PR HIAR D - PR HIA% 0 B8 AL R B A%
BEFEBRITE - WHEFRDE
BT o

HE20224 K 2023F6 530H -
BETERRF 22,919,736 &
18,834,996 %2 7 BlfER AETF IR
17 (FF2HMEE25(b)(v)) °

BERANFEEZN2023F5H16
BHERRZER - AAREREARE
730,898,000 T (FHEMN105 B &3 T)H)
BARDNERKEE RATEE -
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25 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(b) Nature and purposes of reserves

U]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve mainly represents the
difference between the consideration paid and
the paid-in capital acquired arising from business
combinations involving entities under common
control during the year ended June 30, 2019.

Translation reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents the
portion of the grant date fair value of restricted
shares, share options and restricted share units
granted to the key management personnel and
employees of the Group that has been recognized
in accordance with the accounting policy adopted
for share-based payments in Note 2(q)(iii).

PRC statutory reserve

PRC statutory reserves are established in
accordance with the PRC Company Law and the
Articles of Association of the subsidiaries which
are established in the PRC. The subsidiary being
an equity joint venture with foreign investment,
transfers certain percentages of the net profit
to a statutory surplus reserve at the discretion
of its board of directors. The subsidiaries being
wholly foreign-owned enterprise or wholly
domestic-owned enterprises, are required to
allocate at least 10% of its net profits to a statutory
surplus reserve. The transfer to this reserve must
be made before distribution of dividends to equity
shareholders can be made.

PRC statutory reserve can be used to make
good previous years’ losses, if any, and may be
converted into capital in proportion to their existing
equity holdings, provided that the balance of the
statutory surplus reserve after such transfer is not
less than 25% of the registered capital.

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

25 EXRK#E (&)
(b) RBENEEREDN
(i) EbtEE
A HFEEEEZIEEZE2019F6 A30
BItFER—ZH T EEAATX
R EERESMNERE R Z HA
EE o

(i) BERE
BE RN E N ETS TR
REEMFTEINEZEE -

(iii) URGBAEEBRNLREE
LARD AEBAN R HEESIEER
TR 5 2(q)(iii) P BE DA RR (D A EREE
NERETRA S 5T BUR R AR T
AEEBEEREABREENTR
IR - BEARHE K& 2 BR I A% (0 BE AL
WETAAREED -

(iv) HEZELAES
FBUEE ATES TIRIEFR (AR
S5 ) RAE A B Ak ST A BT BB A B R 4B
BERMAUMSET - B AFA
HNEIRERNGEDRE - AIRHEES
SMIBERE S —E B DL AFEFE
EAEERBATESD - BB AR
ROINEBELHEINEBEDZE -
Bl ZER EFFEONZE10% D
REZTRBAESD - BEEETE
BHAES VAR AERKRR DR
IREZBIEH °

FEDATE ATES A AR BE AR S
EREE(E) - RAHZERER
fEEEFlEE A5 E A - B8 AE KIZH
ETE BB ATESHRBNSENTM
EARH25% ©
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

25 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(b)

Nature and purposes of reserves (continued)

(v)

Treasury shares

The 2020 Share Incentive Plan was administered
by twelve special purpose vehicles, and the Group
has the power to govern the relevant activities of
the twelve special purpose vehicles and can derive
benefits from the contributions of the employees
who were awarded with the shares under 2020
Share Incentive Plan, therefore, the twelve special
purpose vehicles were consolidated.

The balance of treasury shares mainly include
the considerations received from special purpose
vehicles for unvested and forfeited restricted
shares, and the cost of the Company’s shares held
by the Group.

On December 21, 2021, the board of directors
authorized a share repurchase program under
which the Company may repurchase up to
USD200 million of its shares until September 21,
2022 (the “2021 share repurchase program”).

During the period from December 21, 2021 to June
30, 2022, the Company repurchased 6,111,276
Class A ordinary shares under the 2021 share
repurchase program for a total consideration of
USD12,763,000 (equivalent to RMB82,160,000).

On September 29, 2022, the board of directors
authorized a new share repurchase program
under which the Company may repurchase up
to USD100 million of its shares within a period of
12 months starting from September 29, 2022 (the
“2022 share repurchase program”).
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25 BN f#HE ()
RBIMEER B/ (&)

(b)

(v)

B

2020 F f& D B AT 8l 1 12 R 45k
EMARERE  AEBH12KE
HREMARMNEBEESEFES
7 B A AR E 2020 F B 19 B
TEIERBONE THEETESH
@ A#EZ12KEHRE AT

B -

ERRMEHTERBRENSHKE N
NS EIES S Y8 O-L GO
AR EEHE - ARAEERFEH
ARRBIBADEIRAS

R2021F12 H21H - EF &bk
T—HEBRHEEEE  RIBEZET
2 AR A R20229F9 A21H
ZAIEI R %200 H & ETTHRD
([2021 FRREEEFTEI]) ©

7202112 H21 HE202246 A
30 HHEAfE - AR AEIRIE2021F A
HEBLOETEIEEE6,111,276 RALE
Ly - BN E512,763,000% 7T
(FHERARS2,160,0007T) °

MN2022F9 5290 F EESRE
—IEFRMEOEEE - B AR
AR B 202299 A29HE:THI12
&l A BRI AT Bl B8 £ % 100 B B35 T
R ([2022 RN EEEIZTEN ) -
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25 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(b) Nature and purposes of reserves (continued)

(v)

Treasury shares (continued)

During the year ended June 30, 2023, the
Company repurchased ordinary shares under the
2021 and 2022 share repurchase programs as
follows, and the cost of the Company’s shares
held by the Group was recorded in treasury

e PR WK

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

25 EXRK#E (&)
(b) fEENMEEREN (E)
(v) EFRGE)
REE2023F6 A30H IEFE -
NN BIRE 2021 6 K 2022 F J& D
BEEDEL BRI T  LRA
LB B AR TR KATAE
T

shares:

Shares repurchased on the New York Stock Exchange

Shares repurchased on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

FEERH ] FEIER (A
Number of Highest Lowest Number of Highest Lowest
shares  pricepaid  pricepaid  Aggregate shares price paid pricepaid  Aggregate
repurchased per share pricepaid  repurchased pershare price paid
IEE: . Finscfdh BXH# el |
i %RE iy BE i

USD'000

TET
July 2022 20227 A 40,000 1.94 1.94 78 - - - -
September 2022 20229 A 36,360 1.39 1.39 51 - - - -
October 2022 2022410 A 2,921,668 1.39 1.12 3,692 166,000 10.38 9.98 1,696
November 2022 202211 A 375,200 1.50 140 549 - - = =
Total A3f 3,373,228 4370 166,000 1,69
Equivalent to RMB'000 SE AR EB T 31,175 1,536

Pursuant to 2021 share repurchase program, the
Company had repurchased a total of 6,187,636
ordinary shares on the New York Stock Exchange
as of September 21, 2022, the expiry date of the
program. In October 2022, the board of directors
of the Company approved to transferred all these
6,187,636 repurchased shares to special purpose
vehicles for future grants of share awards under
the 2020 Share Incentive Plan.

Under the 2022 share repurchase program,
166,000 shares repurchased on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange and 3,296,868 shares
repurchased on the New York Stock Exchange
were cancelled as of June 30, 2023.

BIE2021 FRMHBERTE - HZE
202249 A21 B (BazaHEIA E &
B)  AARBEDBHZBLR S
EEEA 6,187,636 I E @A o A
NAEEFER2022510 A#LE -
15 P A 7% %6,187,636 % @ BE A% 1
EZTERAMAE  AERRR
%2020 F 1D BB T 813 H AR (5

F2022F M BERGEIF - B
BB RFTEE 166,000 % 1%
BERBHEFELFRZEERD
3,296,868 Iz ix 77220236 H 30
HEFH -
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25 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

192

(c)

Capital management

The Group defines “capital” as including all components
of equity. The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong
capital base to maintain investors, creditors and market
confidence and to sustain future development of
the business. There were no changes in the Group’s
approach to capital management during the year. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements.

Dividends

During the year ended June 30, 2022, dividends
of US$0.039 per ordinary share, amounting to
USD47,178,000 (equivalent to RMB306,255,000), in
respect of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 were
declared and paid by the Company. The dividends were
distributed from additional paid-in capital.

During the year ended June 30, 2023, special cash
dividends of US$0.043 per ordinary share, amounting to
USD53,640,000 (equivalent to RMB370,787,000), were
declared and paid by the Company. The dividends were
distributed from additional paid-in capital.

Final dividends of US$0.103 per ordinary share,
amounting to USD128.8 million, in respect of the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, were proposed and
approved by the board of directors of the Company
in August 2023. The dividends will be distributed from
additional paid-in capital and have not been recognized
as liabilities as of June 30, 2023.
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26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

PAYMENTS

The Group has adopted share-based compensation
arrangements to incentivize outstanding performance.
Pursuant to the 2020 Share Incentive Plan, as amended in
June 2022, restricted shares, options, restricted share units
or other approved awards may be granted to the Group’s
employees, directors, and consultants.

As at June 30, 2022, the maximum aggregate number
of shares that could be issued under the 2020 Share
Incentive Plan was 92,586,048. In October 2022, 6,187,636
repurchased shares were transferred to special purpose
vehicles and reserved for future grants of share awards under
the 2020 Share Incentive Plan (Note 25(b)(v)).

As at June 30, 2023, the maximum aggregate number of
shares that could be issued under the 2020 Share Incentive
Plan was 98,773,684.

The 2020 Share Incentive Plan will remain in effect for a period
of 103 months, commencing on January 7, 2020, unless
terminated earlier by the Company’s board of directors.

(@) Share awards

On August 27, 2018, the board of directors approved
the grant of restricted shares of the Company to certain
employees of the Group. Some of the restricted shares
granted were immediately vested upon grant, while the
remaining shares will vest according to individual vesting
schedules ranging from two to four years from the
grant date. The vesting is conditional upon employees
remaining in service throughout a specified period
(“Specified Service Period”) without any performance
requirements.

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)
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26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

PAYMENTS (continued)

(@)

Share awards (continued) (a)
If employees leave the Group before a qualified IPO
takes place, the awarded shares will be forfeited. The
forfeited shares will be repurchased by a shareholder
designated by the Group at the original exercise price,
and with an additional 10% per annum interest, where
applicable. As such, the actual vesting period of the
restricted shares is dependent on the occurrence
of an IPO. The Group considered that an IPO was
probable to occur and has recognized the share-based
compensation expenses over the estimated actual
vesting period, which is based on the estimate of when
an IPO will occur or the Specified Service Period,
whichever is longer.

Movements in the number of restricted shares granted
to employees and the respective weighted-average
grant date fair values are as follows:

26 LIEZmAENRG M (&)

i iR 8 (48)

HMETHEARBERBRARBESHIEARE
BIRER: - R BZRD AR 10 S BOL I - BUL IR
Y B 7 1 B AR R B RE MY BRI IR 1T {2
BR10%MEEINEE (WER) 2 -
It ZRGIROOEREBHIOARNE
RAFABENERL - ARERBBERA
FMBEERIUEELE  WEMATERRS
HIMMER ) AERNF M X - 45T
ERRBHNENEERARBEEHE
BRENGEFT SR ERBHY  UBEES

# o

BRTETIMXRHIRMNEE REEA M
BEERETEAABERSWT ¢

Weighted-average
exercise price

Weighted-average
grant date fair

Number of US$ per value US$ per

restricted shares restricted share restricted share

B 1 Az (0 #9

X B il A% 10 #Y MEEFHE T A

MEFHITEE TR

B HIRNEE LBk EER

Outstanding as of July 1, 2021 B Z2021F7 818 K{T 5,755,788 0.036 7.67
Vested during the year F N5 & (2,114,000) 0.036 7.67
Forfeited during the year F /)% Ug (1,101,368) 0.036 7.67
Outstanding as of June 30, 2022 ;220226 A 30 H & 17/# 2,540,420 0.036 7.67
Outstanding as of July 1, 2022 #Z202247 A1 B R{T{E 2,540,420 0.036 7.67
Vested during the year & N 57/8 (2,496,668) 0.036 7.67
Forfeited during the year F /)% Ug (43,752) 0.036 7.67

Outstanding as of June 30, 2023 ;220236 A30 H K17/ -

Total compensation expense calculated based on the
grant date fair value and the estimated forfeiture rate
recognized in the consolidated statements of profit
or loss for these share awards granted to the Group’s
employees were RMB5,067,000 and RMB613,000 for
the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2023, respectively.
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26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
PAYMENTS (continued)

(b)

Share options

The board of directors approved the grants of share
options to purchase ordinary shares of the Company
to certain employees of the Group on January 16, 2020

and September 27, 2020.

Each of 20% of the above options granted will vest on
the 1st trading day following each of the 1st, 2nd, 3rd,
4th and 5th anniversary of the grant date, respectively,
on the condition that employees remain in service
without any performance requirements. The options

lapse on the tenth anniversary of the grant date.

The option activities during the years ended June 30,

2022 and 2023 are summarized as follows:

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)
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(b) AR
EE2R20209F1 A16 H % 202049 A
27 BiLEMASEE S TIEREE TRERE
NEEANRIERR -

SR T E) B 20 % HO R B K 0 BRI
TEHENE— F= F= FORSE
hBFRNF-EARXZERE - Al
BENEBEIARERENERTEET
B o BRERNE T B HRFRAM o

BEE 20224 K% 202346 A30H ILFEH
BB AT -

Weighted-average

Weighted-average grant date

Number of exercise price fair value

options US$ per share USS$ per share

X7 B Eiy N

IETSTERE FHRAEE

ERERE ETER ETER

Outstanding at July 1, 2021 7202157 518 &7 12,400,836 0.036 3.71
Exercised E{Tf (1,783,180) 0.036 3.64
Forfeited )24 (1,699,164) 0.036 4.01
Outstanding at June 30, 2022 20226 A 30 B K{Tf£ 8,918,492 0.036 3.67
Exercisable at June 30, 2022 7202246 A 30 H A 17{f 1,888,574 0.036 3.39
Non-vested at June 30, 2022 74202246 730 H K55 /E 7,029,918 0.036 3.74
Outstanding at July 1, 2022 4202257 A1 B R{TfF 8,918,492 0.036 3.67
Exercised E17f# (1,376,096) 0.035 3.90
Forfeited % i (1,841,000) 0.036 3.33
Outstanding at June 30, 2023 74202346 530 B KT 5,701,396 0.036 3.72
Exercisable at June 30, 2023 7202346 430 H A]1T{E 2,114,496 0.036 3.36
Non-vested at June 30, 2023 74202346 A30 H <57 /& 3,586,900 0.036 3.94
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
PAYMENTS (continued)

(b)

Share options (continued)

Total compensation expense calculated based on the
grant date fair value and the estimated forfeiture rate
recognized in the consolidated statements of profit
or loss for the above options granted to the Group’s
employees were RMB77,768,000 and RMB33,306,000
for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2023,
respectively.

Restricted share units

In October 2022, the board of directors approved the
grant of restricted shares units (“RSUs”) to purchase
143,436 ordinary shares of the Company to an
independent non-executive director of the Group at
nil purchase price. The RSUs were divided into two
tranches. The first tranche immediately vested on the
grant date, and the remaining tranche will vest in one
year from the grant date, on the condition that director
remain in service without any performance conditions.

The board of directors also approved the grant of RSUs
to purchase 1,333,360 ordinary shares of the Company
in aggregate to certain employees of the Group at
purchase price of US$0.036 per share during the year
ended June 30, 2023. These RSUs were divided into
three to five tranches. Certain portions of these RSUs
were immediately vested on the grant date, and the
remaining tranches will vest based on individual vesting
schedules ranging from two to four years from the grant
dates, on the condition that the employees remain in
service without any performance conditions.

In addition, the board of directors approved the grant
of RSUs to purchase 5,084,800 ordinary shares of the
Company to an employee of the Group at purchase
price of US$0.036 per share in March 2023. Each of
20% of these RSUs granted will vest on the 1st trading
day following each of the 1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th and 5th
anniversary of the grant date, on the condition that
the employee remains in service and has fulfilled the
respective annual net profit targets for the department
which the employee is in charge of in each of the
calendar years of 2023, 2024, 2025, 2026 and 2027.
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26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
PAYMENTS (continued)

(©

Restricted share units (continued)

Movements in the number of RSUs granted and the
respective weighted-average grant date fair value are as
follows:

Outstanding as of July 1, 2022 #Z2022%7 A1 B K174

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)
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) ZRFIRMEN ()
BRHNZRGIRODEMEE REZB M
BEERTEAABEZSWT

Weighted-average
Weighted-average grant date
Number of purchase price fair value

RSUs US$ per RSU US$ per RSU
MEFHEER MEFHE T A

%) ETERH NREEET
v ¢= P fn B L BPR 5l At B ir

Granted &} 6,561,596 0.035 412
Vested £ 53 /8 (288,336) 0.026 2.42
Forfeited Y% I (107,800) 0.036 2.89
Outstanding as of June 30, 2023 74202346 A30 A KT/ 6,165,460 0.036 4.22

The fair value of RSUs was determined with reference to
the market prices of the Company’s ordinary shares at
the respective grant dates.

The fair value of RSUs granted during the year ended
June 30, 2023 was US$27,004,000 (equivalent to
RMB186,116,000) in aggregate. Total compensation
expense calculated based on the grant date fair
value and the estimated forfeiture rate recognized
in the consolidated statements of profit or loss for
aforementioned RSUs granted were RMB28,963,000 for
the year ended June 30, 2023.

RRHIRODEMLHRABEDZERR
AIEBENERTANMEERE

HZE2023F6 A30H IFFERH
WEBRFHBEDEMNHRAALBES H
£27,004,000% T (HHERARE
186,116,0007T) ° #Z=202346 H30H
ILEE  RERFEAABEERGS
B R ERRN AR R E /9 5 B 7
4% A N R 28,963,000 7T °
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)
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27 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(@)

Business combination

On November 30, 2022, the Group acquired 90% of
shares and voting rights in MINISO VIETNAM LIMITED
LIABILITY COMPANY from a third party, at a cash
consideration of VND3,097,377,000 (equivalent to
RMB893,000).

The following summarizes the recognized amounts of
assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of
acquisition:

27 WEHEB AT

(@)

¥

MR2022%F11 A30H ' AEBRE=
FRKETRZREEREEERA R
0N MM RIEERE  BHe¥EAR
3,097,377,000 /& (IHER AR
893,0007T) °

ATHE TR R IBEE R AER
[EGOJREE

RMB’000
ARETT

Property, plant and equipment ¥ « = & % 1,339
Right-of-use assets {& A& & 10,467
Inventories 175 11,573
Trade and other receivables & 5 F E {th & U 718 12,852
Cash and cash equivalents 3% &R & ZEY) 5,461

Trade and other payables & 5 & E b &~ 5118 (25,387)
Lease liabilities & & (& (15,313)
Total identifiable net assets acquired JXiEH) 7] #4:28 & EE 4058 992
Less: non-controlling interest J& = JEFEAYE RS (99)
Total consideration transferred & :E 48 (E 893

The revenue and profit included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss from the acquisition date
to June 30, 2023 contributed by MINISO VIETNAM
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY was RMB44,036,000
and RMB274,000 respectively.

Acquisition of assets and liabilities through
acquisition of a subsidiary

In December 2020, the Company formed the entity
YGF Investment V Limited (“YGF Investment”) in
the BVI together with YGF MC Limited, a company
controlled by the Controlling Shareholders, to acquire
the right to use a parcel of land in the PRC and to
build a new headquarters building through the YGF
Investment’s subsidiary in the PRC. The Company and
YGF MC Limited held 20% and 80% of the shares of
YGF Investment, respectively. As of June 30, 2021,
the Company had invested RMB356,000,000 in YGF
Investment by cash and accounted for its investment
using the equity method of accounting.
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)
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27 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 27 WEMBLAE (&)
(continued)

Acquisition of assets and liabilities through b) BRBUKEMBARESEERARE
acquisition of a subsidiary (continued) (#&)
On October 27, 2021, the Company acquired the 80% R2021F10 8278 » AR RIAR & %
interest previously held by YGF MC Limited in YGF BEARM694,479,000 T W EEYGF MC
Investment, which became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Limited £ A58 #IYGF Investment (/X
the Group, at a cash consideration of RMB694,479,000. RAEENDENEAR)HI80% s
The cash consideration was determined below: ReYHEEEWNT :

RMB’000
ARETTT

Consideration for 80% equity interest in YGF Investment

YGF Investment 80% % &) 18 1,375,600
Less: the amount of unpaid share capital of YGF MC Limited
& 1 YGF MC Limited®) R Z& A £ 58 (1,001,051)

Net consideration for 80% equity (via payment to YGF MC Limited)
80% AHE )% ¥IME (B[R YGF MC Limited {3%) 374,549
Settlement of the amount due to fellow subsidiary of YGF MC Limited (via additional capital

injection into YGF Investment by the Company)

%5 BT YGF MC Limited# (R Z {8 2 FI50E GREBA R RIMYGF Investmentig &) 319,930

694,479
Upon completion of the acquisition on October 27, 72021410 F27 HIKEEEAK & © YGF
2021, YGF Investment became a wholly-owned Investmentf A4 EEMN 2 EWB AR
subsidiary of the Group.
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)
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27 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)

200

(b)

Acquisition of assets and liabilities through
acquisition of a subsidiary (continued)

The major assets of YGF Investment comprised the
land use right and prepayments for the construction
project of a new headquarters building, for which
no substantive progress was made as at the date of
acquisition. The directors of the Company determined
that the acquisition of assets and liabilities through
acquisition of a subsidiary does not constitute a
business combination. As such transaction is a step
acquisition, the carrying amount of the previously owned
20% equity interest was included as part of the cost of
the acquisition and was not remeasured at the date of
acquisition.

The following summarizes the amounts of assets and
liabilities recognized in Group’s consolidated financial
statements at the date of acquisition:

27 WEKREBAR ()

(b)

BREBHNBATESEERERS
( &)
YGF Investment®) = B & E B LA
ERAME IR IA B /1 b5 R R M FE N 3K
B ERKRBARAREEG EER -
RAREZET  BBREHBELARK
BEERBBEYTERESGH - AR
BERXS5 A, FWE - At - RS
§I20% A% /9 BR B B 5T A UK B Ak AN AY
—E5 R B RETEHTE -

ATHE A T R B R AR E RS
BREANEENAESHE

1 7%

RMB’000
ARMT T

Property, plant and equipment ¥ « = & % 10,290
Right-of-use assets {& A& & 1,781,595
Prepayments for construction project ##:% 18 B T8 8 200,000
Trade and other receivables & 5 [ E {th i U 518 58
Cash and cash equivalents I & IR & & &Y 10,996
Trade and other payables & %&Eﬁﬂ}gﬁmlﬁ (964,558)
Total identifiable net assets acquired Y& H) 7] PR B A EE4EEE 1,038,381

Total acquisition cost for the above net assets:

bt A AR U R R AR AR

RMB’000
ARBT T

Cash consideration IR 4 ¥H{& 694,479
Add: carrying amount of the Group’s previously held equity interest in YGF Investment
at the date of acquisition
N AREE 2z ATAUREE B £ YGF Investmentis B BIARE R BRE & 58 343,902
1,038,381
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27 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)

(b)

Acquisition of assets and liabilities through
acquisition of a subsidiary (continued)

Analysis of net cash outflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the acquisition of YGF
Investment:

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

27 WIEHMB AT (&)

(b)

RBAUBHMBARESEERERE
(#&)

IZBEYGF InvestmenttIR & IR & & (E
PESFIR SR E DT

RMB’000
ARMT T

Cash considerations paid & {37 & ¥{8

Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired & : E3HIR & KIS EEY

Net cash outflow 84 i H E 58

694,479
(10,996)
683,483

The value of each identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired was determined by the directors of the
Company with reference to the valuation carried out by
an independent valuer, Jones Lang LaSalle.

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

@

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk is
primarily attributable to trade and other receivables.
The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash
and cash equivalents, restricted cash and term deposits
is limited because the counterparties are banks and
financial institutions with high-credit-quality, for which
the Group considers having low credit risk.

WENAIHREERAENEBESHA
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

202

(@)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables

The Group’s trade receivables mainly derive from sales
of goods to distributors. The Group’s exposure to credit
risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics
of each customer rather than the industry or country in
which the customers operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when the
Group has significant exposure to individual customers.
At June 30, 2022 and 2023, 53% and 40% of the total
trade receivables were due from the Group’s five largest
debtors, respectively.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay and
take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the customer operates. Trade receivables are due
within 20 to 180 days from the date of billing. Debtors
with balances that are more than 6 months past due are
requested to settle all outstanding balances before any
further credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which
is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past due
status is not further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

(@)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
receivables:

e PR WK

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(RN - LARET % 25))
28 UIEREERAAEEE)

(@ EERMRE(E)
25 EE0E (F)
TR EBRAEEZ S EKKBE
BREERRREREEERNER

As at June 30, 2022
7202246 A30H
Gross
Expected carrying Loss

loss rate amount allowance
EHEEE AEREEE EiaEE
% RMB’000 RMB’000

% ARETT ARETT

Current (not past due) BI1HA (A H) 2% 186,151 (3,967)

Less than 90 days past due #Hi V790K 8% 96,508 (7,458)

91 - 270 days past due #1191 E 270K 23% 10,554 (2,446)

271 - 450 days past due #H1271 £450k 38% 18,224 (6,991)

451 - 810 days past due #1H1451 E810K 75% 416 (310)

More than 810 days past due %1 #fiBE810% 100% 10,193 (10,193)
322,046 (81,365)

Additional loss allowance due to specific consideration on

certain distributors

AR E TRIZBENEEZ EMELRNEINEERE 53,752 (53,752)

375,798 (85,117)
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 28 UIBEREERAAEEE)

FAIR VALUES (continued)

(@) Credit risk (continued) (@ EERMRE)
Trade receivables (continued) B 5 EWFEIE (&)

As at June 30, 2023

20236 A30H
Gross

Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FHEEE HAREEE BiEEE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
% ARETRT AR¥TR
Current (not past due) B1H3 (ZRiE7) 2% 288,057 (6,547)
Less than 90 days past due #1H L7290k 10% 22,419 (2,306)
91 - 270 days past due #1191 £ 270K 28% 3,223 (890)
271 - 450 days past due #1Hi271 £ 450K 53% 2,267 (1,194)
451 - 810 days past due #1Hi451 =810k 58% 2,223 (1,289)
More than 810 days past due % #{BiE810% 100% 1,419 (1,419)
319,608 (13,645)

Additional loss allowance due to specific consideration on

certain distributors

AREE TRIZBENISE S EMELMNEINEERE 75,119 (75,119)
394,727 (88,764)

H ZE2022F 2202356 A30H ILFE -
BARE T EIIMEFTERALEL B

Loss allowances of RMB53,752,000 and
RMB75,119,000 for trade receivables mainly from

204

certain overseas distributors were made during the
years ended June 30,2022 and 2023 due to deterioration
of financial status of these distributors.

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 2 to 3 years. These rates are adjusted
to reflect differences between economic conditions
during the period over which the historic data has been
collected, current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

(@)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of
trade receivables during the reporting periods presented
is as follows:

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

28 HMBEREER N AEEE)

(@)

FERE (&)

B 5% BWRKIE (&)

RFr25REHE - 8 HREFKIEM
SHEERER B Z2BBERT

RMB’000
ARETT

Balance at July 1, 2021 7220217 A1 H& & (59,827)
Credit loss recognized during the year “F NFERE & E518 (28,924)
Exchange adjustment [& =& F§ & 3,634
Balance at June 30, 2022 7202246 A 30 H W45 84 (85,117)
Credit loss recognized during the year “F NFERE & &8 (908)
Exchange adjustment [ % % (2,739)
Balance at June 30, 2023 7202346 A 30 H /)45 64 (88,764)

The following significant changes in the gross carrying
amounts of trade receivables contributed to the increase
in the loss allowance during the year ended June 30,
2022:

° Increase in past due but less than 90 days resulted
in an increase in loss allowance of RMB5,551,000.

° Decrease in days past due over 450 days resulted
in a decrease in loss allowance of RMB14,703,000.

° Increase in loss allowance of RMB35,720,000 for
trade receivables mainly due from certain overseas
distributors due to deterioration of their financial
condition.

HE2022F6 A30H ILFEHE - &
SEBGEBREEEEEN TERNE
b - BEEEREHZ M

o  EHBALNIOKRKKEIE M - &
BUES 1B B8 11 A R #55,551,000

JC °

o WHRFRIBASORMIKRER D - EE
BB R > AR ¥ 14,703,000
ﬁ °

o  FERERHFETHIMIEERBBAANE
1t » BhIEURE B 5 FE UL SR IB 0 S
1B #E A R 135,720,000 7T °
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(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

206

(@)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The following significant changes in the gross carrying
amounts of trade receivables contributed to the increase
in the loss allowance during the year ended June 30,
2023:

° Decrease in receivables past due resulted in a
decrease in loss allowance of RMB20,300,000.

° Increase in loss allowance of RMB21,367,000 for
trade receivables mainly due from certain overseas
distributors and franchisees due to deterioration of
their financial condition.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

Other receivables

In determining the ECL for remaining other receivables,
the management of the Group has taken into account
the historical default experience and forward-looking
information, as appropriate. The management of the
Group has assessed that other receivables have not
had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and risk of default is insignificant, and
therefore, no credit loss allowance of other receivables
is considered necessary by management for the years
ended June 30, 2022 and 2023.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

As at June 30, 2022 and 2023, the Group’s net
current assets amounted to RMB4,283,891,000 and
RMB6,018,410,000, respectively. Individual operating
entities within the Group are responsible for their
own cash management, including the short-term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans
to cover expected cash demands, subject to approval
by the board when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s policy
is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its
compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash, readily realizable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The Group relies on the cash generated from operating
activities as the main source of liquidity. For the years
ended June 30, 2022 and 2023, the Group had net cash
generated from operating activities of approximately
RMB1,406,262,000 and RMB1,666,030,000 respectively.
In addition, the management of the Group monitors the
utilization of borrowings and ensures compliance with
borrowing covenants, if any. The Directors believe that
the Group and the Company will have sufficient funds
available from the operating activities to meet their
financial obligations in the foreseeable future.

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

28 HMBEREER N AEEE)

(b)

TRED I LR

R20224% 202346 A30H
AEBNRBEEFAED N AA
R#4,283,891,000Tc M AR
6,018,410,0007T ° A5 B 730 &9 1 5
KEERBEEBINEASERE 281
REeRBNEHRERESET R
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 28 HiKEKREERAAEME(E)

FAIR VALUES (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (o) WEMERE ()
The following tables show the remaining contractual TRIIFAEENEMABENREE
maturities at the end of the years presented of the REREHRMFIR SR (BIBEELHF
Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on KT EEVF SRR - S RIFE A
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest A FT R S EARMIR TR R ) B RIgR &
payments computed using contracted rates or, if AHABR kAR EAENTRFEE -

floating, based on rates current at the end of the year
presented) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay.

More than More than Carrying

Within 1yearbut 2 years but amount at

1 year or less than less than More than June 30,
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years 2022

R20224

—FR —FpE REMN L 6A30H
FIREK REAT AEUT RAFNUE At REeHE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETE ARE®Tn ARETE ARETT ARETR

Trade and other payables & 5 N AMENFIE 3,072,991 - - - 3,072,991 3,072,991
Loans and borrowings E 7 % &5k 645 845 6,204 - 7,694 6,948
Lease liabilities T & & & 263,332 188,172 215,398 39,421 706,323 651,065

3,336,968 189,017 221,602 39,421 3,787,008 3,731,004
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R AR MY AT

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

28 HMBEMREERAAEEE)

FAIR VALUES (continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk (continued) (b) RENERBER ()
More than  More than Carrying
Within 1yearbut 2years but amount at
1 year or less than lessthan  More than June 30,
on demand PACE 5 years 5years 2023
2023
—£R —FHE MELLE 68308
FRER MELT EEHUF HEHUE &t BE%HE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETE ARETR AR®TT ARBTR ARETR AR%T:R
Trade and other payables & 5 KA MEMNFIE 3,019,302 - - - 3,019,302 3,019,302
Loans and borrowings E 5 & &5k 216 918 6,716 - 7,850 7,215
Lease liabilities A E& (& 334,778 259,948 260,188 110,215 965,129 885,734
3,354,296 260,866 266,904 110,215 3,992,281 3,912,251

Interest rate risk () F=EREpkx

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Group
does not account for any fixed-rate financial instruments
at fair value through profit or loss at the end of each
reporting periods. Therefore, interest-bearing financial
instruments at fixed rates do not expose the Group to
fair value interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate risk
arises primarily from restricted cash and cash at bank
at variable rates, which exposes the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. The Group determines the appropriate
weightings of the fixed and floating rate interest-bearing
instruments based on the current market conditions and
performs regular reviews and monitoring to achieve an
appropriate mix of fixed and floating rate exposure. The
Group does not enter into financial derivatives to hedge
interest rate risk.

MEEREEESMIANAABERIR
HIRE R E E 5 R 28 MR E) A E
B MEMEHR - AEE A EAGER
BEMEemITARAABE; AR
@ o Bt - REENERGFENERTA
TeEAEEEEARBENXRER -
AEENFXRERERKRAXRHIEE
KIAF BRI RGT BRRITIFR - BEA
SEERRSRENETER - AERER
1% B AT 515 0 B 7E Bl TE A R A% B
MEFFETAMBEERSE - WiEHET
BEEMER - UBREEMNEZEF
XEBHEERS  c AREYEFI LS
BOTAE T AR EN XA -
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e B TSR R M

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 28 UIBEREERAAEEE)

FAIR VALUES (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

© F=mpk

(%)

(i) Interest rate profile (i) FI=ER
The following table details the interest rate TRAMRE 2V RERARTEE
profile of the Group’s interest-bearing financial ErEE R TEAFERR -
instruments at the end of each reporting period
presented:
As at June 30, As at June 30,
Interest rates 2022 Interest rates 2023
R20224 H20235
6A30A A= 6H308
RMB’000 % RMB’000
ARBT T % N
Fixed rate instrument: EE%U%IE :
Loans and borrowings E % (&K 0%~9.0% (6,948) 3.0% (7,215)
Cash at bank (Note 20) ﬁEﬁﬁm(MﬁEQO) 1.3%~2.5% 565,402 3.08%~5.25% 1,040,921
Term deposits & HiF 0.3%~2.2% 236,878 0.9%~5.5% 681,715
795,332 1,715,421
Variable rate instrument: \J &A= T A :
Restricted cash (Note 21) R #I38 & (FizE21) 0.3%~1.9% 32,376 0.3%-~1.8% 27,073
Cash at bank (Note 20) #7777t (F3£20) 0%~3.5% 4,782,640 0%~3.5% 5,447,716
4,815,016 5,474,789
(ii) Sensitivity analysis (i) BBEDM

R2022%F6 A30H * FEATA EAth
é@%ﬁTﬁm'ﬁiﬁT BT F

SRymps i hn R 100 B 0 15
igbu/,ﬁwzk%lm&mﬂ,&m
REEEBRL M ARE
37,397,0007T ©

At June 30, 2022, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variable held constant, would
have increased/decreased the Group’s profit for
the year and decreased/increased accumulated
losses by approximately RMB37,397,000.

R2023F6 A30H ' EATHE HAM
FERFIAENBERT - BEFI=E
sapgighn A 10018 A S, - 51
/R AEBMOFEAFEREE
Wes# AR # 42,401,000 °

At June 30, 2023, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variable held constant, would
have increased/decreased the Group’s profit for
the year and retained earnings by approximately
RMB42,401,000.
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e B TSR R M

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 28 HiKEKREERAAEEE)

FAIR VALUES (continued)

(d) Currency risk 0 E¥Ek
The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through AEBEABHNEYREREZREEEN
sales and purchases which give rise to receivables, HNEE (BNZ2 S AERE 5 T Be S B DASMEY
payables and cash balances that are denominated in a B FHERMEYGRIE - BNRIERES
foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the functional EHRNEE  c EXZERBNEEEER
currency of the operations to which the transactions EIT - BT RAETT - REBEHZER A
relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily EIRHFRLAT

United States dollars, Euros and Hong Kong Dollars.
The Group manages this risk as follows:

(i) Exposure to currency risk (i) E¥ERE®RO

The following table details the Group’s exposure TRV ASRER SR EHARAE
at the end of the reporting periods to currency PR LATRRA EBETh AL & s LASNE BE 5T
risk arising from recognized assets or liabilities ENEERAEEXBBEMEENE
denominated in a currency other than the KRR - RERENME - IEX
functional currency of the entity to which they [B\fg ) 2 B8 B HR A R B B R B EARE
relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of ERERAREIR o A BIE
the exposure are shown in Renminbi, translated EINEH G mR R E AR S
using the spot rate at the year-end date. B2 MEEMEERZER -

Differences resulting from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations into the
Group’s presentation currency are excluded.

Exposure to foreign currencies
(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi)
As at June 30, 2022
sNERIR AARETTES)
7202246 530 H

United
States Hong Kong
Dollars Euros Dollars Renminbi Others

e T BT ARE Hitn
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT

Trade and other receivables & 5 & 2 ft e Yt 78 54,944 5,021 = = =
Cash and cash equivalents & M3 & EEY 486,139 7,516 2,852 2,094 2
Term deposits F 2777 336 - - - -
Trade and other payables & 5 I H i JE {4 708 (63,576) (8,909) (9,364) = =
Loans and borrowings & K &7 (133) = = = =

Net exposure arising from recognized assets and
liabilities £ R EE R & BEEHFH D 477,710 3,628 (6,512) 2,094 2

2023F EiE o HAIER pAN
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e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 28 HiKEKREERAAEME(E)
FAIR VALUES (continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued) ) E¥ER(E)
() Exposure to currency risk (continued) () EXERERR®HO(E)

Exposure to foreign currencies
(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi)
As at June 30, 2023
SNERE (UAARETTE5)
202356 A30H

United
States Hong Kong
Dollars Euros Dollars Renminbi Others

xn B B N Hity
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARSI ARETR ARBTR ARETT ARETR

Trade and other receivables Z 5 & E fth fEd 518 61,922 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 3 & 3R &5 EY) 455,032 6,677 5,100 2,429 3
Term deposits & 21775 344 - - - -
Trade and other payables & 5 I E A (< 58 (83,094) (4,664) (13,950) - -

Net exposure arising from recognized assets and
liabilities B 338 E & B BEE R i D 434,204 2,013 (8,850) 2,429 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R AR MY AT

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and
accumulated loss/retained earnings) that would
arise if foreign exchange rates to which the
Group has significant exposure at the end of
each reporting period had changed at that
date, assuming all other risk variables remained
constant.

28 HMBEMREERAAEEE)

(d) E#EREkE(E)
(i) BREDSN
TRINREE ERREER
BIE  MAKERSHEHARA
HERREBRAEENABBREE
Bt - REEMBRBERE(RZR
sTEIE BB IE Uk e ) B A O BN B

il

As at June 30, 2022

As at June 30, 2023

F202246 A30H M202356H30H
Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on
(decrease)  profit for the (decrease) profit for
in foreign year and in foreign the year and
exchange accumulated exchange retained
rates losses rates earnings
HARFERNE HAFEFH
[EX A &Sy ExRLEH RE7FRz
(RF&) fre= (T E%) e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARBT T
United States Dollars 37t 1% 4,744 1% 4,324
(1)% (4,744) (1)% (4,324)
Euros EXJT 1% 28 1% 19
(1)% (28) (1)% (19)
Hong Kong Dollars 77T 1% (65) 1% (89)
(1)% 65 (1)% 89
Renminbi A K& 1% 16 1% 20
(1)% (16) (1% (20)
Others EAh 1% - 1% -
(1)% - (1)% -*
Note: B 5

* The amount was less than RMB1,000.

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit after tax and equity measured in the
respective functional currencies, translated into
Renminbi at the exchange rate ruling at the end of
the reporting periods for presentation purposes.

ZeRE LR ARE1,0007T ©

ERIRAEERRRE A EKE
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SEBZSANMEERTE
EVE R BLIR A B RS O RS 28
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2023 EHiE o FAIEM

PAK]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AN
I%IT\I:I

BT R MY AT

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)
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HAR®BTTE5)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

214

(d)
(ii)

(e)
(i)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to
re-measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of each reporting period, including
inter-company payables and receivables within the
Group which are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currencies of the lender or the
borrower. The analysis excludes differences that
would result from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency.

Fair value measurement

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the
end of the year presented on a recurring basis,
categorized into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value measurement.

The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities at the measurement date.
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 28 HIKEMRERERAAEE(E)
FAIR VALUES (continued)
(e) Fair value measurement (continued) (e) 2AREEE(E)
() Financial assets and liabilities measured at () RAAREEFENERMEERER
fair value (continued) (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) R IEEER ()
e Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using e F_EfLHE:FAEZE
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which WG NEE (BIAREERE—
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant [ R A B A BN ) B F
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs IEFEREATI B R AE
are inputs for which market data are not B ENAQAEE - TA#
available. R ABIEAETISEED
B A BUE o
e Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using e ZE-EfMHE:EAEXRT
significant unobservable inputs. ARG ABBAEN AR
fBfE -
The following table presents the Group’s financial TREVNAEERERERARUR
assets that are measured at fair value at the end of REEFENEBEE :

each reporting date:

Fair value at Fair value measurements as at
June 30, June 30, 2022 categorized into
2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
720224

6 A30H 1K2022%F6 A30HM AR EBEFED B
BWAREE E—ER E_BR E=[EH

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTTE ARBTT AR®TT

Recurring fair value measurement

REEAAREETE

Assets: B :

— Other investments — H A& & 210,523 1,874 208,649 -

2023 ERE o BAIER PAB
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 28 HIBEREERAAEEE)

FAIR VALUES (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued) (e) DAEEFEGE)

216

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at () BRAAREEFENEREERES
fair value (continued) (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) DN BEER ()

Fair value at
June 30,
2023
20234

6 H30H
WAREE
RMB’000
ARBFIT

Recurring fair value measurement
REMDNABEANE
Assets: BE :

— Other investments — H 3% & 279,199

Fair value measurements as at
June 30, 2023 categorized into
Level 3

Level 1 Level 2

7R2023F6 A0HM AR EBENED A

E—ER
RMB’000
ARKTTE

F_BR
RMB’000
AR¥ET T

FZER
RMB’000
AR TTT

- 279,199 -

During the reporting periods presented, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfer into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy
is to recognize transfers between levels of fair

REVNOMEE - F—BRESE
TERZEYEERR Y EE =
REEESE L - AEBNBERR
RELEAABEBRERNERE

value hierarchy as at the end of each reporting BRSRTERRARREEERS o
period in which they occur.
Other investments in level 1 as at June 30, 2022 R2022F6 H30H * F—EQF

represented an investment in monetary fund. The
fair value of this investment was determined based
on the market price at the balance sheet date.

Other investments in level 2 as at June 30, 2022
and 2023 mainly represented investments in
trust investment schemes. The fair value of these
investments was determined by the Group with
reference to the fair value quoted by the trust
company, that established and managed the
investments (see Note 17), using expected return
rates currently available for instruments with
similar terms, credit risk, remaining terms and
other market data.
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

U

(ii)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continueq)

Other investments in level 2 as at June 30, 2023
also included the investment in an unlisted
enterprise. Fair value of the investment was
determined by the Group with reference to recent
transaction prices.

The gains arising from the remeasurement of fair
value of other investments are included in other
net income in the consolidated statements of profit
or loss.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at amortized cost are not
materially different from their fair values as at June
30, 2022 and 2023 because of the short-term
maturities of these financial instruments.

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

28 HMBEREER N AEEE)

(e) DAEEFEE)
() BRAAEEIENSREERER
(#)
DAIBIEER ()
N2023%F6 A30H * F_EHH

MEBRENTBREER EMEENR
B - ZIRENAREEZELAKE
TR 5B T AEE -

EFERMRENRABEME
R RS AT AR R B RTPAE

U EHER o

(i) WERAAEEIRNESMEER
BENAAEE
HRZES TEARBEANEIE
B 1t AN 5= B LA S SHRK AR EHE R 2
TAMKRESEEENR2022F &
20236 A 0RM AR BENEE
RER °

2023F s o RAIER PANS
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)
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29 COMMITMENTS

(@) Capital commitments outstanding as at June 30, (@)
2022 and 2023 not provided for in the financial
statements were as follows:

29 EE

R2022F K 202346 B30 H & AR
B SRR P EHR R BT E AR
W

As at June 30,

M6 H30H

2022 2023

20224 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETTT ARET T

Contracted purchase of software {42 5] 4)EEHE 1,000 -

Contracted for construction projects £:%78 B £ 5] 4 5R8E 830,573 472,038

Contracted for /5] %Y 831,573 472,038
Authorized but not contracted for construction projects

ERREERTAERIER 11,279 510,608

Total &5t 842,852 982,646

30 CONTINGENCIES

(@ The commitment of tax payments (a)

On October 13, 2020, Mingyou Industrial Investment
(Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. (“Mingyou”), being a subsidiary of
the Group’s equity-accounted investee prior to October
27, 2021 and a subsidiary of the Group since October
27, 2021, was set up to acquire the land use right of
a parcel of land and to establish a new headquarters
building for the Group in a district in Guangzhou, the
PRC. In connection with the acquisition of the land
use right and the construction of new headquarter
building by Mingyou, on November 26, 2020, MINISO
Guangzhou entered into a letter of intent (“the Letter”)
with the local government of that district, whereby
MINISO Guangzhou committed to the local government
that the aggregate amount of tax levies paid by the
subsidiaries of MINISO Guangzhou in that district and
Mingyou would be no less than RMB965,000,000 for
a five-year period starting from January 1, 2021. If the
above entities fail to meet such commitment, MINISO
Guangzhou will be liable to compensate for the shortfall.

PAK]  MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023
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2020F10 A13H » REEERE (&
MBRAR ([BE]) (—RK20214F
10 B 27 BRI AR LB AR A AR
FERNRINKIB AR - BER20214F10A4
2THEKNABREBNWEB AR KIS
FE AR B E M s B — SR S RO (SR PR #E
YR ZEERANEBTRBIARE o
2020411 H26H © ZAIE M A EW
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BINR & Bk AT &R © §202141 818
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30 CONTINGENCIES (continued)

(@)

The commitment of tax payments (continued)

In April 2022, MINISO Guangzhou provided a
performance guarantee of RMB175,000,000 issued
by a commercial bank to this local government in
respect of the commitment of tax payments for the
calendar year of 2022, which was valid from April 1,
2022 to March 31, 2023. The above entities have met
the commitment for the calendar year of 2022 and
therefore MINISO Guangzhou is not required to make
any compensation to the local government under the
above performance guarantee. As of March 31, 2023,
the above performance guarantee has expired.

In March 2023, MINISO Guangzhou provided a
performance guarantee of RMB190,000,000 issued by a
commercial bank to this local government in respect of
the commitment of tax payments for the calendar year
of 2023, which was valid from April 1, 2023 to March 31,
2024. The directors have assessed that, based on the
projection of and actual relevant taxes and surcharges
paid and payable during the calendar year of 2023, the
above entities are expected to meet the commitment for
the calendar year of 2023 and it thus is not probable that
MINISO Guangzhou needs to make such compensation
to the local government under the above performance
guarantee. No provision has therefore been made in
respect of this matter as of June 30, 2023.

Lawsuit relating to illicit competition

During the year ended June 30, 2022, Shenzhen
Purcotton Technology Co., Ltd. initiated a legal
proceeding against certain PRC subsidiaries of the
Group, one of the Group’s suppliers and a store
operated by one of the Group’s franchisees relating to
an illicit competition dispute. The total amount claimed
against the PRC subsidiaries was approximately
RMB30 million. No provision was made in respect of
this claim as of June 30, 2022 as the directors believed
the probability of losing the case was low based on the
assessment of the Group’s litigation counsel at that
time.

As of June 30, 2023, a provision amounting to
RMB30,000,000 was made based on the first instance
judgment made by the court despite that the Group had
filed an application of appeal to the court.

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

30 HEEBER (&)

(@)

W= (8)

R2022F4 H + ZRIEMNBL2022 HEF
B AGE R E BT IR AR FRITE S
7 AR #175,000,000 7T ) B A 1R -
BEAA2022%4 A1 HZE20234%3 8
31H » FiEEEME2022 HEFHYH
o A BEIEMNE ElBAERTE
B[RS R T E (T (E - 822023
F3A31H » LMELEREKRR -

20233 A + ZAIEREMNB2023 H
JE& F 4N B ARG ) BT PR A P 2 SR T
ZE ) AR #190,000,000 7T B B £ 42
R BEIA202354 A1 HE20244F
3HA31H - EF1RE2023ABFE M K
FE A~ B B PR AR A A 5k K% B o0 & R RN 1E
s - EalERETER M E 2023 HEF
Ry EE - BRI Z A EMNE i EHOER
TR AT B W) & B B R
& - EL - 8 E2023%E6 A30F @ Ak
UL BRI o

EBTEEHRFFRA
RELZE2022F6 A30H IFFEHM - &
Y2 BEHRBEERARR T ESHF
AWHRAEBHE THRENE LR RA
EEN—REEEMAEEMER 2 —
KERN—RPVGIRE — RAEFR © &
HAEMBARIREERNESENA
ARBI0OBEET - B E2022%F6 A30
H ' ARREARSEEE R FFAZAA
FE - EERBBFR A REERIE -
I M AR BE U B RS VE 8 o

HZE2023F6 308 ' BREAEED A
SEBTIRH EEF - BB EARIEHE —
EHRFTHR R E A K 30,000,0007T ©

2023F [EE o BRAIER PR
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30 CONTINGENCIES (continued)

(c)

Securities class action

A putative securities class action lawsuit relating to
the disclosures in the Company’s IPO registration and
prospectus was filed against the Company and certain
of the Company’s officers and directors on August 17,
2022 in the United States. Plaintiffs purport to bring this
action on behalf of a class of similarly situated investors
and seek monetary damages on behalf of the class.
Lead plaintiffs were appointed in November 2022 and
has filed the complaint to the court. As of June 30, 2023,
the Company and other defendants has filed the motion
to dismiss the complaint and a decision was pending.
This action remained at its preliminary stage and the
directors are unable to assess the outcome of the action
or reliably estimate the potential losses, if any.

31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

(@)

220

Name and relationship with related parties

The table below set forth the major related parties and
their relationships with the Group:

Name of related parties

Bk 5 B

Wow Colour Beauty Guangdong Technology Limited
RS (ER)RHRER AR

Nome Design (Guangzhou) Limited
AR (BMN)BRAF

Haydon (Shanghai) Technology Co., Ltd.
BR(EB)REEBERAR]

199 Global Holding (Guangzhou) Limited
—RNAEIRBER (BM)BRAF

Mingyou (i)
Z1E()

Guangzhou Chuyunju Catering Service Co., Ltd.
BT EEERREERAF

Guangzhou Chuyunju Catering Management Co., Ltd.
BMNTREEEREEBRAF

Henhaohe Tea Guangdong limited

RFEHRKR (ER)ERRA]

MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023

30 IEHER (&)
(c) HBHERFA

R2022F8 A17H - EERPA LT H
RAFRBEZLABRERTNEEES
BRARRUERARGETERAER
EERET HEETESFEEHRR R
LEEBRE-BEREUNKE SRR
BRFATRRMAMSKEEME - &
fERE1R2022F 11 BHFIETE - WERE
BT FFAR - 202346 A30H @ AR
AIME AR & B IR R B SRR B
WIEEZFER o ZFATER VPR
B BEERTAFANERE IR
FHEEEKX(IE) -

31 EXRBEHLIRS

(@) #E EBIUKEERIH S WEE
TR T E BB R EEAREDY
B

Relationship with the Group
BN E A BAR

Under common control of the controlling shareholder
YRR AR A R

Under common control of the controlling shareholder
SRR AR R A E

Under common control of the controlling shareholder
YRR BUR RS

Under common control of the controlling shareholder
R A PR ER R 22 il

Under common control of the controlling shareholder
YRR AR A R

Under common control of the controlling shareholder
SRR AR R A E

Under common control of the controlling shareholder

AR R Rl I

Under common control of the controlling shareholder
R AR PR ER F R 22 il
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31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@ Name and relationship with related parties (@)

31 EXRBEARS (8)

m £ ERAR SRR T B R

(continued)

Name of related parties

(nﬁ)

Relationship with the Group

AR 5 Tl

OasVision International Limited
BB SERER AR

Miniso (Zhaoqing) Industrial Investment Co., Ltd.

ZEER(FR)EXRERRAT

Miniso Corporation

# Ejfﬁuuﬂxfﬁﬁ@@ Gl

Miniso Lifestyle Nigeria Limited
Miniso Lifestyle Nigeria Limited

Shanghai Kerong Networks Limited
PEmERERRAERAR

Shenzhen Zhizhi Brand Incubation Limited (i)
ARYITH AR bR A BR 22 R (i)

ACC Super Accessories Shenzhen Technology Limited
RN EBIR E R R A R A R

ACC Super Accessories International Trade (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd.
ACCHRMEIRE S ORI BRAE]
Guangzhou Mingchuang Business
Development Co., Ltd.
BMAeImEERAR AR

SLNER E A R R

Under common control of the controlling shareholder

AR AR AR R I

Under common control of the controlling shareholder

R AR AR R A A

Under common control of the controlling shareholder

SRR R A R

Under common control of the controlling shareholder

SRR R A R

Significantly influenced by the controlling shareholder

EERBREATE

Significantly influenced by the controlling shareholder

SERBEEAN S

Significantly influenced by the controlling shareholder

ZERRREATE
Significantly influenced by the controlling shareholder
RIERERERTZE
Significantly influenced by the controlling shareholder

XEBRBEREATE

2023F EiE o RAIER P
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31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 31 EXEBLRS ()
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(@ Name and relationship with related parties (@ ®AAEUKEEESWEIR
(continued) (48)
Notes: Bif3E
()  Mingyou is a subsidiary of YGF Investment, which i)  HAEBAYGF Investment(742021410
was an equity accounted investee of the Group prior R27 BRI AASE AR E AR H
to October 27, 2021. On October 27, 2021, the Group FERNTWEBART © 2021510 A
acquired the remaining 80% interest in YGF investment, 278 - AEBEUWIEYGF InvestmentF
YGF investment and Mingyou became wholly-owned #:80% FIZ#E © YGF Investmentfis,
subsidiaries of the Group since then (see Note 27(b)). BELKAREENZENB AR (B

2RKIE27 (b)) °

(i)  The controlling shareholder sold its equity interests in (ii) TRRAR R 20219 A 25 H i E R
Shenzhen Zhizhi Brand Incubation Limited to a third YT 5 I L B R A Rl RF A B AR HE
party on September 25, 2021. Shenzhen Zhizhi Brand HETFE=F  FmmamEREtE
Incubation Limited was no longer a related party of the RN R B UL R ZNE B H) R

Group since then.

(b) Transactions with related parties (b) EEREHAMNRS
(i) Key management personnel compensation () BEREEAEHH
Key management personnel compensation AREEASHMEEUTAR

comprised the following:

For the year ended June 30,
BZ6H30HLLFE
2022 2023

20224 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AR¥ET T

Short-term employee benefits 55 £ 8 T & 13,018 13,069

Equity-settled share-based payment expenses (Note 26)

AR SR A E RO AR 17 S 9 R s (BT E26) - 718
13,018 13,787

PPP]  MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B TSR R M

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

Transactions with related parties (continued)

(ii)

Other transactions with related parties

Sales of products ZE &%

— Miniso Lifestyle Nigeria Limited

— Miniso Lifestyle Nigeria Limited

— OasVision International Limited

— BB REEARAA]

— Haydon (Shanghai) Technology Co., Ltd.

— B (8RR AR AR

— Miniso (Zhaoqing) Industrial Investment Co., Ltd.
—ZEIER (ER)EXREGRAA

— Wow Colour Beauty Guangdong Technology Limited
—ERAEM(BER)RBERAT

(b)

31 EXEBLERE (&)

BB RS ()

(i) EEEBANHMRS

For the year ended June 30,
BZ6H30HLLEE

2022

20224
RMB’000
ARETIT

16,979

11

Provision of information technology support and consulting services

PR HHE BT Sc AN RE A BR TS

— Haydon (Shanghai) Technology Co., Ltd. (i)

—BR (L8) AR R F()

— Wow Colour Beauty Guangdong Technology Limited (i)
—BRE (ER)RHERERAE()

— ACC Super Accessories Shenzhen Technology Limited (i)
—RYI TR A RHE A R 2 F()

— Henhaohe Tea Guangdong Limited (i)
—RIFBER(BR)BR R A)

Purchase of products 7= h£Eis

— Shanghai Kerong Networks Limited

— DETBEERIEER AR

— Shenzhen Zhizhi Brand Incubation Limited

— RV A RER R A A

— Wow Colour Beauty Guangdong Technology Limited
—EBRER (BER)RZARAR

— Nome Design (Guangzhou) Limited

— KRR (EM)BRAA

— Haydon (Shanghai) Technology Co., Ltd.

—BR (L&) R ERAR

— 199 Global Holding (Guangzhou) Limited
——NNEIREER (BM)ERAF]

— ACC Super Accessories Shenzhen Technology Limited
— R BB AR B R A

5,688
7,080
2,651

8,410

15,465
4,407
1,029

112
53
190

48

2023
20234
RMB’000
ARET T

4,020

85

916
2,714
207

230

12,125

206

2023 ERE o BAIER Pr8
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31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 31 EXBEHAIRS (E)
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(b) Transactions with related parties (continued) (b) HEHEBINRZ (&)
(i) Other transactions with related parties (i) EEREBELMHEHMRZ (&)

(continued)

For the year ended June 30,
BZ6H30HLFE
2022 2023

20224 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

— ACC Super Accessories International Trade (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
- ACCHER B E 5 ORI BIR AR
— Guangzhou Mingchuang Business Development Co., Ltd.

—BMBARBERARAR

Provision of guarantee for a subsidiary of the then equity-accounted
investee

BEE LA AR RITE A AN B A TR IHER

— Mingyou (i) — & & (i)

Purchase of catering services #i& & 81 IR 75

— Guangzhou Chuyunju Catering Service Co., Ltd.
—BNTREEEEKREERAA

— Guangzhou Chuyunju Catering Management Co., Ltd.
—BMNTEEEEREREBRAR]

Rental and related expenses 24 N #HRIFI 2
— Guangzhou Mingchuang Business Development Co., Ltd. (iv)
—BEMBAIEBERAR QA (V)

Payment of lease liabilities = HE & (&

— Miniso (Zhaoqing) Industrial Investment Co., Ltd. (jii)
—REIEm () EFRE FR A (i)

Payment of rental deposits > 7% & &

— Miniso (Zhaoqing) Industrial Investment Co., Ltd. (jii)
—HElBm (R ) EXREFR L A)

— Guangzhou Mingchuang Business Development Co., Ltd. (iv)

—BMBARBERERAF(v)

ARETTT AR¥TR

= 452

= 367
160,000 -
8,816 -
3,104 6,078

- 2,359

4,147 26,583

= 10,647

= 1,710
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties (continued)

(ii)

Other transactions with related parties
(continued)
Notes:

@)

(ii)

The Group entered into information technology
support and consulting services agreements with
Haydon (Shanghai) Technology Co., Ltd., Wow
Colour Beauty Guangdong Technology Limited,
ACC Super Accessories Shenzhen Technology
Limited and Henhaohe Tea Guangdong limited
during the years ended June 30, 2022 and
2023, under which the Group provided business
management systems deployment and support
services.

On January 25, 2021, MINISO Guangzhou
provided a performance guarantee of
RMB160,000,000 to a local government for the
commitment of tax levies paid by the subsidiaries
of MINISO Guangzhou in that district and Mingyou
for the calendar year of 2021, which was valid
from April 1, 2021 to March 31, 2022. The above
entities have met the commitment for the calendar
year of 2021 and therefore MINISO Guangzhou
is not required to make any compensation to the
local government under the above performance
guarantee.

e TR AR MR

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)
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31 EXRBEARS (8)

(b)

BEBL RS (&)
SEEB T MEMX S (F)

(ii)

Wi

(i)

(ii)

E(£20224F 2202346 H30H
FFE - AEEERR (L8R
BRERDA - &R (ER)F
RERAR - FYITBEARHL
BRABRRFEHRR(ER)E
PRARIZR] T 12 BBHT 45 7k
IR % - IR R E IR AL
ARE R SRR -

202141 H258 - ZAIEIM=
2021 BB F RS BUTREA
R#160,000,000 7T /8 #IHER -
AR EMEZ R E A
A B BEATIK - BREA
202144 51 HZE202243 A 31
H- biiEEEEIT2021BE
FRFEG - BB EIEME it
AR T B E BT ED
EfAIFHE -

2023 ERE o BAIER P2Y
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(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)
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31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

226

(b)

Transactions with related parties (continued)

(ii)

Other transactions with related parties
(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(i)

(iv)

In June 2022, the Group entered into a three-year
lease agreement with fixed lease payments
in respect of certain properties from Miniso
(Zhaoging) Industrial Investment Co., Ltd. for
storage of inventories. At the commencement date
of the lease, the Group recognized a right-of-use
asset and a lease liability of RMB35,438,000.
During the year ended June 30, 2023, the Group
entered into additional lease agreements with
Miniso (Zhaoging) Industrial Investment Co., Ltd.
for lease of additional properties for storage of
inventories with fixed lease payments ranging
from two to three years. The Group recognized
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
RMB69,295,000 in total at the commencement
dates of these new leases. The Group also paid
rental deposits of RMB10,647,000 in connection
with these leases during the year ended June 30,
2023.

In March 2023, the Group entered into a five-year
lease agreement with fixed lease payments in
respect of a property for store operation with
Guangzhou Mingchuang Business Development
Co., Ltd.. In April 20283, the five-year lease
agreement was cancelled and replaced with a
short-term lease agreement for the same property
out of commercial considerations. A right-of-use
asset and a lease liability of RMB35,993,000
were initially recognized at the commencement
date of the five-year lease agreement and were
subsequently derecognized upon the cancellation
of the agreement. Total rental and related
expenses incurred in connection with the lease of
this property during the year ended June 30, 2023
were RMB2,359,000. The Group also paid rental
deposit of RMB1,710,000 in connection with the
lease of this property during the year ended June
30, 2028.
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31 EXRBEARS (8)

(b)

BRI MRS (&)
EREB L NEMR S ()

(ii)

BRE < (&)

(il

(iv)

M20224F6 A + ANEERE AT
GERZRIER (ZEB)EER
BRRARHEE Eﬁ%ﬁ%%pu
ErHENRHN=FHE44
RSB Z!Sﬁlﬁ&uu
FAREERTMEABARE
35,438,000 © £ 2202356 A
0B LFE AEEREZAIE
m(ER)EXREFR ARG
BINAE W - ATHEREIMDE
ARGENRET - BEBENK
NIMEE=F - NEBERFH
B A mRAEHREEERM
E8ELREAAREE9,295,000
JT ° Al E2023%46 A30H L FE
AEBNGZSHEL NHESE
4+ AR#10,647,0007T °

202343 A + A& B R A EM
BN —RYEEEMNEZAIR
BERAMR ARG EERE
FOAFERERE - EREES
& BR2023F4 BRIERFEM
EfpEl AR N =R E
BB - NAEEHE a6
1R B EaTEREHREERM
E8EARK35993,0007T © H
BREDUERL LR - HE
202346 A30B ILF[E © sz
¥NHEEENTES RERAY
#EE A ARME2,359,0007T ° EHE
202346 A30AILFE  A%H
IRZMENHELNHEERS
AR#1,710,0007T °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B TSR R M

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(©

Balances with related parties

Trade related: & Z #HE :

31

Included in trade and other receivables from related parties:

BREEHEBLESMEMBRRKIRSF :

- Haydon (Shanghai) Technology Co., Ltd.
—BR(LB)REARATA

— Wow Colour Beauty Guangdong Technology Limited
—EREM(BER)RRER AR

— ACC Super Accessories Shenzhen Technology Limited
— R BB R AR A A

— Henhaohe Tea Guangdong Limited
—RIFBEK(BR)BR AR

— Miniso Lifestyle Nigeria Limited

— Miniso Lifestyle Nigeria Limited

— Miniso (Zhao%ng%lndustrial Investment Co., Ltd.
—ZEBm (BER)EXKRERRAF]

— Guangzhou Mingchuang Business Development Co., Ltd.

—BMNZAIBBERER QA

EXEBLIRS (&)

(c) EREFEETTRVAEER

As at June 30,

M6 A30H

2022

20224
RMB’000
AREF T

2,150
2,189
527
239

2023
20234
RMB’000
AR®T T

46
767
293

2,484
10,647
2,012

5,105

16,249

Included in trade and other payables to related parties:
BRETESMEMEMARBS NIRRT -

— Shanghai Kerong Networks Limited

— P EIEEERE AR AR

— Wow Colour Beauty Guangdong Technology Limited
—EAEM(BER)BRAERAT

— Haydon (Shanghai) Technology Co., Ltd.
—BR(L8)RRAERAR

— Nome Design (Guangzhou) Limited

—wRERE (BM)BRAF

— ACC Super Accessories Shenzhen Technology Limited
—RYIIRBR AR AR A A

- Guangzhou Chuyunju Catering Service Co., Ltd.
—BINTREEREERREAERAA

- Guangzhou Chuyunju Catering Management Co., Ltd.
—BINTEEEEREEARAA

— Guangzhou Mingchuang Business Development Co., Ltd.

—BMNZABBERER QA

1,241
70
53
126
145
8,971

3,104

1,102

126

4,204
880
50

13,710

6,371

Included in prepayment to related parties:
BREENERBLNRSRESD

— Miniso Corporation
—ZElEmR N ARAR

69

Included in lease liabilities due to related parties:
BRECTEMKREBHEINEEEED

— Miniso (Zhao%ng%lndug,trial Investment Co., Ltd.
—HEEm(BE)EXREFBRAR

31,426

78,914
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

32 COMPANY LEVEL FINANCIAL 32 ATE@EBER
INFORMATION
The following presents condensed parent company financial UTARREERSARMBERNEE o

information of the Group.

() Condensed statement of profit or loss () fEEEREEx

For the year ended June 30,
HZ6H30HLEE
2022 2023

20224 2023F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AR®T T

Other income E AUz A 6,038 6,468
General and administrative expenses —#& & 1T FI 52 (19,038) (37,854)
Other net income/(loss) E ;B A (E18) 6,607 (11,418)
Operating loss &% &8 (6,393) (42,804)
Finance income B 7542 A 2,930 25,608
Share of profit of equity-accounted investee, net of tax

DA EA BRI E A T EFE (8,162) -
Loss before taxation % 31518 (11,625) (17,196)

Income tax expense FT{5H1 5% - -

Loss for the year FRE#H (11,625) (17,196)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R AR MY AT

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

32 COMPANY LEVEL FINANCIAL 32 RAFREEMEER (E)
INFORMATION (continued)
(i) Condensed statement of profit or loss and other (i) ERERREMEEEE

comprehensive income

For the year ended June 30,
BZ6H30HLLEE
2022 2023

20224 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT AR¥F T

Loss for the year FF R E#HE (11,625) (17,196)

Iltems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
BEiR R B D ERIBRAIAR -
Exchange differences on translation of financial statements of the Company

BRERR T EIRFOE L Z5E 174,150 383,743
Other comprehensive income for the year £ 3 E 4th 2 [ U 25 174,150 383,743
Total comprehensive income for the year FAZ H W 4% 162,525 366,547

2023F i o RAIER pE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

32 COMPANY LEVEL FINANCIAL 32 ATEEUMBEER (&)

230

INFORMATION (continued)
(i) Condensed statement of financial position (i) FFBAEI AR R R
As at June 30,

R6A30H
2022 2023

20224 20235
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARET T

ASSETS B&
Non-current assets R EEE
Investments in subsidiaries A B R AR E

- Cost-accounted investments in subsidiaries — B A R ANZE1RE 2,112,276 2,300,637
— Amounts due from subsidiaries — 4P B A FIZE 1,968,572 1,443,759
4,080,848 3,744,396
Current assets R E) & E
Other investments E /% & 1,874 -
Other receivables E ftb fE K FUA 65,907 7,703
Cash and cash equivalents 3 & 38 & ZEY) 646,921 1,225,474
Term deposits & H1F5 201,342 361,371
916,044 1,594,548
Total assets & E &% 4,996,892 5,338,944
EQUITY %25
Share capital fZ7& 25(a) 92 95
Additional paid-in capital EANATE 25(a) 7,982,824 7,257,080
Other reserves EAthf## (1,627,210) (1,242,585)
Accumulated losses 251518 (1,440,512) (726,810)
Total equity #2458 4,915,194 5,287,780
LIABILITIES £1&
Non-current liabilities JE 57 B & &
Deferred income JEFEU 25 14,488 8,821
14,488 8,821

Current liabilities B & &

Other payables E-fth & 7E 60,915 35,565
Deferred income {EEIzS 6,295 6,778

67,210 42,343
Total liabilities & E#5E 81,698 51,164
Total equity and liabilities #25 & & &4 5 4,996,892 5,338,944
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R AR MY AT

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

32 COMPANY LEVEL FINANCIAL 32 ARIEEMBER (&)
INFORMATION (Continued)
(iv) Condensed statement of changes in equity (iv) FERAREREER

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
BRMARNRERR
Additional Share-based
Share paid-in Treasury payment  Translation Other Accumulated
capital capital shares reserve reserve reserve losses Total

NRARER
BE  EAME  EERE  WAREE  EXRE 0 EMRE  ZHER &
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMBI00
AT  ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARMTr ARETR ARETR ARMTR
Note25()  Note 25(a) Note25(b)(v) Note25(b(i) Note 25(b)(i)
Wiitosla)  KE2s(a) MEE25())  KEE25())  BEE250)

Balance at July 1, 2021 2021 57 A1 R fiféeh ® 8289160 2,306 = (77897 (1541506  (1428887) 5138676

Changes in equity for the year ended

June 30, 2022
BEN2NFOANALEENERRD
Loss for the year £7EE - - - - - - (11,625) (11,625)
Other comprehensive income for the year
ErEf2EgE - - - - 174,150 - - 174,150

Total comprehensive income for the year

ENRENEEE - . - R TR0 ; (162 16255
Dividend declred B SRS 250 ) - - - - )
Exercise of options {7 £ B} - 589 - - - - - 569

Release of ordinary shares from

share incentive plan
ROABR L LEk - (670) 670 - = = - =
Repurchase of shares EIEE & 7 25(0)) - (82,160) - - - - (82,160)
Equity settled share-based transactions
NERERHROXNRS - - - 1819 - - - 1819

Balance at June 30, 2022
R202256 530 A e 2 7,982,824 (83,796) 1,819 (3,687) (1,541,546) (1,440,512) 4,915,194
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

32 COMPANY LEVEL FINANCIAL 32 ARIEEMBER (&)
INFORMATION (Continued)
(iv) Condensed statement of changes in equity (iv) FEBAREREEIR (E)
(Continued)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
BERRARNERRR
Additional Share-based
Share paid-in Treasury payment  Translation Other Accumulated
capital capital shares reserve reserve reserve losses Total

RO BER
R ERDE ERRG  WAREE 0 EARE 0 HtRE  ZHER fit
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000
ARETRT ARMTn ARETR ARMTn ARETR ARMTn ARETR ARMTn
Note 25(a)  Note 25(a) Note 25(b)(v) Note 25(b)(iii) Note 25(b)ii)
Miosla) W25  KiE2s(o)v)  MiEEos(o)i)  HEE25(b)i)

Balance at July 1, 2022 202257 A1 B 8% 92 7,982,824 (83,796) 1,819 (3687 (1,541,546) (1,440,512 4,915,194

Changes in equity for the year ended
June 30, 2023
BE203F6 A0 AL EENEREE
Loss for the year F 751 - - - - - - (17,1%) (17,19)
Other comprehensive income for the year

EREMEENE - - -

383,743 - - 383,743

Total comprehensive income for the year
FrzEkELE - - -

383,743 - (17,196) 366,547

Issuance of ordinary shares relating to Hong

Kong public offering and exercise of the

over-allotment option, net of underwriting

commissions and other issuance costs
HTEEALARYEROTRER RN

Bk (kAR kA EARE) 25(a)i) 3 408,018 - - - - - 408,021
Dividend declared EE RS 25(d) - (370,787) - - - - - (370,787)
Exercise of options and subscription of restricted

share units
iRRRER AR RHRAEL - 380 - - - - - 380
Release of ordinary shares from

share incentive plan
RO AR B ERR - (616) 616 - - - - -
Offset of accumulated losses ZFEER 25(a) - (730,899) - - - - 730,898 -
Repurchase of shares EIEE 7 25(0)v) - - (82,112 - - - - (82,112
Cancellation of shares 57 25(b)) - (31,841) 31,84 - - - - -
Equity settled share-based transactions
NEEEENRN RS - - - 1,187 - - - 1,187

Balance at June 30, 2023
R2023%6 330 A KLE 95 7,257,080 (84,051) 2,956 380,056 (1,541,546) (726,810) 5,287,780

Note: Pt=E -

* The amount was less than RMB1,000. * RPN AREA,0007T ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R AR MY AT

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

32 COMPANY LEVEL FINANCIAL 32 ATEEMBER (&)
INFORMATION (Continued)

(v)

Condensed statement of cash flow (v) FEBRBESREX

For the year ended June 30,
BZ6H30HLLFE
2022 2023

20224 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AR®ET T

Net cash used in operating activities 84 & &) Fr IR & 5 58 (16,177) (43,240)
Net cash from investing activities X & /& B AT IR & /558 120,173 528,830
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities & EZ) (FT ), A5 & %58 (395,322) 43,396

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

RekBZEWORD) MEEE (291,326) 528,986
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 438 & kI8 & ZEY) 925,638 646,921
Effect of movements in exchange rates on cash held

EXSBHHMFRENTE 12,609 49,567
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRIR& KIREEEY 646,921 1,225,474
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Notes to the Copsolidated Financial Statements
e B TSR R M

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

33 AMENDMENTS AND NEW STANDARDS 33 B EMEMKRERNIEET RFHTZEL
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
A number of new standards are effective for the annual Z B 202341 A1 B2 A FEE H
periods beginning after January 1, 2023 and early application AR - W FFIRRTERG - AT - NEBER
is permitted; however, the Group has not early adopted the LB IR A TSR R I R IR RIER AN T 5] s
new or amended standards in preparing these consolidated 1BRT4ER] o

financial statements.

The following amended standards and interpretations are TEEI RS ST R KRBT S WA S BRAR
not expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s B MREEEATE -

consolidated financial statements.

— IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

— (BRI A 2ER) 17 RS IR (BIRR I 5 3R 422 R) ) E 17 R E A (1557 )

— Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2)

— B BERZRE ((ERREEER) F 15 (1674 R (BRI B & ER|EH N &) F23

— Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8)

— Bt a2 EE ((EfREa1ER) 83 (15:74))

— Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
(Amendments to IAS 12)
—HEIEX G ELNEEREEFERELHE ((ERE12ER) F1295 (15574))

— Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to IAS 1)

—HBEESERREEFNE (EREER) F15 (1EaT4))

— Non-current liabilities with covenants (Amendments to IAS 1)

—MFERERIF B R E ((ERET2ER]) F 135 (15577))

— Lease liability in a sale and leaseback (Amendments to IAS 16)

—ERMEIX S P ERE ((BREEER) 163 (15575))

— Supplier Finance Arrangements (Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7)
—HRERHE T ((EEET1EER) F75 R (B %K &2ER) #79 (15577K))

— Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture
(Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28)

~REZHABEN AR EERAZEEELHELRA ((EIRFE 5 EER) 10595 R
(EIRE = 512ER)) #2835 (15574))

MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023

Effective

for accounting
periods
beginning

on or after
LA B 8
2 BB
R R

January 1, 2023
2023F181H

January 1, 2023
2023F181H

January 1, 2023
2023F1H1H
January 1, 2023

2023%F1H1H

January 1, 2024
2024F181H

January 1, 2024
2024F1H81H

January 1, 2024
2024F1H81H

January 1, 2024
2024F1H81H

Will be determined
at a future date
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R AR MY AT

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

34 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 34 EEME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to the Rules RIB(CEBBRES LML) - FE(AH
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock &5 5383(1)(a) * (b) * (c) R () KLA R
Exchange, Section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong (BRBREZFRER)EMN) Z2BHEENES
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies ZEMan T -

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation, is as follows:

For the year ended June 30, 2022
BZE202256 A0 LFE
Salaries, Retirement  Equity-settled
Directors’ allowances and  Discretionary scheme  share-based

Note fees  other benefits bonuses  contributions payments Total
e R BRiRe  NEREE
i3 E5H0E ME BT misTEAL SRR ARG as
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AREBTT ARE®Tr ARETR

Executive directors €5

Mr. Ye Guofu ZEBE &4 = 2,645 772 35 = 3,452
Mr. Li Minxin {5 &4 = 2,270 623 35 = 2,928
Mr. Zhang Saiyin RE&ES 54 = 1,527 448 37 = 2,012

Independent directors BV %

Ms. Xu Lili 2250z + 728 - - - 102 830
Mr. Zhu Yonghua K BEZE L& - - - - 515 515
Mr. Wang Yongping ok %4 (i 706 - - - - 706

1,434 6,442 1,843 107 617 10,443

2023 ERE o BAIER PR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRNE

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBIEASN - UARBFTTES)

34 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 34 EEME (&)

For the year ended June 30, 2023
HZE202356A30ALFE
Salaries, Retirement Equity-settled
Directors’ allowances and Discretionary scheme share-based

fees  other benefits bonuses contributions payments Total

E2 =41 Bihe  UEREERE
E=Hd MEAER WAL SEMY  HROXM At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTRT ARETRT ARWTR AR®Tx AR¥Txn

Executive directors 5

Mr. Ye Guofu £8IE %4 - 2,661 720 32 - 3,413
Mr. Li Minxin Z /5 64 (i - 2,001 528 28 - 2,557
Mr. Zhang Saiyin RES %4 (i) - 895 384 21 - 1,300

Independent directors B EE

Ms. Xu Lili fR 282820+ 1,034 - - - - 1,034

Mr. Zhu Yonghua R £ 4 - - - - 1,137 1,137

Mr. Wang Yongping T 7k F % £ 1,034 - - - - 1,034

2,068 5,557 1,632 81 1,137 10,475

Notes: 5T

10) Mr. Wang Yongping was appointed as an independent director (i) FoKFLRAER2021 A11 A17 BRER R FTE
of the Company on November 17, 2021. VEE o

(i)  Mr. Zhang Saiyin resigned as a director of the Company on iy FREZLAEN2023F1A31BEIARAE
January 31, 2023. Fo

@iy ~ Mr. Li Minxin resigned as a director of the Company on May @iy FEEEAER2023F5 A16 HBEARAIE
16, 2023. =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

During the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2023, of the five
individuals with the highest emoluments, 3 and 1 are directors
whose emoluments are disclosed in Note 34 respectively.

The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other 2
and 4 individuals are as follows:

e PR WK

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise indicated)

(BR4FRIBLBASN - UARBF TR

35 BREHMAL

HZE20224 K 2023F6 H30H [FFfE » E54
ST ALS 31 B R2ENE34F D 5
WEEFHNES -

BRAEM2MAZ A LHZFMEEZ5I0T ¢

For the year ended June 30,
BZ6H30HLLFE
2022 2023

20224 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETTT AR¥TT

Salaries, allowances and other benefits #r&  JE8E R E 12 F| 2,908 5,526
Discretionary bonuses BB /EAL 1,610 2,232
Retirement scheme contributions Bk & 5t 21 50 47 120
Equity-settled share-based payment LATE 5 45 & H R S 1+ 140 20,465

4,705 28,343

The emoluments of the above individuals with the highest
emoluments are within the following bands:

Nil to HK$5,000,000

tatEEmFHMA LM BERNT

For the year ended June 30,
BZ6H30HLLEE
2022 2023

20224 2023
Number of Number of
individuals individuals

A AR

Z%5,000,000/8 7T 2 3

HK$20,000,001 to HK$25,000,000

20,000,001 ;% 7T, % 25,000,0007% 7T - 1
2 4
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Five Year Financial Summary

AFUHREE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

For the fiscal year ended June 30,
BZ6H30H LB BEE
2020 2021 2022
20204 20214 20224
(RMB, in thousands)
(AR%T )

Revenue YA 9,394,911 8,978,986 9,071,659 10,085,649
Cost of sales $H&E A (6,883,931) (6,246,488) (6,640,973) (7,015,888)
Profit/(loss) before taxation % AT A, (E518) 289,004 80,818 (1,216,192) 906,813

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
AARERRREGFANEE (B18), Wik (296,062)  (256,583) (1,429,621) 677,667

11,473,208
(7,030,156)
2,333,614

1,803,797

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

GeEEREE
As of June 30,
A6830H
2020 2021 2022
20204 20214 20224
(RMB, in thousands)
(AR¥ET )
Current assets BN & & 4,511,719 4,986,599 9,199,087 8,072,562 9,904,005
Non-current assets FER BN EE 714,396 849,652 1,505,943 3,209,226 3,543,708
Total assets EEZ%E 5,226,115 5,836,251 10,705,030 11,281,788 13,447,713
Current liabilities R E & (& 3,245979 3,309,643 3,482,855 3,788,671 3,885,595
Non-current liabilities 3E/E & & 2,094,110 2,849,654 570,021 465,717 643,850
Total liabilities & &% 5,340,089 6,159,297 4,052,876 4,254,388 4,529,445
Total (deficit)/equity (E#4l), ~ 4% (113,974) (323,046) 6,652,154 7,027,400 8,918,268
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“2020 Share Incentive Plan”

[2020 5 R ADE R =+ &

“ADS(S)”
[XEFER]

“Articles of Association”

[FAEERA[ ]

“associate(s)”

[BEA

“Audit Committee”

[EtEEE]

“Board”

-

“BVI”
[REERRES ]

“China” or “the PRC”

[

“Companies Ordinance”

[ 5EH)
“Company” “ ” 13
NG REAE: 45N

“Compensation Committee”

[FESS ]

“connected person(s)”
[EEEAL]

us”, or “our”

Definitions

the share incentive plan our Company adopted in September 2020, as
amended from time to time

AR BIR202049 A SRR BB ET &) (T RHERT)

American Depositary Shares, each of which represents four Shares

EEFER - 8 —RERTFIERARLARR S

the articles of association of the Company, as amended from time to time

AR BEBERAA (EEHER])

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

HACEMRAN) BT & ame sz

the audit committee of the Board

EXgETLZEE

the board of Directors

o

British Virgin Islands
REBERARES

the People’s Republic of China, and for the purposes of this annual report only,
except where the context requires otherwise, references to China or the PRC
exclude Hong Kong, the Macao Special Administrative Region of the People’s
Republic of China and Taiwan

REARKNE - ERAFRMN S - BREAIBATEBREEE - FEARLMNME
BEVRFRTRERESE - BEXESAMEERIN

Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

FBAEDF622 (R AEMER) (EAEHER] ~ 7T A M7 A E)

MINISO Group Holding Limited (#&&fm& EER AR A7), a company with
limited liability mcorporated in the Cayman Islands on January 7, 2020
%Flﬁﬁuus‘%l? AR AT 0 —FRKK2020F1 7B EREHEFMKIMERE
(/N

the compensation committee of the Board

FHTMNEZES

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

ABCEMRAN) BT & amaifsE

2023F [Es o RAIER PRE



Definitions

“Controlling Shareholder(s)”

[ERRR ]

“core SKU”

[#%1SKU ]

“Corporate Governance Code
[(EERFR)]

“Director(s)”

[E=]

“ESG Report”
[R5 - HERERRE]

“first-tier cities”

[ — 43 |

“Global Offering”
[BHREBE]

“GMV”

[GMV]

“Group”, “our Group”, “the

Group”, “we”, “us”, or “our”
[AEE =k HM]

“HFCAA”
[HFCAA

PNl  MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules and unless the context
otherwise requires, refers to Mr. Ye, Ms. Yang and the intermediary companies
through which Mr. Ye and Ms. Yang have an interest in the Company, namely,
Mini Investment Limited, YGF MC Limited, YGF Development Limited, YYY MC
Limited and YYY Development Limited

BEBC(ETRAD B FZANRE  MXESBREN  BELEE  BELR
FRNN(EAERGRTBAZERAREAARFEZ + BIMini Investment
Limited * YGF MC Limited * YGF Development Limited * YYY MC Limited }z
YYY Development Limited)

SKU that generates over RMB100,000 in sales for over a consecutive 12-month
period
HEE12{E AN RS EEE AR 100,0007T#ISKU

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Main Board
Listing Rules, as amended from time to time
(ERETARAND W8k mars (R ER TR (ETRERT)

the director(s) of our Company

ARBES

environmental, social and governance report
B HgkELRRS

Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou and Shenzhen
1t~ B8 - BEMNFRY

the Hong Kong Public Offering and the International Offering
FEELARBRENBRRE

the total value of all merchandises sold by us and our retail partners and
distributors to end-customers, before deducting sales rebates and including the
value-added taxes and sales taxes collected from consumers, as applicable,
regardless of whether the merchandises are returned
BAEBEMNBEIEBARREEMLHE P HE REERIATEEREE
FWEREISENMEE (ER) - BEREnet RN ARmNEEHE

the Company and its subsidiaries from time to time, and where the context
requires, in respect of the period prior to our Company becoming the holding
company of its present subsidiaries, such subsidiaries as if they were
subsidiaries of our Company at the relevant time

RRRRENROMBAR - RIIXEME - AR BN AERBHELQAAE
IR~ Rl AT AR T = RIS 5018 A7) (R N2 5 A R MERA IR Al 2 R A A RIEI KT
Bra])

Holding Foreign Companies Accountable Act

GINERRREESR)



“HKDH or “HK$!!
[

“HKEX”
[ B3 P |

“Hong Kong”
=

“Hong Kong Public Offering”

o yNE: -3

“Ichiban Kuji”

[—&H]

“IFRS(s)”
[ BB B A5 R 25 22 R ) |

“Independent Third Party(ies)”

[BYE=H

“International Offering”

[EIFR 5

“IP”
MeJ

“Latest Practicable Date
[REERTAH]

Definitions

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BEREEEEET

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEBMARSMARAR

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PEEBFRITTHR

the offer of the Hong Kong Offer Shares for subscription by the public in Hong
Kong at the Public Offer Price (plus brokerage of 1%, SFC transaction levy of
0.0027%, FRC transaction levy of 0.00015% and HKEX trading fee of 0.005%)
on the terms and subject to the conditions described in the Prospectus, as
further described in the section headed “Structure of the Global Offering — The
Hong Kong Public Offering” in the Prospectus
RIBBRERNRFLEFTRGEARBT - RAFBEE (SN %EL @
0.0027% EEEX 5 E - 0.00015% W EH 5EE K 0.005% M2 25 E)
REHEFBRERGUAERTBLTRRE  FBEHNBRER 2HBEENRE—
EELHEE 6

one of the categories of products sold under the TOP TOY brand that mostly
feature manga characters and that are typically sold by lottery

TOP TOYRE T HENEMmEZ — HEERFEREEAY - —RUHETH
BE

the International Financial Reporting Standards, as issued from time to time by
the International Accounting Standards Board

RETEAEES TREAN(BRRMBRELEN])

any entity or person who is not a connected person of our Company or an
associate of such person within the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing
Rules
WIHEARRREANTHARRBEALHBEA (BBCETRAD P TFH0RE)
MEREREIAL

the conditional placing of the International Offer Shares at the International
Offer Price pursuant to the shelf registration statement on Form F-3ASR that
was filed with the SEC and became effective on March 31, 2022, and subject to
the terms and conditions of the International Underwriting Agreement

RIEMN2022F3 A31 HAXHZE LSRR W AN F-3ASRRZNEHE L EH
KA BB A B 17 R IR S IR O ARBR T iREIR B E BB R IR ENERES

Wtn

intellectual property

R ERE

September 15, 2023
202349 H15H

2023F s o HAIER PLY



Definitions

“Listing”
[ £

“Listing Date”
[EH B
“Listing Rules”

[{EmHRA]

“Main Board”

[ E4 ]

“Mini Investment Limited”

[ Mini Investment Limited ]

“MINISO Retail Partner”

[BRIGRA

“MINISO store”

[BAERFE]

“Model Code”
[<EEE=<FA) ]

“Mr. Ye”

=%

pLi¥l  MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023

the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the HKEX
PRIDTABSE S P £ R _E T

July 13, 2022, on which the Shares are to be listed and on which dealings in the
Shares are to be first permitted to take place on the HKEX
202247 A138 - Bl L kiR GH &R E AR R FFIA R 58 B Af

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the HKEX, as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
CBERFraEH E AR ETEHERT ~ fiFe s A B A 77 820

the stock exchange (excluding the option market) operated by the HKEX which
is independent from and operates in parallel with the Growth Enterprise Market
of the HKEX

HEBXMEENZTAFXGH (TREMETS) » KB N MGrowth
Enterprise Market 1 £2E4 22 £ Growth Enterprise Market 7 1 T8 1

Mini Investment Limited, a limited liability company incorporated under the laws
of BVI on November 26, 2019

Mini Investment Limited © —5K 12019411 H26 B IR IR LB &R n & /A&
KR MBREERA

franchisee under our MINISO Retail Partner model, a franchise-like store model
with chain store characteristics, where the franchisee bears the store opening
capital expenditure and store operating expenses to join our “MINISO” or “TOP
TOY” branded retail store franchise

ZRIEBABRA TR - ZEX BB EHNBESE - EZEXT - AR
S AERBRMIZEIER IS TOP TOY MM EM BT 2 AERIE &R
XHFEEEEA

any of the stores operated under the “MINISO” brand name, including those
directly operated by us, those operated under the MINISO Retail Partner model,
and those operated under the distributor model

HAATREER IREEBELNPIE  BERMNESE - BEIGRAPIER
RIEEFIE

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set
out in Appendix 10 of the Main Board Listing Rules
CERETARR]D MSE+ATE ER BT AESHETE SRR S HRESTED

Mr. Guofu Ye, an executive Director, chairman of our Board, the chief executive
officer of our Company, the founder of our Group and a Controlling Shareholder
of our Company

ERELRE  NTESF BEFSIF  ARAEEATE  AEEABARELR
AR R



“Ms. Yang”

it

“Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee”

[RERGXEREZES

“NYSE”
[ 432 A )

“020”
o020/

“PCAOB”
[REARAREHEEZRSS ]

“Prospectus”

[BRER]

“Relevant Period”

[EEME ]

“Reporting Period”
[ &5

“RMB” or “Renminbi”
[AR#¥]

“RSUs”
[ 32 PRI AR 1 B4

“SEC”
[XERFEES]

“second-tier cities”

[ =43 |

“SFO” or “Securities and
Futures Ordinance”

[(FEs R BE KA

“Share(s)”
[

Definitions

Ms. Yunyun Yang, spouse of Mr. Ye and a Controlling Shareholder of our
Company

BEELL - BAEAREE AR THERRR
The nominating and corporate governance committee of the Board

EFxeREAEXREAREZER

i3

the New York Stock Exchange
MAOFESZHP

online to offline, a business strategy that draws potential customers from online
channels to make purchases in physical stores

REBIRT - —RBRSIBEBETNR LREBEE AT REEE LS RS

The Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
EEARARGHEERES

the prospectus of the Company dated June 30, 2022
AN A)E A R202246 A 30 H B EZ

the period from the Listing Date to June 30, 2023
B - R EZE202346 430 B iR

the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023
#HZE2023F6 A30H ItV HFE

Renminbi, the lawful currency of China

TEIEEEB AR

restricted Shares units

PR IR A B AL

the Securities and Exchange Commission of the United States
EEBFRHEBELZEY

mainly include capital cities of provinces and autonomous regions, centrally-
administered municipalities, and other cities of China that the Company
considers to have a similar level of development potential
TEARTERAZENEERTRERR PREENEEMARKRARE
BB MOUKTFERE e BT

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

FREDIFEST E(REH ME IR (B TEHER] ~ #FE A 77 &%)

the ordinary share(s) of US$0.00001 each in the share capital of the Company
AN AIAR AN A% 0.00001 FETTH) EiRAR

2023F [EE o RAIER PLK



Definitions

“Shareholder(s)”
[BRR

“SKU”
[SKU

“subsidiary” or “subsidiaries”

AT

“third- or lower-tier cities”

[=HRRUTHH

“TOP TOY store”

[TOP TOYF3 /&
“United States” or “US”
[%E ]

“Us$”, “USD” or “U.S. dollars”
=

“oy

[ %]

P8 MINISO ¢ Annual Report 2023

holder(s) of our Share(s)

BinFEEA

stock keeping unit, a unique identifier for each distinct product and service that
can be purchased

BB - PR E A& SREE G S ARG RO ME — 1R

has the meaning ascribed to it in section 15 of the Companies Ordinance

BERC(RBED) FBASIGFTIE T 8 RE

cities other than first- and second-tier cities in China

BRAPBI— » ZARITH 2 SMAy EA T

any store operated under the “TOP TOY” brand name, including those directly
operated by us and those operated under the MINISO Retail Partner model
EAILATTOP TOY |mig 2B L HPYE - BRERMNEEERBEIEEAPIE

United States of America, its territories, its possessions and all areas subject to
its jurisdiction
EFRAERE - HEH - B R EATE B

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States
EBEEEEBET

per cent

B
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